
 

 

 
 Gresham-Barlow  School District 
 
 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
 

Regular Board Meeting / Business 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

December 3, 2015 
 



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 10 JT.  AGENDA 
 

BOARD OF EDUCATION  
December 3, 2015 

 
Regular Board Meeting / Business - 7 p.m. 

 
Public Safety and Schools Building 

1331 NW Eastman Parkway, Gresham, OR 
 
 

 I. CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 II. ROLL CALL 
 
   Carla Piluso, Chair   Kathy Ruthruff, Director 
   Kris Howatt, Vice-Chair   Kent Zook, Director 
   Sharon Garner, Director  
   John Hartsock, Director   Jim Schlachter, Superintendent 
   Matt O’Connell, Director   Mike Schofield, Chief Financial Officer 
 
 III. COMMUNICATION FROM THE AUDIENCE 
 
 Time has been set aside later on the agenda for Citizens’ Requests of the Board.  If 

anyone in the audience wishes to address the board this evening, there are yellow 
“Citizens’ Requests of the Board” forms on the table in the back of the room; please 
complete a form and give it to our board secretary, Ms. Cook. 

 
 IV. APPROVE MEETING AGENDA 
 
 V.  CONSENT AGENDA 
 
 All items listed below are matters considered by the board to be routine and will be 

enacted by one motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a 
member of the board or persons in the audience requests specific items be removed 
from the consent agenda and placed on the regular agenda. 

 
 1. Minutes from Regular Business Meeting November 5, 2015 
 2. Financial Report 
 3. Personnel Changes 
 4. Out-of-State Travel 
 
 VI. RECOGNITIONS 
 
 5. Hanna Jordan:  State Water Polo Tournament Hiu 
 
 VII.  GRESHAM-BARLOW EDUCATION FOUNDATION REPORT 
 
 6. Gresham-Barlow Education Foundation (GBEF) Report Vadnais 
 
 
 
 



Gresham-Barlow School District No. 10 Jt. 
Agenda - Regular Board Meeting / Business 
December 3, 2015 
Page 2 
 
 
 VIII. SUPERINTENDENT'S REPORT 
 
 IX. PRESENTATIONS 
 
 7. Mt. Hood Community College Potential Bond Schlachter 
 8. Principal for a Day Vadnais 
 
 X. RECESS/RECONVENE   (5 Minutes) 
 
 XI. COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES AND/OR REPORTS 
 
 This portion of the board meeting agenda has been provided for the presentation of 

advisory committee minutes.  No action or discussion is required by the board; 
however, there may be occasional reports or discussion regarding work being 
completed by the committee(s). 

 
 9. District Advisory Council (DAC) Vadnais 
 10. Bond Measure Planning Committee Schofield 
 
 XII. BOARD REPORTS 
 
 XIII. CABINET REPORTS 
 
 XIV. ASSOCIATIONS REPORTS 
 
 • Gresham-Barlow Education Association (GBEA)  (2 Minutes) 
 • Oregon School Employees Association (OSEA)  (2 Minutes) 
 
 XV. CITIZENS’ REQUESTS OF BOARD   (3 Minutes per Guest / 15 Minutes Total) 
 
 XVI. RECESS/RECONVENE   (5 Minutes) 
 
 XVII. ACTION ITEMS 
 
  First Reading 
 
 11. Acceptance of a Financial Donation:  East Hill Church Hiu 
 12. Budget Committee Appointment Schofield 
 
  Second Reading 
 
 13. Comprehensive Annual Financial Report Schofield 
 14. OSBA Board of Directors and Legislative Policy Committee Piluso 
 
 
 
 
 



Gresham-Barlow School District No. 10 Jt. 
Agenda - Regular Board Meeting / Business 
December 3, 2015 
Page 3 
 
 
 
 XV. INFORMATION ITEMS 
 
 15. OSBA Annual Convention Piluso 
 
 XVIII. ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
 Note: There will not be a DAC meeting in December 
  because of winter break 
 
 Dec. 10, 2015: Board Work Session - 6 p.m. 
  Partnership Room 
  Center for Advanced Learning 
 
 Dec. 16, 2015: Board Policy Review Committee - 9:30 a.m. 
  Gresham-Barlow School District Office 
  Large Conference Room 
 
 Dec. 21 – Jan. 1: Winter Break 
 
 Jan. 7, 2016: Regular Board Meeting - 7 p.m. 
  Council Chambers 
  Public Safety and Schools Building 
 
 XIX. ADJOURNMENT   (Estimated time for adjournment:  No later than 9 p.m.) 
 
 
Note: The board may, by majority vote, take action on items listed under first reading or information. 
 
JS:lc:12/1/15:4:15 PM 



Gresham-Barlow School District – Minutes of Regular Board Meeting / Business, November 5, 2015 Page 1 

GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 10 JT. 
Minutes of Regular Board Meeting / Business  

 
November 5, 2015 

 
 
The Gresham-Barlow School District Board of Education met in regular session on Thursday, 
November 5, 2015, in the council chambers of the Public Safety and Schools building, 1331 NW 
Eastman Parkway, Gresham, Oregon. 
 
The meeting was called to order at 6:59 p.m. by the chair, Carla Piluso.  Other board members in 
attendance were Kris Howatt, Kathy Ruthruff, Kent Zook, Matt O’Connell, and John Hartsock.   
Sharon Garner was absent. 
 
The following members of the superintendent’s cabinet were present:   
 
 Jim Schlachter Superintendent 
 James Hiu Deputy Superintendent of Secondary Education and Operations 
 Teresa Ketelsen Deputy Superintendent of Teaching and Learning 
 Mike Schofield Chief Financial Officer 
 Randy Bryant Executive Director of Human Resources 
 Julie Evans Executive Director of Elementary Education 
 Sara Hahn Executive Director of School Performance  
 Janell Black Executive Director of Student Support Services 
 Athena Vadnais Director of Communications and Community Engagement 
 
The chair led board members, administrators and all those present in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
MOTION 19 MEETING AGENDA   (7:00 p.m.) 
 
 Kris Howatt moved to amend the meeting agenda by deleting item 8, Mt. Hood 

Community College Potential Bond, because the presenter was unable to attend 
the meeting, and moving items 13, Acceptance of a Financial Donation, and 15, 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, up on the agenda to follow the 
presentations, because guests were present to report on these two items.  The 
motion was seconded by Matt O’Connell and carried 6 to 0. 

 
MOTION 20 CONSENT AGENDA   (7:01 p.m.) 
 
 The following items were included on the consent agenda: 
 
 1. Minutes from Regular Business Meeting October 1, 2015 
  Minutes from Regular Work Session October 15, 2015 
  Minutes from Regular Work Session October 29, 2015 
 2. Financial Report 
 3. Personnel Changes 
 4. Out-of-State Travel 
 5. Policy Updates 
 
 It was moved by John Hartsock, seconded by Kathy Ruthruff and carried 6 to 0 

to approve the consent agenda as presented. 
 
 



Gresham-Barlow School District – Minutes of Regular Board Meeting / Business, November 5, 2015 Page 2 

 PRESENTATIONS/RECOGNITIONS  (7:02 p.m.) 
 

Sam Barlow High School Theater Department:  The board recognized the  
Sam Barlow High School theatre department for winning first place for its set 
designs for “Anything Goes” and fourth place for “Musical Comedy Murders of 
1940” at a recent National Scenographics Set Building Competition.  The sets are 
featured on the front and back covers of Scenographics’ annual catalog.  

 
 GRESHAM-BARLOW EDUCATION FOUNDATION REPORT  (7:04 p.m.) 
 
 Foundation reports are typically presented every-other-month.  Accordingly, 

there was no Foundation report this month. 
 
 SUPERINTENDENT'S REPORT  (7:04 p.m.) 
 
 Superintendent Schlachter reported on the following   
 

• Implementation of the district’s dress code policy is designed to maintain a 
safe school environment.  Although the district’s dress code does not allow 
clothing with images of weapons, the district is taking a closer look at its 
policy in light of the recent situation at Dexter McCarty Middle School. 
District staff and administrators have met with representatives from the 
Oregon National Guard regarding this topic.  The district has also reached 
out to the American Legion.  Moving forward, the district will review the 
state statutes behind the dress code policy and work with school principals 
on the application of the policy. 

 
• KOIN News recently spotlighted Gresham High School for its efforts to 

increase student achievement on the Smarter Balanced Assessment.   
 
• A letter to the editor in the Gresham Outlook newspaper thanked the school 

board and school district for replacing the turf field at Gresham High School. 
 
 GRESHAM ARTHUR ACADEMY PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOL ANNUAL 

EVALUATION AND REPORT     (7:18 p.m.) 
 

Amber Sparks, principal for Gresham Arthur Academy, presented the school’s 
annual evaluation report.   
 

 BOND MEASURE PLANNING COMMITTEE UPDATE  (7:31 p.m.) 
 
Karen Montovino from the DLR Group provided an update to the board 
regarding the efforts of the Bond Measure Planning Committee.  The committee 
is comprised of students, parents, community members, and staff members.  
They have been meeting since June and are working to create a recommendation 
for the school board regarding the timing and scope of a possible school bond 
measure. 
 

MOTION 21 ACCEPTANCE OF A FINANCIAL DONATION FROM INTEL   (7:51 p.m.) 
 
 It was moved by Matt O’Connell, seconded by Kris Howatt and carried 6 to 0 to 

accept the donation to Gordon Russell Middle School from Intel and Best Buy in 
the amount of $25,000. 



Gresham-Barlow School District – Minutes of Regular Board Meeting / Business, November 5, 2015 Page 3 

 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT   (7:54 p.m.) 
 

 Matt Graves of Pauly, Rogers & Co., PC, presented the Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report (CAFR) for 2014-15.  He explained that the audit was conducted 
in accordance with Generally Accepted Auditing Standards (GAAS), and the 
general purpose financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2015, adhered to 
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP).   An unmodified opinion on 
the financial statements has been issued, which means it was a “clean” opinion 
with no reservations. 

 
Formal action to accept the CAFR will be presented in December. 

 
 COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES AND/OR REPORTS  (8:06 p.m.) 
 
 District Advisory Council (DAC):  Athena Vadnais and John Hartsock reported 

on the October 22, 2015, DAC meeting, which was held at Highland Elementary 
School. 

 
 Bond Measure Planning Committee:  It was noted that minutes of the  

August 11, 2015, and October 13, 2015, Bond Measure Planning Committee 
meetings were provided in the board agenda packet.  (An update was given 
earlier in the meeting by DLR Architects.) 

 
 BOARD REPORTS   (8:08 p.m.) 
 
 Board members summarized various meetings and other activities they 

participated in during the month.  
 
 CABINET REPORTS  (8:12 p.m.) 
 
 James Hiu reported that the REY Academy has started at Gresham High School.  

There are 25 district high school students participating in learning options 
provided by the program.  A more detailed report will be provided after the first 
semester has been completed. 

 
 ASSOCIATIONS REPORTS  (8:14 p.m.) 
 

Regina Norris, an elementary physical education specialist at East Gresham and 
Highland elementary schools, and a Gresham-Barlow Education Association 
(GBEA) co-president elect, read a letter addressed to the board on behalf of 
Gresham-Barlow elementary special education certified and classified staff.  The 
letter expressed concern about meeting students’ needs in special education 
classes.  (A copy of the letter has been filed with these minutes.) 
 
Superintendent Schlachter responded that the letter would be reviewed, and the 
administration will follow up for additional input and clarification.  

 
 CITIZENS’ REQUESTS OF THE BOARD   (8:20 p.m.) 
 

Zoe Young, a Gresham resident and employee for the Gresham-Barlow School 
District, shared her concerns about the district’s special education program. 
 



Gresham-Barlow School District – Minutes of Regular Board Meeting / Business, November 5, 2015 Page 4 

Gresham residents, George Schneider, Roxanne Ross, and Marlene Robbins, 
expressed concerns regarding the district’s dress code policy and how it was 
recently implemented. 

 
Nick Hershey, a Gresham resident and school bus driver, shared his thoughts 
regarding the recent decertification vote by First Student bus drivers. 
 
Lauren Holwege, a Gresham resident and school bus driver, shared information 
about working as a First Student bus driver in the Gresham-Barlow School 
District. 
 

MOTION 22 RESOLUTION:  AMERICAN EDUCATION WEEK   (8:58 p.m.) 
 
 It was moved by Matt O’Connell, seconded by Kris Howatt and carried 6 to 0 to 

ratify the resolution recognizing November 16-20, 2015, as American Education 
Week in the Gresham-Barlow School District. 

 
 Director O’Connell read the resolution into the record.  (Refer to the agenda 

packet). 
 
 OSBA BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND LEGISLATIVE POLICY 

COMMITTEE    (9:00 p.m.) 
 
 Board members reviewed a slate of candidates for three Oregon School Boards 

Association (OSBA) board positions, and three legislative policy committee 
positions representing Multnomah County.  (Refer to the agenda packet for 
details.) 

 
 The board will be asked to cast its votes on these candidates at the December 3, 

2015, business meeting, which falls after the OSBA annual convention where 
more information can be obtained regarding the candidates. 

 
MOTION 23 SUPERINTENDENT EVALUATION PROCESS AND TIMELINE    (9:02 p.m.) 
 
 Directors Hartsock and Howatt summarized work done by the board’s 

Superintendent Evaluation Process Committee, and presented a 
recommendation to adopt a more updated and robust evaluation process, as 
outlined in the agenda packet. 

 
 John Hartsock moved to approve the Superintendent Evaluation Process 

Calendar and authorize the retention of a human resources consultant to design 
and administer the process under the Committee’s direction for a  
not-to-exceed fee of $15,000, including expenses.  Kris Howatt seconded the 
motion. 

 
 In the discussion that followed, questions were raised concerning the fees and 

use of an outside consultant, as described in the recommendation; and, the desire 
for further review at a board work session was expressed. 

 
John Hartsock moved to stop the discussion [at this time].   It was seconded by 
Kathy Ruthruff and carried 5 to 1.  Matt O’Connell cast the dissenting vote. 
 



Gresham-Barlow School District – Minutes of Regular Board Meeting / Business, November 5, 2015 Page 5 

 Chair Piluso then called for the question on the original motion to approve the 
Superintendent Evaluation Process Calendar and authorize the retention of a 
human resources consultant to design and administer the process under the 
Committee’s direction for a not-to-exceed fee of $15,000, including expenses.   

 
 The motion failed 2 to 4.  The yes votes were cast by Carla Piluso and  

Kris Howatt.  The dissenting votes were cast by John Hartsock, Matt O’Connell, 
Kathy Ruthruff, and Kent Zook. 

 
 Directors Howatt and O’Connell requested that the superintendent evaluation 

process be brought forward to the next available board work session for more 
information and discussion, and then added to the following business meeting 
agenda for reconsideration. 

 
MOTION 24 LONG-RANGE TECHNOLOGY PLAN    (9:10 p.m.) 
 
 Kathy Ruthruff moved to approve the Gresham-Barlow School District 

Technology Plan, 2015-2019, as submitted for second reading.  The motion was 
seconded by Matt O’Connell and carried 6 to 0. 

 
 ANNOUNCEMENTS    (9:14 p.m.) 
 
 Nov. 11, 2015: Veterans Day Holiday 
  Schools and Offices Closed 
 

 Nov. 12-15, 2015: Oregon School Boards Association Annual Convention 
  Portland Marriott 
  Note:  A quorum of the board will be present; however,  
  this is not a meeting of the board. 
 

 Nov. 17, 2015: Bond Measure Planning Committee – 5:30 p.m. 
  West Gresham Elementary School 
 

 Nov. 19, 2015: DAC Meeting - 7 p.m. 
  Dexter McCarty Middle School 
  Board Representatives:  Sharon Garner, John Hartsock, and  
  Matt O’Connell 
 

 Nov. 20, 2015: Board Policy Review Committee - 9:30 a.m. 
  Gresham-Barlow School District Office 
  Large Conference Room 
 

 Nov. 26-27: Thanksgiving Break 
  Schools and Offices Closed 
 

 Dec. 1, 2015: Bond Measure Planning Committee – 5:30 p.m. 
  Location TBD 
 

 Dec. 3, 2015: Regular Board Meeting - 7 p.m. 
  Council Chambers 
  Public Safety and Schools Building 

 
 
 
 
 



Gresham-Barlow School District – Minutes of Regular Board Meeting / Business, November 5, 2015 Page 6 

 
 ADJOURNMENT 
 
 There being no other business, the meeting was adjourned at 9:15 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
Submitted by:        
 Linda J. Cook 
 Administrative Assistant to the Superintendent and 
 Board of Directors 



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 
1331 NW Eastman Parkway 
Gresham, OR  97030-3825 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Jim Schlachter 
 Mike Schofield 
 
DATE: December 3, 2015 
 
RE:  No. 2 – Financial Report 
 
 
EXPLANATION: State Revenue Forecast:  The State of Oregon Office of Economic 

Analysis will update its forecast on December 2, 2015.   
 
 Staffing Adjustments:  The attached financial report reflects 

staffing additions made for enrollment at the start of the school 
year. 

 
PRESENTER: Mike Schofield 
 
SUPPLEMENTARY 
MATERIALS: Financial Report/Summary (Ending October 31, 2015) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: None 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: Consent agenda approval 
 
MS:mkh:lc 



As of October 31, 2015
GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT

Financial Report 2015-2016         

Board - Report 2015-16 - Dec

Actual Actual Projected Projected Projected Projected Actual Adopted Variance
QTR 1 October QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4 Annual YTD Budget To Budget

Revenue
Current Taxes -                       -                       22,700,000         1,150,000           1,050,000          24,900,000          -                       24,900,000         0
Prior Year Taxes 173,092                70,281                  205,281              90,000                130,000             598,373               243,373               600,000              (1,627)
Other Taxes / Interest 9,424                    33                         33                       1,230                  350                    11,037                 9,457                   15,000                (3,963)

Total Taxes 182,516                70,314                  22,905,314         1,241,230           1,180,350          25,509,410          252,830               25,515,000         (5,590)

Common School Fund -                       -                       -                      580,000              580,000             1,160,000            -                       1,125,947           34,053
County School Fund -                       -                       -                      -                      2,000                 2,000                   -                       2,000                  0
Federal Forest Fees -                       -                       -                      -                      12,000               12,000                 -                       12,000                0
State School Fund (SSF) 26,417,488           6,607,624             19,834,056         19,839,648         12,813,216        78,904,408          33,025,112          78,949,425         (45,017)

Other SSF Revenue 26,417,488           6,607,624             19,834,056         20,419,648         13,407,216        80,078,408          33,025,112          80,089,372         (10,964)
26,600,004           6,677,938             42,739,370         21,660,878         14,587,566        105,587,818        33,277,942          105,604,372       (16,554)

  
High Cost Disability -                       -                       -                      -                      430,000             430,000               -                       430,000              0
Prior Year SSF -                       -                       -                      -                      -                     -                      -                       -                      0
State Restricted -                       -                       -                      -                      -                     -                      -                       -                      0

Other State Revenue -                       -                       -                      -                      430,000             430,000               -                       430,000              0

Tuition / Transportation 1,216                    2,385                    15,885                15,500                63,000               95,601                 3,601                   125,000              (29,399)
Earning on Investment 25,420                  8,959                    31,959                40,000                34,000               131,379               34,379                 135,000              (3,621)
Student Fees / Admissions 19,438                  47,810                  58,310                130,000              190,500             398,248               67,248                 365,000              33,248
Rentals 47,000                  14,928                  34,928                129,000              50,000               260,928               61,928                 225,000              35,928
Donations 10,721                  20,381                  26,381                150,000              90,000               277,102               31,102                 275,000              2,102
Services to other Funds 11,565                  15,697                  15,697                -                      400,000             427,262               27,262                 275,000              152,262
Misc. 101,202                83,071                  140,071              40,000                85,000               366,273               184,273               400,000              (33,727)
MESD Transfer -                       -                       2,150,000           -                      -                     2,150,000            -                       2,150,000           0
Other County Funds -                       2,750                    2,750                  -                      -                     2,750                   2,750                   -                      2,750
Drivers' Education -                       -                       -                      -                      -                     -                      -                       -                      0
Other Federal Revenue -                       -                       -                      -                      -                     -                      -                       -                      0
Child Care Development -                       4,509                    14,509                15,000                10,000               39,509                 4,509                   30,000                9,509
Sale of Fixed Assets -                       -                       -                      -                      5,000                 5,000                   -                       5,000                  0
Bond Proceeds -                       -                       -                      -                      -                     -                      -                       -                      0
TRANFERS -                       -                       -                      -                      -                     -                      -                       -                      0

Total Other Revenue 216,562                200,490                2,490,490           519,500              927,500             4,154,052            417,052               3,985,000           169,052

$26,816,566 $6,878,428 $45,229,860 $22,180,378 $15,945,066 $110,171,870 $33,694,994 $110,019,372 152,498 30.6%
  6,317,330           BFB Budget

Expenditures  
Licensed Salaries 2,956,855             2,921,536             8,841,536           8,880,000           14,750,000        35,428,391          5,878,391            35,960,277         531,886
Support Staff Salaries 1,407,246             936,698                2,736,698           2,700,000           3,900,000          10,743,944          2,343,944            10,736,326         (7,618)
Admin Salaries 1,305,712             444,677                1,334,677           1,335,000           1,365,000          5,340,389            1,750,389            5,294,666           (45,723)
Confidential Salaries 116,454                38,819                  116,619              116,700              121,800             471,573               155,273               465,818              (5,755)
Subs' / Temp Salaries 318,470                304,426                939,426              785,000              1,300,000          3,342,896            622,896               3,493,045           150,149

Total Salaries 6,104,737             4,646,156             13,968,956         13,816,700         21,436,800        55,327,193          10,750,893          55,950,132         622,939

PERS 1,366,200             899,381                2,859,381           2,960,000           4,300,000          11,485,581          2,265,581            11,360,922         (124,659)
FICA 458,143                347,491                1,047,491           1,050,000           1,600,000          4,155,634            805,634               4,262,459           106,825
Insurance 1,493,223             1,065,707             3,365,707           3,450,000           4,990,000          13,298,930          2,558,930            13,656,664         357,734
Other Benefits 214,607                89,560                  324,560              390,000              415,000             1,344,167            304,167               1,399,558           55,391

Total Benefits 3,532,173             2,402,139             7,597,139           7,850,000           11,305,000        30,284,312          5,934,312            30,679,603         395,291

Purchased Services 1,705,082             544,348                3,344,348           3,500,000           4,500,000          13,049,430          2,249,430            13,362,840         313,410
Charter School Payments 2,298,821             470,031                1,650,031           1,770,000           1,180,000          6,898,852            2,768,852            6,719,196           (179,656)
Supplies & Materials 613,534                186,122                476,122              420,000              525,000             2,034,656            799,656               2,148,597           113,941
Capital Outlay 159,957                67,815                  92,815                10,000                60,000               322,772               227,772               292,000              (30,772)
Other Objects 586,680                5,880                    25,880                10,000                168,000             790,560               5,880                   836,958              46,398
Transfers 800,000                -                       -                      -                      -                     800,000               800,000               800,000              0

$15,800,984 $8,322,491 $27,155,291 $27,376,700 $39,174,800 $109,507,775 $23,536,795 $110,789,326 $1,281,551 21.2%

Reserves - Contingency/Unappropriated Ending Balance 5,547,376            

Beginning Cash Balance   $6,866,451 $0   

 $664,095 $116,336,702 Budget

       $7,530,546  
      6.9%  (Percentage of Projected Expenditures)

Expenditure Summary

Salaries 10,750,893        45.7%
Benefits 5,934,312          25.2%
Purchased Serv 5,018,282          21.3%
Supplies 799,656             3.4%
Capital Outlay 227,772             1.0%
Other Objects 5,880                 0.0%
Transfers 800,000             3.4%

 23,536,795$      100.0%

 

GENERAL FUND

Total Formula Revenue

TOTAL REVENUE

TOTAL EXPENDITURES



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 
1331 NW Eastman Parkway 
Gresham, OR  97030-3825 

 
 
 
 
 
 
TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Jim Schlachter 
 Randy Bryant 
 
DATE: December 3, 2015 
 
RE: No. 3 - Personnel Changes:  Resignations/Terminations and New Hires 
 
 
EXPLANATION: The following resignations have been accepted, or terminations 

processed: 
 
 Administrative Resignations/Terminations 
 

Diane Deatherage, Office Manager, Barlow High School.  Notice 
of retirement received September 18, 2015, effective November 30, 
2015.  PERS retirement scheduled for December 1, 2015.  Will 
continue in same assignment on a post-retirement basis through 
June 29, 2016. 

 
 Licensed Resignations/Terminations 
 

Branden Hoefert, Fourth Grade Teacher, Highland Elementary 
School.  Notice of resignation received October 5, 2015, effective 
November 4, 2015. 
 

 Licensed New Hires 
 

Graham Bledsoe, Special Education Intern, Gresham High School.  
Replacing Ann Esteve who has resigned. 
 
Brian Borin, .50 FTE Music Teacher, Hall Elementary School. 
Probationary Contract.  Replacing Cherie Carstensen who has 
retired. 
 
Corbin Calaba, Special Education Teacher, Sam Barlow High 
School and Gresham High School.  Temporary Contract.  New 
FTE. 

 
Ann Campbell, Early Childhood Evaluation Specialist, Student 
Support Services.  Probationary Contract.  Replacing Heather 
Botcheos who has resigned. 



Board of Directors 
Re:  No. 3 - Personnel Changes:  Resignations/Terminations and New Hires 
December 3, 2015 
Page 2 
 
 

Teri Coleman, Fourth Grade Teacher, Highland Elementary 
School.  Temporary Contract.  Replacing Branden Hoefert who 
has resigned. 
 
Kathryn Jordan, 2/3 Blend Teacher, East Orient Elementary 
School.  Temporary Contract. New FTE. 
 
Classified New Hires 
 
Brittany Adams, Educational Assistant Instruction, Hall 
Elementary School.  Replacing Christine Dietrich who has been 
reassigned. 
 
Heath Dorsey, Educational Assistant / Health Assistant, West 
Gresham Elementary School.   Replacing Melanie Fitzgerald who 
has been reassigned. 
 
Vanessa Barranco-Medina, School Community Liaison, East 
Gresham Elementary School.   Replacing Reyna Martinez-
Martinez who has been reassigned. 
 
Tonya Harrington, Educational Assistant 4 – Special Education.  
Replacing Graham Bledsoe who has been reassigned. 
 
Rena (Jeanine) Lino, Educational Assistant 3 – Title I, Hollydale 
Elementary School.  New position. 
 

PRESENTER: Randy Bryant 
 
SUPPLEMENTARY 
MATERIALS: None 
 
RECOMMENDATION: None 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: Consent agenda approval 
 
RHB:tr:lc 



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 
1331 NW Eastman Parkway 
Gresham, OR  97030-3825 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Jim Schlachter 
 James Hiu 
 
DATE: December 3, 2015 
 
RE: No.  4 - Out-of-State Travel 
 
 
EXPLANATION: The administration seeks approval for the following out-of-state 

travel plans: 
 

School Destination Date(s) Group Funds 

Gresham 
HS 

Wrestling 
Tournament 
Vancouver, 
WA 

January  
1-2, 2016 

Wrestling 
Team 

No 
District 
Funds 
Required 

Purpose:  Compete in the annual tournament. 

 
PRESENTER: James Hiu 
 
SUPPLEMENTARY 
MATERIALS: None 
 
RECOMMENDATION: The administration recommends approval of the out-of-state 

travel request listed above. 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: Consent agenda approval 
 
JH:pkh:lc 



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 
1331 NW Eastman Parkway 
Gresham, OR  97030-3825 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Jim Schlachter 
 James Hiu 
 
DATE:  December 3, 2015 
 
RE: No. 5 - Hanna Jordan:  State Water Polo Tournament 
 
 
EXPLANATION: In an effort to recognize students who achieve state champion status 

or its equivalent in school activities and academic programs, tonight 
we have the opportunity to recognize a Sam Barlow High School 
athlete. 

 
 Senior Hanna Jordan was recognized as the Tournament MVP in the 

recent state water polo tournament.  In addition, Hanna was the  
Mt. Hood Conference Player of the Year and made First Team All 
State. 

 
 Of note is the water polo teams from Barlow, both boys and girls, 

came in second in the state competition. 
 
PRESENTER: James Hiu 
 
SUPPLEMENTARY 
MATERIALS: Certificate of Accomplishment 
 
RECOMMENDATION: The administration recommends the board recognize Hanna Jordan 

for her tournament recognition. 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: No formal action is required. 
 
JH:pkh:lc 



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 
1331 NW Eastman Parkway 
Gresham, OR  97030-3825 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Jim Schlachter 
 
DATE: December 3, 2015 
 
RE: No. 6 – Gresham-Barlow Education Foundation Report 
 
 
EXPLANATION: Gresham-Barlow Education Foundation updates are typically 

presented every-other month.  Accordingly, the Foundation’s 
executive director, Vicki Moen, or a representative will be present 
this evening to report on Foundation activities. 

 
PRESENTER: Vicki Moen or a Foundation representative 
 
SUPPLEMENTARY 
MATERIALS: None 
 
RECOMMENDATION: This report is being provided as information only. 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: No action is required. 
 
:lc 



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 
1331 NW Eastman Parkway 
Gresham, OR  97030-3825 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Jim Schlachter 
 Athena Vadnais 
 
DATE: December 3, 2015 
 
RE: No. 7 – Mt. Hood Community College Potential Bond 
 
 
EXPLANATION: Debra Derr, president of Mt. Hood Community College, has 

requested time on this evening’s agenda to inform the board 
about plans to expand MHCC programs and opportunities 
through a potential general obligations bond.  The proposed bond 
will include a new facility to be used to increase educational 
offerings and serve as a community center. 

 
PRESENTER: Jim Schlachter 
 
SUPPLEMENTARY 
MATERIALS: None 
 
RECOMMENDATION: This report is being provided as information only. 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: No action is required. 
 
:lc 



 

GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 
1331 NW Eastman Parkway 
Gresham, OR  97030-3825 

 
 
 
 
 
TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Jim Schlachter 
 Athena Vadnais 
 
DATE: December 3, 2015 
 
RE: No. 8 – Principal for a Day 2015 
 
 
EXPLANATION: The Gresham-Barlow Education Foundation and the Gresham-

Barlow School District joined together to hold a “Principal for a 
Day” event on November 5, 2015. 

 
 On that day, community and business leaders from the Gresham 

area shadowed principals at 14 sites.  This is the 12th year in a row 
our schools have hosted a “Principal for a Day” event. 

 
 During the event, the community leaders had the opportunity to 

visit classrooms, meet with teachers and students, eat lunch in the 
cafeteria, help out on the playground, and much more! 

  
 “Principal for a Day” is held in school districts nationwide and is 

used as a catalyst to strengthen relationships between schools, 
businesses and the wider community.  The aim of “Principal for a 
Day” programs is to: 

 
• Enable business/community leaders to experience firsthand 

the issues facing schools; 
• Engage students in conversations with exemplary role models; 

and 
• Provide fresh business and community contacts for schools. 

 
PRESENTER: Athena Vadnais 
 
SUPPLEMENTARY 
MATERIALS: None 
 
RECOMMENDATION: This report is being provided as information only. 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: No formal action is required. 
 
AV:lc 



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 
1331 NW Eastman Parkway 
Gresham, OR  97030-3825 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Jim Schlachter 
 Athena Vadnais 
 
DATE: December 3, 2015 
 
RE: No. 9 – District Advisory Council (DAC) Report 
 
 
EXPLANATION: The most recent DAC meeting was held on November 19, 2015, at  

Dexter McCarty Middle School.  Sharon Garner and  
John Hartsock attended as the board’s representatives. 

 
 This evening, the board will hear a report concerning the DAC 

meeting. 
 
PRESENTER: Athena Vadnais 
 
SUPPLEMENTARY 
MATERIALS: Minutes of the November 19, 2015, DAC meeting 
 
RECOMMENDATION: This report is being provided as information only. 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: No action is required. 
 
:lc 



_________________________________________ 
DAC Minutes – 11/19/15 
Page 1 of  
AV:XXX 
 

 

             

 
2015-16 

District Advisory Council Meeting 
November 19, 2015 

  

Dexter McCarty Middle School 

 
DAC Members present:  
Deep	
  Creek-­‐Damascus	
   	
   	
   Powell	
  Valley	
  ES	
   Alison	
  Gentry	
  

Casey	
  Schwartz	
  
East	
  Gresham	
  ES	
   Elsie	
  Flowers	
   	
   West	
  Gresham	
  ES	
   Trisha	
  Knobbs	
  
East	
  Orient	
  ES	
   	
   	
   Clear	
  Creek	
  MS	
   Cyndi	
  Smith	
  
Hall	
  ES	
   	
   	
   Dexter	
  McCarty	
  MS	
   Michael	
  Lee	
  Deveney	
  
Highland	
  ES	
   	
   	
   Gordon	
  Russell	
  MS	
   Nick	
  Kemper	
  
Hogan	
  Cedars	
  ES	
   Rick	
  Weiss	
   	
   West	
  Orient	
  MS	
   Candi	
  Blaney	
  
Hollydale	
  ES	
   Tom	
  Sherman	
  

Cyndi	
  Smith	
  
	
   Gresham	
  HS	
   Matt	
  Wells	
  

Kelly	
  Creek	
  ES	
   Kathy	
  Koch	
  
Paul	
  Hartley	
  

	
   Sam	
  Barlow	
  HS	
   Maria	
  Grevstad	
  
Judy	
  Davis	
  

North	
  Gresham	
  ES	
   Diane	
  Spencer	
   	
   Springwater	
  Trail	
  HS	
   Ron	
  Rasmussen	
  
     
School	
  Board	
  Members:	
  Sharon	
  Garner	
  and	
  John	
  Hartsock	
  
	
  
Administrators:	
  Jim	
  Schlachter,	
  Athena	
  Vadnais,	
  Mike	
  Schofield,	
  Teresa	
  Ketelsen,	
  and	
  John	
  
George	
  
	
  

-­‐MINUTES-­‐	
  
	
  

Called	
  To	
  Order	
  
Matt	
  Wells	
  called	
  the	
  meeting	
  to	
  order	
  at	
  7:00	
  p.m.	
  and	
  reviewed	
  the	
  evening’s	
  agenda.	
  
	
  
Principal’s	
  Report	
  –	
  Dexter	
  McCarty	
  Middle	
  School	
  Principal	
  John	
  George	
  
Principal John George presented an overview of Dexter McCarty Middle School and its 
programs. The school serves just over 600 students. Approximately 65% of its students are 
eligible for free or reduced lunch. The school received a grant to expand its AVID (Advancement 
via Individual Determination) Program. Every sixth grader in the school takes a “Strategies for 
Success” class which teaches AVID concepts. Seventh and eighth grade students can also take an 
AVID elective. English language learners learn AVID strategies in their classes as well. The 
school is piloting some advanced classes in social studies, language arts, and math. Next year 
they will ad an advanced science class. District administration will review results of the 
administration in determining if similar programs should be incorporated at other middle 
schools. The school recently revamped its PBIS (Positive Behavioral Interventions and Supports) 
Program incentives/rewards. Pizza with the principal is a big hit! As a way of supporting 
students and promoting appropriate behavior, the school has worked to standardize behavioral 



_________________________________________ 
DAC Minutes – 11/20/15 
Page 2 of 3 
AV:av 
 

expectations school-wide. All teachers/classes have the same expectations for their students. 
 
School	
  Bond	
  Package	
  Update/Feedback-­‐Jim	
  Schlachter	
  and	
  Mike	
  Schofield	
  –	
  DAC	
  
members	
  received	
  an	
  update	
  on	
  the	
  district’s	
  school	
  bond	
  planning	
  process.	
  A	
  Bond	
  
Planning	
  Committee	
  has	
  been	
  meeting	
  since	
  June	
  to	
  create	
  a	
  recommendation	
  for	
  the	
  
school	
  board	
  based	
  on	
  the	
  facility	
  needs	
  of	
  our	
  schools.	
  The	
  school	
  board	
  could	
  choose	
  to	
  
place	
  a	
  school	
  bond	
  proposal	
  on	
  a	
  future	
  ballot.	
  A	
  recommendation	
  from	
  the	
  committee	
  is	
  
expected	
  to	
  be	
  presented	
  to	
  the	
  school	
  board	
  in	
  January	
  of	
  2016.	
  The	
  committee	
  is	
  made	
  up	
  
of	
  community	
  members,	
  parents,	
  students,	
  and	
  staff.	
  The	
  committee	
  has	
  formed	
  several	
  
subcommittees	
  to	
  take	
  an	
  in-­‐depth	
  look	
  at	
  key	
  areas,	
  to	
  include	
  enrollment,	
  school	
  safety,	
  
community	
  use,	
  and	
  long-­‐term	
  maintenance.	
  Program	
  needs	
  at	
  the	
  elementary,	
  middle	
  
school,	
  and	
  high	
  school	
  levels	
  are	
  also	
  being	
  reviewed.	
  High	
  school	
  visioning	
  sessions	
  have	
  
been	
  conducted	
  at	
  the	
  district’s	
  two	
  large	
  high	
  schools	
  to	
  gather	
  feedback	
  from	
  school	
  staff,	
  
parents,	
  and	
  the	
  community.	
  A	
  community	
  survey	
  was	
  conducted	
  in	
  late	
  October	
  to	
  
determine	
  which	
  types	
  of	
  projects	
  voters	
  value	
  most.	
  The	
  Bond	
  Measure	
  Planning	
  
Committee	
  is	
  using	
  feedback	
  collected	
  through	
  school	
  meetings	
  and	
  through	
  the	
  telephone	
  
survey	
  to	
  assist	
  them	
  in	
  putting	
  together	
  a	
  recommendation.	
  At	
  the	
  November	
  19	
  meeting,	
  
DAC	
  members	
  were	
  asked	
  a	
  series	
  of	
  questions	
  that	
  were	
  used	
  in	
  the	
  telephone	
  survey	
  and	
  
used	
  electronic	
  clickers	
  to	
  share	
  their	
  feedback.	
  	
  
	
  
District	
  Interaction	
  with	
  the	
  Board	
  –	
  Board	
  of	
  Directors	
  
Sharon	
  Garner	
  and	
  John	
  Hartsock	
  presented	
  information	
  regarding	
  the	
  role	
  of	
  the	
  school	
  
board	
  when	
  it	
  comes	
  to	
  planning	
  for	
  a	
  future	
  school	
  bond.	
  	
  
	
  
Adjournment	
  
The	
  meeting	
  was	
  adjourned	
  at	
  approximately	
  8:55	
  p.m.	
  
	
  
Minutes	
  submitted	
  by:	
  
Athena	
  Vadnais	
  
DAC	
  Administrative	
  Liaison	
  
	
  



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 
1331 NW Eastman Parkway 
Gresham, OR  97030-3825 

 
 
 
 
 
TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Jim Schlachter 
 Mike Schofield 
 
DATE: December 3, 2015 
 
RE: No. 10 – Bond Measure Planning Committee 
 
 
EXPLANATION: The Gresham-Barlow School District Board of Directors acted on 

March 5, 2015, to convene a Bond Measure Planning Committee to 
serve as an advisory committee to the board, and authorized the 
superintendent to appoint its members. 

 
 The tasks identified by the board for the Bond Measure Planning 

Committee are as follows: 
  

1) To review the existing Long-Range Facility Plan adopted in 2012 
and additional items related to facilities, and  
 

2) To provide a recommendation to the board in late winter of 2015 
or early spring of 2016 regarding the timing and scope of a bond 
measure, if any. 

 
 The most recent committee meeting was held on on November 17, 

2015, at West Gresham Elementary School.  Minutes from that 
meeting are included with this summary. 

 
 The next meeting will be held on December 1, 2015, 5:30 p.m., at Sam 

Barlow High School.  
 
PRESENTER: Mike Schofield 
 
SUPPLEMENTARY Minutes of the November 17, 2015, Bond Measure Planning 
MATERIALS: Committee meeting 
 
RECOMMENDATION: This report is being provided as information only. 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: No action is required at this time. 
 
:lc 



 
 

 
GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BOND MEASURE PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING 
Tuesday, November 17, 2015 

 
MEETING MINUTES 

	
  
 
The meeting was convened at 6:15 p.m. at West Gresham Elementary School, 330 W. 
Powell Boulevard, Gresham, OR. 
 
Members present were: Tim Brunner, Dan Dalzell, Jason Dugan, Tim Frazier, Ashley 
Graff, John Eddy Hall, Cyrus Harshfield, Ian Hawes, Nick Hymel, Katie Krueger, Bob 
Lilly, Chloe Melton, Kyra Mudder, Kyle Noyes, Brent Parry, Kathy Ruthruff, Lori 
Stegmann, Bess Wills, and Mark Wreath. 
 
Members absent were: Bob Avila, Rhonda Bordine, , Stella Deters, Mark Eisenzimmer, 
Mike Hill, Rhett Hyman, Ebonie Johnson, Hannah Kim, John Malowney, Matt Miller, 
Molly Stewart, Jacob Tavera, Ulises Ubaldo, Dwight Unti. 
 
District Staff:  Janell Black, Randy Bryant, Julie Evans, Sara Hahn, James Hiu, Jim 
Schlachter, Mike Schofield, Terry Taylor, and Athena Vadnais. 
 
Guests present:  John Hartsock, Mishawn Nelson, and Jeff Hardin. 

Presenters: Melissa Martin (The Nelson Report), Scott Rose, Karen Montovino, and Kelli 
Stewart (DLR)  
 
Scott Rose, of DLR Group, opened the meeting with a brief recap of the October 13, 2015 
workshop. He reviewed the bond presentation that Carol Samuels presented, reminding 
everyone that this presentation was a bond talk, not a presentation to define an amount. 
 
He then discussed the agenda items for the evening’s meeting, what was going to be 
presented; the Nelson Report and the High School Visioning presentation; what needed 
to be accomplished, a facilities plan components prioritization; and what was going to 
occur at the December meeting. The December meeting will include the conversation of 
what are the priorities. He then went over guiding principles of the committee and their 
goals.  
 
Scott then turned the meeting over to Melissa Martin of The Nelson Report for her 
presentation on the phone polling results. 
 
 
NELSON REPORT PRESENTATION – PHONE POLLING RESULTS 
The purpose of the phone survey was to test what the community sees as its priorities. 
There were 383 respondents, the polling was done in October. With this number of 
respondents there is 95% confidence in the accuracy of the results, +/- 5%. The survey 



Gresham-Barlow School District 
Bond Measure Planning Committee Meeting Minutes 
Tuesday, November 17, 2015 
	
  
	
  

	
   	
   Page	
  2	
  of	
  6	
  

contained open ended questions, which allowed for greater input in insightfulness of the 
participants. The following is a summary of the questions and results. In the full report 
there are additional charts reflecting summaries of the information with additional 
information on the respondent’s responses. 
 
“What are the most serious issues facing the school district” 

• Lack of funding and overcrowded classes, and buildings in poor condition were 
the top three reasons 

“Please rate the performance of district” 
• 50% rated the district Pretty Good to Excellent 
• It is important to note that these results are consistent with districts around the 

state. People don’t perceive public entities like they used to. 
“Please rate the physical condition of school buildings” 

• 45% rated the buildings negatively, 36% positively, and 19% were unsure. 
• The ratings were based largely on outside building view, very few of the 

individuals actually see the inside of a building 
“Where do they get their information on the district” 

• Most respondents receive their main information from personal experience/work 
in the district, followed by The Gresham Outlook, or GBSD staff and students. 

“Who or what do you believe are the most credible sources of information regarding the 
district” 

• Students topped the list followed by teachers, parents were third  
 

Next there was a priority ranking of the individual priorities, in a High, Low and Not 
Sure ranking. The highest ranking priorities were Infrastructure, CTE classes and energy 
improvements. What came out of these questions was that people want their students to 
be able to get a good paying job after graduation in case they are not going to go to 
college. 
 
The following options were presented for a preference choice: “There were two options 
presented for the closure of Damascus Middle School. Move students to a new Orient 
Middle School at a cost of 13.5 million or Remodel Deep Creek Elementary to be a K-8 
school at the cost of 11 million.” 

• Well over half selected the remodel Deep Creek option 
 
Next respondents were given information on options for West Gresham Elementary 
School “Preserve building for a different community use” or “Tear down and replace 
building with new school” 

• 61% preferred to preserve the building. 
 
When asked whether they favored or opposed remodeling, expanding and improving 
community spaces (gyms/fields/community spaces) 64% said yes.  Melissa noted that 
she found it interesting that they voted one way on this, but prioritized quite differently. 
That suggests that they want these things, but they don’t want to pay for them. 
 
The respondents were then asked if they were willing to approve a bond measure to 
address school facility needs, and how much they would be willing to pay, and 31% said 
they were willing to pay 1$-$100 more per year, 24% were not willing to pay anything. 
10% $151-$200, and 19% were from a range of $100 to $300. So 60% said they are willing 



Gresham-Barlow School District 
Bond Measure Planning Committee Meeting Minutes 
Tuesday, November 17, 2015 
	
  
	
  

	
   	
   Page	
  3	
  of	
  6	
  

to pay more per year.  Melissa stated that this serves as an important reminder to be 
careful in deciding the amount of the bond. Making sure that the bond is in the 
neighborhood of the amount of money that the community is willing to spend. 
 
They then took priorities and stacked them against each other, asking respondents to 
rate, by priority, statements regarding: 
 Priority 1: Tech/Vocation/STEM Components 
 Priority 2: Energy Improvements 
 Priority 3: Safety and Security Improvements 
 Priority 4: Repair and Maintenance Upgrades (as we move forward with 

proposal talk about protecting essential items on this list) 
 Priority 5: West Gresham Elementary (Melissa believes that the community 

doesn’t understand why West is no longer a viable building for an elementary 
school. 

 
The final group of rankings were Agree/Disagree statements in descending order of 
Agreement on the 1-5 priorities that had been compressed to a narrative of how the 
priorities would affect the students, district, and community. The results were a good 
indicator that people are concerned with the cost – pay attention to this as we move 
forward. There is a much greater chance of success if we offer what it is they want to pay 
for. 
 
Summary findings. This survey recommends not going over 150 per year increase. 
Melissa thinks that it’s good that although we didn’t pass the last bond the community 
is still willing to talk with us about a bond for facility improvement.  
 
Mike Schofield said that these results would be passed on to members, and would also 
be posted to the bond website. 
 
Katie Krueger said that she was disappointed in some of the long range plan results, but 
was encouraged by the CTE support. Other members of the committee agreed. Bess 
Wills talked about career programs (CTE) that have been eliminated from our systems, 
and why it’s important that we continue to support these types of programs.  
 
Scott noted that the survey was taken over a month ago, and there has been a lot 
additional information that has been acquired since that time. This polling provided us 
with a lot of information, and as we go through this process, there will be another 
opportunity to find out how the community is feeling.  There will be another survey in 
January, and at that time it will be possible to begin making comparisons. Scott thinks 
that what we are seeing in this poll is not unusual. It’s important to remember that this 
initial survey was taken to help guide the process and gather information so we would 
know what the community would and would not support. Kathy Ruthruff was happy to 
hear that the community finally understands that West Gresham ES cannot continue to 
be used for a school. Melissa shared that we need to get more information out on West 
Gresham, especially to our older voters.  
  
Mark Wreath believes that combining the seismic priorities with security is having an 
effect on the where it is falling on the priorities list. Melissa agreed and suggests that as 
we move forward we separate security from seismic, as the community’s response to the 
importance of security is very different then their response to seismic.   
 



Gresham-Barlow School District 
Bond Measure Planning Committee Meeting Minutes 
Tuesday, November 17, 2015 
	
  
	
  

	
   	
   Page	
  4	
  of	
  6	
  

Mishawn Nelson suggested we share with the community more information about what 
we would do if we did close West Gresham Elementary School. 
 
Karen Montovino and Kelli Stewart then presented the components review of the high 
school visioning. 
 
HIGH SCHOOL VISIONING PRESENTATION 
 
DLR met with both community members and staff to start exploring what the options 
are at both Barlow and Gresham High School. This was not an exercise in how it was 
going to all come together, it was an exercise in what are the options and how could and 
would this work. This type of exercise will help with visioning process. Each group took 
one high school and looked at the property it is currently on, the surrounding property, 
the current arrangement of the building or buildings, fields, and parking options and 
then rearranged the schools to better meet the educational needs of the high school.  
 
Kelli began the presentation with the Gresham High School Group.  They first looked at 
the site itself, and the surrounding property. They looked at how they could take the 
existing configuration of buildings and move them to be more effective in meeting the 
priorities of GHS. They looked at parking, and then really focused on what programs 
were offered, and how the arrangement could best meet the needs of the programs. The 
GHS theater program is an acclaimed program so they felt that would be one of their 
primary focuses. Their final Phase 1 was replacement or improvement of Performing 
Arts Center, Entry/Admin/Media, Classrooms (extra for CTE & Science), Commons, 
Gym/Lockers/Bleachers, Site, and Child Care. A Budget break-down of their Initial 
Concept Plan was provided. 
 
The group decided on a Phase 1 option for current bond and then Phase 2 for future 
bonds. And decided a good option for future development would be a 2 or 3 floor 
model. 
 
Karen then presented the Barlow High School group information.  This group focused 
on “what are the priorities”, and looked at BHS from the eyes of students, community, 
and staff. The group found natural light, the CTE program, common spaces, and the 
football field arrangement were the items that needed to be most focused on. As they 
were working through their designs they kept in mind the question, “How can we bring 
daylight and light into this building”. 
 
The BHS group also felt a Phase 1, Phase 2 approach was best. To decide what could be 
accomplished in Phase 1, the group divided into two different group, each coming up 
with a design. They then put together a final design that was a culmination of ideas that 
worked best together. There was a lot of feedback from teachers and the community 
received, and it focused mostly on learning spaces. So the final design came down to, 
what to do to improve the students learning spaces. The group’s design included 
replacement or improvement of the Performing Arts Center, the Entry/Admin, 
Classrooms (extra for science), CTE, Commons, and the Gym/Bleachers/Fields. A 
Budget break-down of their Initial Concept Plan was provided. 
 
Kathy Ruthruff was excited to hear about a science wing, but has concerns about the 
Bull Run water pipes that run through the property. Mike Schofield shared with the 



Gresham-Barlow School District 
Bond Measure Planning Committee Meeting Minutes 
Tuesday, November 17, 2015 
	
  
	
  

	
   	
   Page	
  5	
  of	
  6	
  

group that the district was aware of the pipes and that Terry Taylor knows where they 
are if anyone would like that information. 
 
Scott reminded everyone that these are not the designs for the high schools. These are 
just ideas to be shared. He explained that the reason DLR gives detailed handouts of 
ideas and information to the group is for the information to be shared beyond the group. 
They feel that the more information provided on the handouts, the clearer the vision 
shared. These high school diagrams were for the two groups to be able to look at the 
school sites and know what components need to be addressed. 
 
FACILITIES PLAN COMPONENTS PRIORITIZATION 
 
Scott then shared with the group a 2016 Bond Projects Outline and Long Term Master 
Plan “Concepts”. This outline is a culmination of everything that has been prioritized. 
DLR reviewed what was on the list and arrived at budget cost for each project/item. 
This outline displays the information in 2 ways, first by school, and then by concept. 
 
He explained that using these projects with their budgets the committee would be doing 
a Facilities Plan Components Prioritization exercise. Each project with budget is on a 
separate card, similar to money. Each group is to prioritize their “money” deciding what 
really is their priority and which would lead them to what they want would want the 
total cost of the bond to be. Scott had everyone divide into four groups, and they were 
given Projects/money, along with a board to construct their priorities and pens for 
titling.  
 
Scott suggested this break-out exercise will help answer the question – what are our 
priorities? And reminded everyone to think about “what do we have to have in this first 
phase”. 
 
Everyone broke out into groups and began to create their plan. He gave the group 45 
minutes to complete their prioritization. Each group presented an overview of their 
priorities. DLR will summarize these and share the results at December’s meeting. 
 
Scott reflected on how much information has come from this group in a short time. The 
committee’s first meeting was in June. And in over 5 ½ months the committee has been 
brainstorming on ideas. And then the committee is asked to do this exercise in 45 
minutes. He understands it’s difficult to come up with answers on how to make this 
happen, what is in the best interest of kids; knowing that everyone wants to be in a safe 
building and a healthy building. This exercise will help provide that valuable 
information. 
 
DLR will be putting the information together and will share it with the group. Scott 
wants to have the plan outlined by the Dec 1 meeting – “these are the important 
components, this is the recommendation”.  
 
He asked that everyone keep January 12 open as a potential final workshop. There will 
be an executive summary that will need to be put together and that will require 
background information as well.  
 
Kathy Ruthruff requested that the polling results be shared with the board. Mike 
Schofield let everyone know that it would be posted the next day. Kathy noted that it’s 



Gresham-Barlow School District 
Bond Measure Planning Committee Meeting Minutes 
Tuesday, November 17, 2015 
	
  
	
  

	
   	
   Page	
  6	
  of	
  6	
  

not only about the bond, it’s also about where the district currently is. We may want to 
have another survey so they can make an informed decision. 
 
 
SMALL GROUP REPORT OUT OF PRIORITIES  
 
The information from the small groups was provided in handout only.  
 
 
WRAP UP AND NEXT STEPS 
 
Nov 17 - DAC Meeting 
 
Next Workshop #7 – December 1 – Sam Barlow High School – 5:30 tour, 6:30 meeting. 
 
Workshop #8 (New Workshop) – January 12 – West Orient Middle School 
 
January 21 - Presentation of Draft Plan to school board. (First reading) 
 
Scott recommends the board have a decision no later than March. This would provide 
time to have some community forums.  
 
After closing comments from Scott Rose the meeting adjourned at approximately 8:30 
p.m. 
 
Minutes submitted by:  Lynne Hill 



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 
1331 NW Eastman Parkway 
Gresham, OR  97030-3825 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM:  Jim Schlachter 
  James Hiu 
 
DATE:  December 3, 2015 
 
RE: No. 11 - Acceptance of A Financial Donation from East Hill Church 
 
 
EXPLANATION: Gresham-Barlow School District has been offered a 

donation of $12,000 from East Hill Church to support the 
SUN credit recovery program at Gresham High School. 

 
 This after-school support program has been very 

successful at providing academic support to a large 
number of students.  The SUN credit recovery program is 
made possible in the 2015-2016 school year because of this 
generous donation. 

 
PRESENTER James Hiu 
 
SUPPLEMENTARY 
MATERIALS: None 
 
RECOMMENDATION: The administration recommends the board accept the 

donation of $12,000 from East Hill Church to support the 
SUN Credit Recovery program at Gresham High School. 

 
REQUESTED ACTION: Move to accept the donation of $12,000 from East Hill 

Church to support the SUN Credit Recovery program at 
Gresham High School as presented for first reading. 

 
JH:pkh:lc 



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 
1331 NW Eastman Parkway 
Gresham, OR  97030-3825 

 
 
 
 
 
TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Jim Schlachter 
 Mike Schofield 
 
DATE: December 3, 2015 
 
RE:  No. 12 – Budget Committee Appointment 
 
 
EXPLANATION: In October 2015, the administration was made aware that a budget 

committee member, Margaret Collins, was hired as an employee 
of the district.  By statute, employees of the district may not serve 
on the budget committee.   

 
 In September, the board chair and vice–chair interviewed five 

applicants to fill two open budget committee positions.  Since 
interviews have already taken place, the board chair and vice-
chair are comfortable making an additional recommendation for 
the newly-opened position. 

 
 Copies of all applications were forwarded to the board in August. 
 
 Eligibility requirements for budget committee members are as 

follows: 
  

1. The candidate must live in the district. 
2. The candidate may not be an officer or employee of the 

district. 
3. The candidate must be a registered voter in the district. 

 
PRESENTER: Mike Schofield 
 
SUPPLEMENTARY  
MATERIALS: Budget committee application for Kasey Jackson 
 
RECOMMENDATION: The administration recommends appointment to fill the newly-

opened budget committee vacancy. 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: Move to appoint Kasey Jackson to the open budget committee 

Position 2 for the remaining term expiring June 30, 2016. 
 
MS:mkh:lc 







GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 
1331 NW Eastman Parkway 
Gresham, OR  97030-3825 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Jim Schlachter 
 Mike Schofield 
 
DATE: December 3, 2015 
 
RE:  No. 13 – Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 
 
 
EXPLANATION: The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for 2014-2015 was 

presented for first reading at the November 5, 2015, board 
meeting by Matt Graves from Pauly, Rogers, and Co., P.C. 

 
 It has been the board’s practice to take formal action to accept the 

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report as presented by the 
auditors. 

 
PRESENTER: Mike Schofield 
 
SUPPLEMENTARY 
MATERIALS: Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for 2014-2015 
 
RECOMMENDATION: The administration recommends acceptance of the 2014-2015 

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report as presented for second 
reading. 

 
REQUESTED ACTION: Move to accept the 2014-2015 Comprehensive Annual Financial 

Report. 
 
MS:mkh:lc 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT 
Gresham, Oregon 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  
 

 
Prepared by: 

Business Office: 
 

Michael D. Schofield, Chief Finance Officer 
 

Gina Sanstrum, Director of Finance



 

 

 
 

 
 

  
 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank 
 



 

 

 GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT  
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
 
            Page 
INTRODUCTORY SECTION   
 
Letter of Transmittal ................................................................................................................................... i 
2014-15 Superintendent’s Cabinet – Organization Chart  ....................................................................... vii 
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting ........................................................... viii 
Certificate of Excellence in Financial Reporting ........................................................................................ ix 
Elected and Appointed Officials ................................................................................................................ x 
 
FINANCIAL SECTION 
 
  Independent Auditors’ Report ............................................................................................................. 1 
 
  REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 
    Management’s Discussion and Analysis .......................................................................................... 3 
 
  BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
   Government-wide Financial Statements: 

Statement of Net Position .......................................................................................................... 13 
Statement of Activities ............................................................................................................... 14 

   Fund Financial Statements: 
Balance Sheet – Governmental Funds ...................................................................................... 15 
Reconciliation of Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to  
   Statement of Net Position ....................................................................................................... 16 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in 
   Fund Balance – Governmental Funds .................................................................................... 17 
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes 
   in Fund Balance of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities ................................. 18 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in  

   Fund Balance – Budget and Actual – General Fund  .. ……………………………………19 
                                                                      – Federal Grant Fund .................... ………………..20  
Fiduciary Financial Statements            
   Statement of Fiduciary Net Position........................................................................................ 21 

                Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position ..................................................................... 22 
   Notes to the Basic Financial Statements ............................................................................................. 23 
 
  REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 
    Schedule of Funding Progress and Schedule of Employer Contributions – 
                           Early Retirement Program ........................................................................................... 44 
                           Post Employment Health Care Benefit Program .......................................................... 45 
     Oregon Public Employees Retirement System  
                           Schedule of District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability ....................... 46 
                           Schedule of District Contributions ................................................................................ 46   



 

 

 
GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT 

TABLE OF CONTENTS (Continued) 
 Page 
FINANCIAL SECTION (Continued)  
 
  SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 
   Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in 
       Fund Balance – Budget and Actual – Capital Projects Fund ........................................................... 47 
    Non-Major Governmental Funds Combining Statements: 
    Combining Balance Sheet .................................................................................................................. 48 
    Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance ............................ 49  
   Detail Budget Reports: 
    Schedule of Detailed Revenues – Budget and Actual – General Fund ............................................... 50  
    Schedule of Detailed Expenditures – Budget and Actual – General Fund ..................................... 51-52   
    Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in  
       Fund Balance – Budget and Actual: 
          Nutrition Services Fund   .............................................................................................................. 53  
          Federal Grant Fund ...................................................................................................................... 54 
    Schedule of Detailed Expenditures – Budget and Actual – Federal Grant Fund ................................. 55 
    Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in  
        Fund Balance – Budget and Actual:  State and Other Grant Fund ................................................. 56 
    Schedule of Detailed Expenditures – Budget and Actual – State and Other Grant Fund.................... 57              
    Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in  
        Fund Balance – Budget and Actual:  Other Special Revenue Fund ............................................... 58 
    Schedule of Detailed Expenditures – Budget and Actual – Other Special Revenue Fund .................. 59     
    Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in  
        Fund Balance – Budget and Actual:  Debt Service Fund ................................................................ 60 
    Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in  
        Fund Balance – Budget and Actual:  Capital Projects Fund ........................................................... 61 
    Schedule of Detailed Expenditures – Budget and Actual – Capital Projects Funds ............................ 62 
    Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in  
        Fund Balance – Budget and Actual:   Pension Trust Fund…………………………………………… . 63 

Agency Fund -- Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities ......................................................... 64 
   Schedule of Bond Redemption and Interest Requirements………………………………………………...65 
   Schedule of Property Tax Transactions ............................................................................................... 66 
     
  OTHER INFORMATION 
 
    Comparative Schedule of Student Activity Funds by School .............................................................. 67 
    Supplemental Information as Required by the Oregon State 
         Department of Education………………………………………………………………………………. ... 68 
    Supplemental Information as Required by the Oregon State 
         Department of Education – Schedule of Revenues……. ............................................................... 69 
    Supplemental Information as Required by the Oregon State 
         Department of Education – Schedule of Special Revenue Fund Expenditures……. ..................... 70 
 
 



 

 

GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT 
TABLE OF CONTENTS (Continued) 

 
 Page 

 
STATISTICAL SECTION 
 
 Net Position by Component ................................................................................................................... 71 
 Changes in Net Position ........................................................................................................................ 72 
 Fund Balances, Governmental Funds ................................................................................................... 73 
 Changes in Fund Balances .................................................................................................................... 74 
 Assessed Value and Actual Value of Taxable Property ......................................................................... 75 
 Largest Taxpayers Within District .......................................................................................................... 76 
 Property Tax Rates – Direct and Overlapping Governments ................................................................. 77 
 Property Tax Levies and Collection ....................................................................................................... 78 
 Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding and Legal Debt Margin .................................................... 79 
 Direct and Overlapping Gross Bonded Debt .......................................................................................... 80 
 Demographic and Economic Statistics .................................................................................................. 81 
 Principal Employers ............................................................................................................................... 82 
 Full-Time Equivalent District Employees by Function  ........................................................................... 83 
 Licensed Professional Salary Plan ........................................................................................................ 84 
 Operating Statistics ................................................................................................................................ 85 
 Capital Asset Information ....................................................................................................................... 86 
 
REPORTS ON LEGAL AND OTHER REGULARTORY COMPLIANCE 
 
  Independent Auditors’ Report Required by Oregon State Regulations ................................................. 87 
                                                
  Grant Compliance Review:   
 
   Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Supplementary Information) ................................... 89 
   Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance and on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
      and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed 
      in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards ....................................................................... 91 
   Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on 
      Internal Control over Compliance Required by OMB Circular A-133 ............................................... 93 
  Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs ....................................................................................... 95 
 



 

 

 
 

 
 

  
 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank 
 



 

 

INTRODUCTORY SECTION 
 



 

 

 
 

 
 

  
 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank 
 



i 

f 
      Jim Schlachter, Superintendent      

          Gresham-Barlow School District No. 10Jt
 1331                      1331    NW Eastman Parkway, Gresham, OR 97030-3825     Phone: (503) 261-4550 
   Sc                                www.gresham.k12.or.us                Fax:  (503) 261-4554

October 12, 2015 

Board of Education and Citizens 
Gresham-Barlow School District 10JT 
1331 NW Eastman Parkway 
Gresham, OR 97030 

In accordance with the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes Sections 297.405 through 297.555, known as Municipal 
Audit Law, submitted herewith is the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of Gresham-Barlow School District 
10JT, Multnomah and Clackamas counties, Oregon for the year ended June 30, 2015. 

This report was prepared by the Business Office of Gresham-Barlow School District 10JT.  The responsibility for the 
completeness, fairness, and accuracy of the data presented and all accompanying disclosures rests with the District.  To 
provide a reasonable basis for making these representations, the District’s management has established a 
comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both to protect the government’s assets from loss, theft, or 
misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the District’s financial statements in conformity 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP).  Because the cost of internal 
controls should not outweigh their benefits, the District’s comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed 
to provide reasonable rather that absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement.  
As management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all 
material respects. 

INDEPENDENT AUDIT 

The District’s financial statements have been audited by Pauly, Rogers and Co., P. C., a firm of licensed certified public 
accountants.  The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the basic financial statements 
of the District for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, are free of material misstatement.  The independent audit involved 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the basic financial statements; assessing 
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall basic financial 
statement presentation.  The independent auditor concluded based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for 
rendering an unqualified opinion that the District’s basic financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, are 
fairly presented in conformity with GAAP.  The independent auditor’s report is presented as the first component of the 
Financial Section of this report, beginning on page 1. 

The independent audit of the District’s basic financial statements was part of a broader, federally mandated “Single Audit” 
designed to meet the special requirements of federal grantor agencies.  The standards governing Single Audit 
engagements require the independent auditor to report not only on the fair presentation of the basic financial statements, 
but also on the audited government’s internal controls and compliance with legal requirements, with special emphasis on 
internal controls and legal requirements involving the administration of federal awards.  These reports are available in the 
Single Audit Section of this report, beginning on page 89. 



ii 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basis 
financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A).  This letter of transmittal is designed 
to complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it.  The District’s MD&A can be found immediately 
following the report of the independent auditors, beginning on page 3. 
THE DISTRICT 

Gresham-Barlow School District 10JT is a unified District, established June 1, 1994, which includes the former Gresham 
Grade (established in 1884), Orient (established in 1853), Damascus Union (established in 1876), Barlow-Gresham Union 
High (established in 1902) School Districts, and that portion of Boring School District which was served by the Union High 
School District prior to unification.  The Barlow-Gresham Union High School District Board of Directors remained the 
governing Board and the policies of the high school district remained intact.  The District was given a new name and the 
Board of Directors was increased from a five-member Board to a seven-member Board. 

The District is one of the ten largest districts in the State of Oregon.  The District covers approximately 54 square miles 
serving the communities of Boring, Damascus, Gresham and Orient located in Multnomah and Clackamas Counties.  The 
District area population has grown to approximately 80,000.  The District enrollment boundaries include part of the City of 
Gresham, located in east Multnomah County approximately 12 miles east of Portland; it is the second largest city within 
the Portland metropolitan area and the fourth largest city in Oregon. 

The District serves approximately 11,100 students in kindergarten through grade twelve, and presently operates eleven 
elementary schools, five middle schools and three high schools. 

Seven Board members are elected, four to zoned positions and three at large from within the District, to four-year terms. 
The Board of Directors is the governing body and is exclusively responsible for its public decisions.  The Board of 
Directors establishes the policies of the District, appoints the management of the District and is accountable for all fiscal 
matters, which significantly influence operations.  The Board of Directors, together with seven appointed citizens, 
comprises the fourteen member Budget Committee.  In addition, citizens take an active role in the District’s schools 
through volunteer programs, advisory boards, site committees and parent groups. 

The District is a fiscally independent taxing entity and is not a component of Multnomah or Clackamas Counties or any 
other government.  As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, all significant 
activities and organizations have been included in the financial statements.   

Oregon statute provides state funding for charter schools that flows through the district for schools that local boards of 
education have granted a charter.  The District has granted charters to three schools in operation during the 2014-15 
fiscal year; Gresham Arthur Academy, Lewis and Clark Montessori and Metro East Web Academy.  The Center for 
Advanced Learning (CAL), a charter school, is reported by the District as a joint venture as described in notes to the 
financial statements (Note 13). 

APPROPRIATIONS AND BUDGETARY CONTROLS 

The Board is required by the State of Oregon to adopt an annual budget for all funds subject to the requirements of Local 
Budget Law as outlined in the Oregon Revised Statutes 294.305 through 294.565, inclusive, by no later than the close of 
the fiscal year.  The District’s budget is governed by the Oregon Department of Revenue to ensure that the District 
remains in compliance with Oregon Budget Law.  The annual budget serves as a management tool to enhance 
performance efficiency and effectiveness, a financial system to account for revenues and expenditures, and a control 



iii

mechanism to ensure public money is spent as it is authorized.   The budget also provides the authority to levy property 
taxes. 

Consistent with Oregon law, expenditures are appropriated for each legally adopted annual operating budget at the 
following levels of control:  

 Instruction 
 Support Services 
 Community Services 
 Facilities acquisition and construction 
 Debt Service 
 Operating Contingencies/Fund Transfers 

Budgetary appropriations may not be legally over-expended except in the case of reimbursable grant expenditures and 
trust monies which could not be reasonably estimated at the time the budget was adopted.  After the original budget is 
adopted, the Board may approve appropriation transfers between levels of control.   The Board may approve 
supplemental appropriations if any occurrence, condition or need exists which had not been anticipated at the time the 
budget was adopted through procedures specified in State statute and Board policy.   

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND LONG-TERM FINANCIAL PLANNING 

The Office of Economic Analysis (OEA) reported that Oregon added 47,400 jobs in 2014 or an increase of 2.8 percent. 
Arizona State University W.P. Carey School of Business, places Oregon 6th in the nation for job growth in December, 
2014.  Oregon ranked 11th in the nation for job growth in 2013, with growth of 2.1 percent and 31st in the nation in 2012 
with growth of .9 percent.    Oregon’s unemployment rate sits at 6.6 percent for March 2015, down from the high of 11.6 
percent in June 2009.  OEA reports that Oregon has averaged just under 2 percent growth since the Great Recession 
and the forecast is a peak growth of 2.6 percent over the 2014-16 time frame.  

OEA reported that Oregon’s population is estimated to have reached 3,831,074 in 2010.  Oregon gained 409,550 persons 
between 2000 and 2010 a 12 percent growth, down from a decade ago of 20.4 percent growth.  Oregon’s population 
growth during the most recent decade was the second lowest since 1900.  The slowest was during the 1980’s when 
Oregon was hit hard by another recession.  Oregon’s economic condition heavily influences the state’s population growth. 
The economy determines the ability to attract job seekers from other states and beyond as Oregon’s population growth is 
dependent on net in-migration.  Oregon’s population is expected to continue a slow pace of growth in the near future. 
Oregon’s population is anticipated to reach 4.35 million by 2022, with an annual rate of growth of 1.16% between 2014 
and 2022.  The growth in K-12 population (aged 5-17) will remain low which will translate into slow growth in school 
enrollments for the State.  The school-age population has actually declined in size in recent years and will grow in the 
future at well below the overall state average.   

District enrollment for 2014-15 as measured in September was fourteen students higher than the District projected, but 
approximately 390 students lower than projected by Portland State University Population Research Center enrollment 
forecast performed February, 2012.  Due to the important relationship between funding and enrollment, the District will 
continue to carefully review future projections.   

For the 2009-10 school year, the District was required to reduce its budget by 10% or $11 million, due to a plummet in 
state funding.  For the 2010-11 school year, a shortfall in state funding required the District to reduce its budget by 5%, or 
$5 million.  The District made up for a large portion of this shortfall through the reduction of eight days during the school 
year.  For the 2011-13 biennium revenues were about the same as in 2009-11, however Public Employees Retirement 
System (PERS) rates increased requiring approximately $3 million increase per fiscal year over 2010-11.  Key reductions 



iv 

for 2011-13 biennium include, five budget reduction days, reduction in force of over 40 licensed full-time equivalent (FTE) 
positions, 2.0 administrative FTE and 13.0 Title I funded classified FTE, school supplies budget reduced by 10%, Outdoor 
school reduced from 6 to 3 days, $50,000 reduced from HS co-curricular programs, $100,000 reduced from technology, 
and $250,000 reduced from maintenance.  The staff reduction increased class sizes by approximately two students per 
classroom.  Over the last five years FTE has been reduce by over 140 positions or approximately 13%.   

Again in 2013-14, we were faced with reductions as PERS rates continued to climb and state funding has not kept up. 
However the 2013 Oregon Legislative Assembly Special Session passed House Bill 5101 providing an additional $100 
million for the State School Fund.  In adopting this additional funding the legislature intended that it be used to hire 
additional teachers and/or other education professionals in order to decrease class size, add back days to the school year 
and increase instructional time for students for the second half of the 2013-15 biennium. 

Over the past five years, due to budget constraints, the District has engaged the community in prioritizing the areas where 
reductions had to be made.  Difficult reductions were made with the basic premise in mind—preserve the core.  With an 
increase in available revenue for 2014-15, we are able to maintain staffing and provide a full school year. However the 
budget for 2015-16 includes reductions in order to provide for state mandated full-day kindergarten as the increase in 
state funding is inadequate once again to provide for the increase in enrollment and contract roll-up cost. 

The average age of District buildings at June 30, 2015 is over 40 years, however one out of the District’s two large high 
schools is over 100 years old, however much of the original building was demolished and rebuilt in 1940 making it a mere 
75 years old.  The District’s oldest elementary school is over 90 years old.  The District attempted to pass a general 
obligation bond measure to address many of its building issues in 2013.  Every school building would have benefited from 
that bond issue, however the measure failed.  The District has began the process for a second attempt at construction 
bond passage.  The bond election date will be determined at a later date by the Board of Education. 

MAJOR INITIATIVES AND REVELANT FINANCIAL POLICIES 

Gresham-Barlow is one of the largest school districts in the state, with a student population of more than 11,000, and 
speaking over 39 languages.  Throughout 2014-15, the District has been engaged in a process of strategically planning 
for the District’s future.  The planning is part of a year-five task that was written within the 2015 vision developed in 2010.  
Considerable community input was collected this year through an extensive outreach to students, parents, staff members 
and community members.  The result of this work included the affirmation of our mission statement and the identification 
of strategic themes and bold steps that defined the 2020 vision for the District. 

The District’s mission, “Every student prepared for a lifetime of learning, career opportunities, and productive contributions 
to the community,” is supported by our vision as defined by seven strategic themes that guide the District’s work: 

 Teaching and Learning, Growth and Achievement for All — Engage every student in meaningful learning through high-
 quality, accessible instruction and relevant content  

Eliminate the Achievement Gap and Support Equitable Outcomes — Eliminate the achievement and opportunity 
gaps throughout the District through an increased focus on equitable outcomes   

College and Career Readiness — Improve and increase high school pathways to college and career options 

Early Learning — Align practices and resources to support all students reading at grade level by the end of the 3rd 
 grade   

Class Size and Learning Environments — Strive to strategically reduce class sizes and improve learning environments  



v 

Community Partnerships — Enhance support for students and schools through parent, business and community 
 partnerships 

Community Investment — Create a long-term prioritized plan for enhancing and preserving the community’s facilities 

As we look forward and discuss financial and economic difficulties and uncertainties, it is important to recognize our pride 
in recent accomplishments and our commitment to students, staff and patrons.  Listed below are just a few of the recent 
accomplishments in our District: 

• Gresham-Barlow School District was named a “Champion of Sustainability” by McKinstry Construciton Corporation and
the Seahawks/Seattle Founders FC, due to the district’s decision to invest in the long-term efficiency of our school
buildings thus reducing energy use and lowing carbon emissions.

•  Stage Directions, a national magazine devoted to the theatre, named Gresham High School as the Northwest region
winner of its 2014 High School Theatre Honors Program.  Theatre arts teacher/director Sara Dempsey leads this
program.

• Gresham High School teacher Michael Lindblad was named Oregon’s 2015 Teacher of the Year by the Oregon
Department of Education.  Mr. Lindblad was also named State Social Studies Teacher of the Year by the Oregon
Council for Social Studies in 2014.

• Eleven of our schools are certified Oregon Green Schools.  Two of these schools are Premier-level schools.  To
become an Oregon Green School, schools form teams that create recycling, waste reduction, and resource
conservation plan for their school.  Local Green Schools’ coordinators provide help to the teams with planning, waste
audits, educational resources and inspiration.  Premier-level schools build on the basic Green criteria with more far-
reaching programs.

• Gresham-Barlow School District is the first in the Portland metro region to bring the Right Brain Initiative (RBI) to full
scale offering the arts program to all eleven of its elementary schools.  Right Brain professional development helps
teachers learn how to integrate the arts into the classroom on an ongoing basis.  District Superintendent Schlachter
says “the skills of reading, writing and speaking are brought to life for students when explored and experienced through
the arts.  When students are engaged, it leads to higher levels of learning.”

• The District was awarded a School Improvement Grant for East Gresham Elementary School,.  The grant is for $1.8
million over three years beginning in 2014-15.

• The District is a nationally recognized conservation leader—cutting energy costs by 46% since 1997.  During the 2013-
14 school year, the district saved more than $1.4 million in utility costs, which is the equivalent of 20 teacher’s salaries.
Over the years the district has received eight conservation awards from the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. In
spite of being a school district with several aging school buildings in need of renovation or replacement, the District
uses 34% less energy than the average school districts in Oregon.

Awards  

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial 
Reporting to Gresham-Barlow School District 10JT for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the year ended 
June 30, 2014.  This was the 23rd consecutive year that the District has received this prestigious award.  In order to be 
awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the District published an easily readable and efficiently organized Comprehensive 
Annual Financial Report.  This report satisfied both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal 
requirements. 



 

     vi 

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only.  We believe our current Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program's requirements and we are submitting it to the 
GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate. 
 
In addition, the Association of School Business Officials International (ASBO) awarded its Certificate of Excellence in 
Financial Reporting to Gresham-Barlow School District 10JT for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the year 
ended June 30, 2014.  This was the 21st consecutive year that the District has received this prestigious award. 
 
Receiving this Award is recognition that the District has met the highest standards of excellence in school financial 
reporting as adopted by ASBO.  The District believes that the current Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, which will 
be submitted to ASBO for review, will also conform to these standards. 
 
ACKNOWLEDGMENTS 
 
We wish to express our appreciation to the entire Business Office staff and members of other District departments who 
assisted in the preparation of this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.  We also wish to extend our appreciation to 
the members of the Board of Directors, the administrators, managers and employees of the District and citizens for their 
continued support and dedication to the financial operations of the District. 
 
 

 
 

 
Jim Schlachter 
Superintendent 

 
Michael D. Schofield 
Chief Finance Officer 
 

 
Gina Sanstrum 
Finance Supervisor 



SUPERINTENDENT
Jim Schlachter

HR Director
 Randy Bryant

Deputy Supt
James Hiu

CFO
Mike Schofield

Deputy Supt
Teresa Ketelsen

Director of 
Teaching/Learning

Angie Kautz

Director of Federal 
Programs
 April Olsen

Exec Director of 
Assessment & 
Accountability

Tim Drilling

Director of 
Elementary 
Education
Linda Okazaki 

Exec Director of 
SPED

Janell Black

Director of Communications & 
Community Engagement

Athena Vadnais

Board/Superintendent
Secretary

Lyn Cook

Director of ELL
Karina Bruzzese

Program 
Administrators

 (4)

K-8/MS/HS  
Principals

(8) 

Elementary  
Principals

 (10)

Office Mgr
 Laurie Miller

HS Office Mgr
Donna Mattson

HS Office Mgr
Diane Deatherage

Accounting 
Director

Gina Sanstrum

Facilities 
Director
Terry Taylor

Technology 
Director
Bill DeWitz 

Budget 
Analyst
Lynne Hill 

Nutrition 
Services
(Sodexo) 

Transportation 
Services

 (First Student)

Level 
1

Level 
2

Level 
3

Level 
4

Instructional Services Support Services

LT ILT SSLT

2014-2015

Assistant Principals
(10)

vii



Government Finance Officers Association 

Certificate of 

Achievement 
for Excellence 

in Financial 
Reporting 

Presented to 

Gresham-Barlow School 

District No. lOJT, Oregon 

For its Comprehensive Annual 

Financial Report 

for the Fiscal Year Ended 

June 30, 2014 

Executive Director/CEO 

viii



 

Association of School Business Officials International 
 

 
 

 
The Certificate of Excellence in Financial Reporting Award  

is presented to 
 

Gresham-Barlow School District No. 10JT 
 

For Its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 

 
The CAFR has been reviewed and met or exceeded  

ASBO International’s Certificate of Excellence standards 
 
 

 

   

 Terrie S. Simmons, RSBA, CSBO John D. Musso, CAE, RSBA 
 President Executive Director 

ix 



 

 x 
 

Elected and Appointed Officials 
Gresham-Barlow School District 10JT 

Gresham, Oregon 
 

School Board as of June 30, 2015 
 
 

 Name      Zone   Term Expires 
 
Matt O’Connell, Chair    Zone 2   June 30, 2017 
Oconnell5@gresham.k12.or.us 
503-680-1314 
 
Carla Piluso, Vice Chair    At-Large  June 30, 2017 
Piluso2@gresham.k12.or.us 
503-666-2525 
 
Kris Howatt     Zone 3   June 30, 2015 
Howatt3@gresham.k12.or.us 
503-669-9255 
 
Dan Chriestenson        At-Large  June 30, 2015 
Chriestenson5@gresham.k12.or.us 
503-348-6569 
 
Katherine J. Ruthruff      Zone 1    June 30, 2015 
ruthruff@gresham.k12.or.us 
503-658-3391 
 
Kent Zook     Zone 4   June 30, 2017 
Zook3@gresham.k12.or.us 
503-278-6096 
 
Sharon Garner     At-Large  June 30, 2017 
Garner6@gresham.k12.or.us 
503-679-3443    
 
 
Jin Schlachter      Superintendent and District Clerk 
Michael D. Schfield        Chief Finance Officer and Deputy Clerk 
Gina Sanstrum      Finance Supervisor 
 
Administrative Office:     1331 NW Eastman Parkway 
       Gresham, OR 97030-3825 
 



 

 

FINANCIAL SECTION 



 

 

 
 

 
 

  
 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank 
 



 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 



 

 

 
 

 
 

  
 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank 
 



 

 

                                                                       PAULY, ROGERS, AND CO., P.C.   
             12700 SW 72nd Ave.  Tigard, OR  97223 

                                                                    (503) 620‐2632  (503) 684‐7523 FAX 
www.paulyrogersandcocpas.com 

 
October 12, 2015 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
To the Board of Directors 
Gresham-Barlow School District 
Multnomah County, Oregon 

 
Report on the Financial Statements 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the aggregate discretely presented component 
units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Gresham-Barlow School District as of and for the year ended 
June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the basic financial statements as listed in the 
table of contents. 

 
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal 
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An 
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

 
Opinions 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the 
governmental activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of Gresham-Barlow School District, as of June 30, 2015, and the respective changes in financial position and budgetary 
comparisons for the general fund and federal grant fund, thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Emphasis of Matter 
The District adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Reporting for Pensions, as well as the provisions of 
GASB Statement No. 71, Pensions Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date, for the year ended June 30, 
2015. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 

1 



 

 

Other Matters 
 

Required Supplementary Information 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and analysis and the 
required supplemental information, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who 
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, 
or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of 
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide 
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or 
provide any assurance.  

 
Supplementary and Other Information 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the basic financial 
statements. The supplementary and other information, as listed in the table of contents is presented for purposes of additional analysis 
and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal expenditures is presented for 
purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local 
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements 
The supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents and the schedule of expenditures of federal expenditures are the 
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. In our opinion, the supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents and the schedule of federal 
expenditures, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 
The introductory, statistical sections and the other information, as listed in the table of contents have not been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or 
provide any assurance on them. 

 
Reports on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 12, 2015 on our consideration of the 
internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting 
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. 
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering internal control 
over financial reporting and compliance. 
 
In accordance with Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, we have issued our report dated October 
12, 2015, on our consideration of compliance with certain provisions of laws and regulations, including the provisions of Oregon 
Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules.  The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing 
of compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on compliance. 
 

 
Matthew Graves, CPA 
PAULY, ROGERS AND CO., P.C. 

 
 

2 



 

 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 



 

 

 
 

 
 

  
 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank 
 



 

    3

GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 
 
As management of Gresham-Barlow School District 10JT (the District), we offer readers of the District's 
financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2015.  We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with 
additional information that we have furnished in our Transmittal Letter, which can be found on pages i – vi 
of this report. 
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS  
 

 In the government-wide statements, the assets of the District exceeded its liabilities at June 30, 2015 
by approximately $5.3 million.  Of this amount, approximately $40.3 million represents the District’s 
investment in capital assets, net of related debt, approximately $3.3 million is restricted and the 
remaining -$38.3 million, is unrestricted.   

 For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, the District’s total net position increased by approximately 
$18.8 million. This increase is primarily due to the change in the proportionate share of net pension 
asset and the net deferred pension outflow (inflow).  Other changes are from an increase in cash and 
investments (1.1 million), a decrease in capital assets ($1.6 million), and a decrease in bonds payable 
($4.8 million). 

 The District’s governmental funds report combined ending fund balance of approximately $11.36 
million, an increase of approximately $.7 million in comparison with the prior year.  Approximately 61% 
of this total amount, $6.9 million is unassigned and available for spending at the District’s discretion.   

 At the end of the fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the general fund was approximately $6.9     
million, or about 6.4% of total general fund expenditures. 

 The District’s total debt decreased by $4 million (4.9%) during the 2014-15 fiscal year.  Debt decreased 
due to scheduled debt service payments of approximately $6.1 million offset by approximately $1.1 
million to amortize prior year bond premiums and discounts and proceeds from a capital lease of 
approximately $1 million.  
 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

This Management’s Discussion and Analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the District’s basic 
financial statements. The District’s basic financial statements consist of three components:  1) government-
wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the basic financial statements.  This 
report also contains supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves. 
 
Government-wide financial statements.  The government-wide financial statements are designed to 
provide readers with a broad overview of the District’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector 
business.  These statements include: 
 
The Statement of Net Position.   The statement of net position presents information on all of the assets and 
liabilities of the District at year end.  Net position is what remains after the liabilities have been paid or 
otherwise satisfied.  Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of 
whether the financial position of the District is improving or deteriorating. 
 



 

    4

The Statement of Activities.  The statement of activities presents information showing how the net position 
of the District changed over the year by tracking revenues, expenses and other transactions that increase 
or reduce net position.  All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise 
to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Thus, revenues and expenses are 
reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., 
uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave). 
 
In the government-wide financial statements, the District’s activities are shown in one category: 
 
 Governmental activities.  Most of the District’s basic functions are shown here, such as regular and 

special education, child nutrition services, transportation, administration, and facilities acquisition and 
construction.  These activities are primarily financed through property taxes, Oregon’s State School 
Fund and other intergovernmental revenues. 

 
The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 13 and 14 of this report. 
 
Fund financial statements.  The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the 
District’s funds, focusing on its most significant or “major” funds – not the District as a whole.  A fund is a 
grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for 
specific activities or objectives.  The Gresham-Barlow School District, like other state and local 
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal 
requirements.  All of the funds of the District can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and 
fiduciary funds. 
 
Governmental funds.  The governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions 
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  However, unlike the 
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows 
and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end 
of the fiscal year.  Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing 
requirements. 
 
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  By doing 
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions.  
Both the governmental fund Balance Sheet and Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in 
Fund Balances are reconciled to the government-wide Statements of Net Position and Activities 
 
The District maintains seven individual governmental funds.  Information is presented separately in the 
governmental fund Balance Sheet and the governmental fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balances for the General, Federal Grant Fund and Capital Projects Fund, which are 
considered to be major funds.  Data from the other four governmental funds are combined into a single, 
aggregated presentation.  Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided 
as Supplemental Information. 
 
The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 15 and 17 of this report. 



 

    5

 
Fiduciary funds.  Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside 
the government.  Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement because the 
resources of those funds are not available to support the District’s own programs.  The accounting used for 
fiduciary funds is the same as the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail. 
 
The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 21-22 of this report. 
 
Notes to the basic financial statements.  The notes provide additional information that is essential to a 
full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.  The notes to 
the basic financial statements can be found on pages 23-43 of this report. 
 
Other information.  In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also 
presents certain required supplementary information concerning the District’s progress in funding its 
obligation to provide pension and other post employment benefits to its employees.  Required 
Supplementary Information can be found on pages 44-46 of this report. 
 
The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds are 
presented as Supplementary Information on pages 48-49 of this report. 
 
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
 
As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position.  
In the case of the District, assets exceeded liabilities by approximately $5.3 million at June 30, 2015. 
 
Capital assets, which consist of the District’s land, buildings, building improvements, construction in 
progress, vehicles, and equipment, represent about 66.4 percent of total assets.  The remaining assets 
consist mainly of cash, investments, grant and property taxes receivable, equity in CAL and a proportionate 
share of net pension asset. 
 
The District’s largest liability (88 percent) is for the repayment of general obligation, PERS and full faith and 
credit obligation bonds.  Current liabilities, representing about 8.2 percent of the District’s total liabilities, 
consist almost entirely of payables on accounts, payroll withholdings. 
 
Deferred Inflow is from the implantation of GASB 68 and is the net inflow from deferred pension asset. 
 
A portion of the District’s net position reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g. land, buildings, vehicles, 
equipment), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding.  The District uses 
these capital assets to provide services to students and other District residents; consequently these assets 
are not available for future spending.  Although the District’s investment in its capital assets is reported net 
of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other 
sources (generally property taxes), since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these 
liabilities. 
 
 
 
 



6

Net Position at June 30, 2015 and 2014 
(in thousands) 

Governmental Activities 
Increase  
(Decrease) 
    From      

       2015 2014* Fiscal 2014 

 Current and other assets $ 37,114 $ 23,330  $      13,784 
 Capital assets      73,412  74,968  (1,556) 
      Total assets 110,526 98,298        12,228 
 Current liabilities       7,227    6,626      601 
 Non-Current liabilities     80,510       112,115       (31,605) 
      Total liabilities     87,737      118,741       (31,004) 
Deferred Inflow of Resources 
      Net deferred pension liability (asset) 17,457 (7,020) 24,477 

 Net position: 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt     40,316  37,148  3,168 
Restricted      3,300    3,693    (393) 
Unrestricted  (38,284)       (54,264)        15,980 
      Total net position $      5,332 $       (13,423) $        18,755 
*restated for GASB 68

During the current fiscal year, the District’s net position increased by approximately $18.8 million.  Invested in capital 
assets, net of related debt increased by $3.2 million and unrestricted increased by $16 million while restricted net 
position decreased by $.4 million.  Net position increased due to an increase in current assets of $13.8 million, a 
decrease in capital assets in excess of depreciation by $1.6 million and a decrease in non-current liabilities of $31.6 
million and an increase in deferred inflows of $24.5 million.  Unrestricted increased primarily due to $16 million 
change in assets and deferred inflows caused by the implementation of GASB 68.  Restricted decreased primarily 
due to a decrease in the amounts restricted for student groups and school construction. 

Governmental activities.  The key elements of the change in the District’s net position for the year ended June 30, 
2015 are as follows: 

 General revenues increased by approximately $8.6 million, mainly due to a increase in the State School Fund
general support of approximately $5.2 million, an increase in property taxes of approximately $1.7 million and an
increase in grants of approximately $1.1.

 Governmental program expenses were decreased by about $11.5 million. This was all due to the implementation 
of GASB 68. The statement descreased current year expenses by approximately $16 million.   Regular 
programs would have increased by approximately $1.2 million and special programs increased by approximately 
$3.5 million due to the district taking over programs formally done by the Multnomah Education Service 
District (MESD) and larger payments to charter schools and planned increases in regular programs.



7

Changes in Net Position  
For the year ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 

(in thousands) 

Governmental Activities 
Increase 

(Decrease)    
from 

2015 2014 Fiscal 2014
Revenues: 
Program revenues: 
   Charges for service $       4,298 $  4,221 $    77 
   Operating grants and contributions     11,182       10,375  807 
   Capital grants and contributions  867     555  312 

General revenues: 
   Property taxes  30,976       29,110      1,866 
   State school fund – general support  77,338       72,090      5,248 
   Other federal, state and local sources  3,787  3,458  329 
   Earnings on investments  169     170    (1) 
   Other 

 Total revenues  128,617     119,979      8,638 

Expenses: 
   Instruction    62,039      69,165    (7,126) 
   Support services   38,871      43,301    (4,430) 
   Enterprise and community services     4,083        3,973        110 
   Facilities acquisition and construction        -    147       (147) 
   Interest on long-term debt      4,869        4,757        112 
        Total expenses  109,862   121,343  (11,481) 
Increase (decrease) in net position    18,755       (1,364)          20,119 
Net position – July 1*  (13,423)*      43,045    (56,468) 
Net position – June 30 $    5,332 $      41,681 $    (36,349) 

*restated for GASB 68

Due to the implementation of GASB Statements 68 and 71, beginning net position was restated as of July 
1, 2014 to account for the net pension liability and pension related deferred inflows and outflows as of the 
beginning of the year based on the actuarial data provided by OPERS and Milliman for the prior 
measurement date.  Because the prior measurement date only relates to data for restatement of the 
beginning of the current fiscal year (2014-15), and no prior measurement data was provided by the actuaries related 
to the fiscal year ended 6/30/13, there is no way to restate the prior year (2013-14) data for the purposes of the 
comparison in the MD&A.  Therefore, the 2013-14 information has been presented in the same manner as it was in 
last year’s report.  Comparative data in future years will be provided in the MD&A. 



8



 

    9

   
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT’S FUNDS 
 
As noted earlier, the District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal 
requirements. 
 
Governmental funds.  The focus of the District’s governmental funds is to provide information on relatively short-
term cash flow and funding for future basic services.  Such information is useful in assessing the District’s financing 
requirements.  In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net 
resource’s available for spending at the end of a fiscal year. 
 
At June 30, 2015, the District’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $11.36           million, 
an increase of approximately $.75 million in comparison with the prior year.  About $6.87 million (60.4 percent) of the 
ending fund balance constitutes unassigned ending fund balance, which is available for spending at the 
government’s discretion.  About 7.5 percent of fund balance ($.84 million) is restricted for debt service, about 11 
percent of fund balance ($1.27 million) is restricted for Student groups, art institute and print shop activities, about 8.2 
percent ($.9 million) is restricted for the Nutrition Service program and another 1 percent ($121,494) is restricted for 
school construction projects.  An additional $1.1 million (9.8 percent) is assigned to capital projects.  
 
General Fund.  The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the District.  As of June 30, 2015, unassigned fund 
balance was about $6.86 million.  As a measure of the fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare total fund balance 
to total fund expenditures.  Fund balance represents 6.4 percent of total General Fund expenditures.  The fund 
balance increased by approximately $.8 million during the current fiscal year compared to a decrease of 
approximately $.5 million during the 2013/14 fiscal year.   
 
Federal Grant Fund.  Revenues and expenditures in the Federal Grant Fund increased from approximately $6.5 
million in 2013/14 fiscal year to approximately $6.7 million for 2014/15.  This increase was due to addition funding for 
school improvement with Title I funding. 
 
Capital Projects Fund.  The Capital Projects Fund has a total fund balance of approximately $1.2 million.  The fund 
balance decreased by $152,720 during the fiscal year primarily due to restroom ADA remodeling and the turf project 
at Gresham High School. 
 
Changes to fund balances in the other governmental funds can be attributed to a increase in fund balance in the 
Food Service Fund of $9,393, a decrease in fund balance in the Debt Service Fund of $39,616, an increase in the 
Other Special Revenue Fund of $110,247 and an increase in fund balance for State and Other Grant Fund of 
$35,429. 
 
GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 
 
Changes to the adopted budget for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 were necessary due to the capital lease 
purchase of computer hardware for the District’s computer refresh.  An addition of approximately $1 million was 
added through resolution to the adopted budget.  During the year, as shown in the chart, below, all General Fund 
expenditures were within budget. Variances noted between instruction and support services budget and actual totals 
were not inconsistent with prior year experience, and reflect the District’s conservative budget and spending 
practices. 
 

 



10 

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital assets.  The District’s investment in capital assets includes land, buildings and improvements, vehicles and 
equipment and construction in progress.  As of June 30, 2015, the District had invested approximately $73 million in 
capital assets, net of depreciation, as shown in the following table: 

Capital Assets  
    (Net of Depreciation) 
  June 30, 2015 and 2014 

(in thousands) 

Governmental Activities 
Increase 
(Decrease) 
    From      

2015 2014 Fiscal 2014 
 Land $    6,326 $     6,326 $              - 
 Buildings and improvements  65,386     67,613        (2,227) 
 Vehicles and equipment  1,183  1,029  154 
 Construction in progress  517  -            517 

 73,412  74,968  (1556) 



11 

During the year, the District’s investment in capital assets decreased by approximately $1.47 million.  The major 
capital asset events for the year include the following:  

 Gresham High Turf Project approximately $517,000
 New dishwashers at five schools totaling approximately $171,000
 Carpet installations totaling $127,500
 ADA accessible restrooms and shower redesign totaling approximately $146,000
 Other minor capital assets additions totaling approximately $230,000

Additions were offset by approximately $2.7 million in depreciation expense.  Additional information of the District’s 
capital assets can be found in Note 4 on pages 30 of this report. 

Long-term debt.  At the end of the current fiscal year, the District had total debt outstanding of approximately $77.9 
million, consisting of general obligation debt, full faith and credit obligations and capital leases, net of unamortized 
premium/discount.   

During the current fiscal year, the District’s total debt decreased by approximately $4 million (4.9 percent).  The 
decrease is the result of approximately $6.1 million in scheduled debt service payments offset by approximately $1.1 
million in amortization of bond premium and discounts and approximately $1 million in proceeds from a new capital 
lease. 

The District’s debt is currently all issued with the Oregon School Bond Guaranty.  Standard & Poors has rated the 
bonds AA+ and Moody’s under their Global Scale Rating has rated the bonds Aa2. 

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a governmental entity may issue to 7.95 percent of its total 
real market valuation.  The current debt limitation for the District is approximately $561 million, which is significantly in 
excess of the District’s outstanding general obligation debt. 

Additional information on the District’s long-term debt can be found in Note 5 on pages 31-33 of this report. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET 

The most significant economic factor for the District is the State of Oregon’s State School Fund.  For the year ended 
June 30, 2015, the State School Fund – General Support provided 60 percent of the District’s total resources and 
70.8 percent of District’s general fund resources.  This is up from previous years as the State School Fund was cut in 
prior year due to a reduction in state revenues caused by the economic downturn.  Some of the cuts were restored 
with Federal Stimulus in prior fiscal years.  The District’s 2011-12 and the 2012-13 budgets were based on $5.7 
billion in State Education funding for K-12 for the 2011-13 biennium, which provided approximately the same funding 
that the District received in 2010-11. 

The 2013-14 budget assumed a K-12 education budget statewide of $6.55 billion and that PERS reform legislation 
will be passed by the legislature valued at $200 million statewide for the 2013-15 biennium.  At this level of state 
funding, the District was required to cut $5 million from its budget primarily through reductions in staff.  The 2014-15 
budget assumed a K-12 education budget statewide of $6.65 billion for the 2013-15 biennium.  The additional $100 
million was added by House Bill 5101 passed in an Oregon Legislative Assembly Special Session.  Due to this 
increase in state funding the District was able to maintain staffing and provide a full school year for the first time in 
five years. 

The 2015-16 budget relies on K-12 funding level of $7.5 billion for the 2015-2017 biennium, a projected average daily 
membership weighted (ADMw) of approximately 14,660 which includes full-day kindergarten and an estimated 



12 

beginning fund balance of approximately $6.3 million.  The enrollment projection is based on the District’s most 
recent demographic student population report and experience over the past couple of years and is critical to our 
revenue projections, as the state bases our revenue on enrollment and special needs students. 

To comply with state law and sound business principles, the District must maintain a balance budget with adequate 
reserves for economic and operational uncertainties.  The commonly cited standard, and the amount the district is 
committed to setting aside, is 5 percent of annual operating expenditures. Available reserves in the 2015-16 budget 
are 5 percent of budgeted expenditures; an increase over the 2014-15 budgeted reserves of 4.5 percent.   

A bond measure proposal in 2013 addressed many of the District’s capital needs and would have been realized in 
the 2014-15 school year.  However, with the failure of the bond, there are capital needs challenges that must be 
addressed.  A primary investment that must be included in future budgets is support for technology infrastructure and 
computers.  A four-year plan to finance the acquisition of computers was included in the 2014-15 budget and will 
need to be included in future budgets through 2017-18 to complete the plan.  In March 2015 the Board approved the 
replacement of the turf field at Gresham High School.  The District has secured a 10 year note to pay for the project. 
Due to the use of funds set aside from community use fees, community fund raising efforts and inclusion of turf field 
and stadium improvements at both high schools in a future bond, the hope is that the general fund will not be 
impacted by the turf replacement costs.  The planning for a potential 2016 bond has already begun with a Bond 
Planning Committee that will provide a recommendation to the Board in early 2016.   

The education of students is labor intensive, as reflected in the allocation of the financial resources of the district.  For 
the 2015-16 budget, salaries and fringe benefits represent approximately 74.5% of the General Fund operating 
budget.  The expenditures for salaries and fringe benefits are determined by contractual agreements and staffing 
policies and guidelines of the board, on the basis of projected enrollment, special student needs, and the conditions 
of employment established by collective bargaining agreements.  For the year ended June 30, 2003 the ending fund 
balance of $2 million, declined below the District’s target of $5 million.  This was a deliberate action to lessen the 
impact of rising costs and uncertain revenues on the District’s instructional programs.  The District restored the 
ending fund balance in subsequent fiscal years to a high of $15.7 million in 2005-2006, with the help of a temporary 
income tax (ITAX) approved by Multnomah County voters.  Reserves were increased in anticipation of future state 
revenue shortfalls, the temporary nature of the ITAX and scheduled increases in public employee retirement costs. 
The District anticipated a decrease in ending fund balance for fiscal years ending 2012-2015 as $4 million was used 
to balance the budget in fiscal 2012 and another $6 million in 2013.  In 2014 and 2015 ending fund balance has 
remained at approximately $6 million and $6.86 million, respectively.  The 2015-2016 budget anticipates an ending 
fund balance of approximately $5.5 million. 

The District’s ability to house, educate and prepare students for the future and to maintain school facilities continues 
to be stretched significantly.  The District is trying to adjust our expectations to the amount of revenue available.  The 
increasing needs of students will continue to challenge educators to find creative ways to prepare them for the 21st 
Century.   

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION 

This financial report is designed to present the user (citizens, taxpayers, investors, and creditors) with a general 
overview of the District’s finances and to demonstrate the District’s accountability.  Questions concerning any of the 
information provided in this report or requests for additional information should be addressed to the District’s Chief 
Finance Officer at 1331 NW Eastman Parkway, Gresham, Oregon 97030. 



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



This page is intentionally left blank 



ASSETS:
    Cash and investments $ 16,334,729            
    Receivables 4,156,154              
    Proportionate share of net pension asset 12,462,938            
    Net pension asset 262,225                 
    Equity interest in CAL 3,897,737              
  Capital assets, net
    Land 6,326,123              
    Construction in progress 517,039                 
    Buildings and improvements 65,385,318            
    Vehicles and equipment 1,183,359              

      TOTAL ASSETS 110,525,622          

LIABILITIES:
  Accounts payable and other current payables 6,996,886              
  Accrued interest payable 73,020 
  Unearned revenue 157,081                 
Noncurrent liabilities:
  Compensated absenses, due within one year 522,297                 

due in more than one year 137,682                 
  Captial leases, due within one year 245,193                 

due in more than one year 502,961                 
  Bonds payable, net of unamortized premium/discount,
      due within one year 5,050,995              
      due in more than one year 72,125,328            
  Net OPEB obligation 1,925,735              

      TOTAL LIABILITIES 87,737,178            

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
  Net deferred pension asset 17,456,656            

NET POSITION:
  Net investment in capital assets 40,316,151            
  Restricted for:
     Debt service 853,530                 
     School constrution 121,494                 
     Student  and other activities 1,381,367              
     Nutrition services 943,319                 
  Unrestricted (38,284,073)           

     TOTAL NET POSITION $ 5,331,788              

GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2015

See notes to basic financial statements.

13



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Program Revenues
Operating Capital Revenue and

Charges for Grants and Grants and Change in 
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
  Governmental activities:
    Instruction:
     Regular programs $ 38,759,479     $ 2,580,889   $ 290,288         $ 691,403     $ (35,196,899)            
     Special programs 23,247,820     84,280        4,642,485      -             (18,521,055)            
     Summer school programs 31,756            -             -                 -             (31,756)                   
        Total instruction 62,039,055     2,665,169   4,932,773      691,403     (53,749,710)            
    Support Services:
     Student support services 5,559,793       -             984,225         -             (4,575,568)              
     Instructional staff support 4,065,219       29,056        1,276,557      -             (2,759,606)              
     General administration 873,881          -             600                -             (873,281)                 
     School administration 5,870,308       12,105        -                 -             (5,858,203)              
     Business support services 18,633,516     861,243      240,178         4,715         (17,527,380)            
     Central activities 3,568,485       24,930        278,890         -             (3,264,665)              
     Supplemental retirement program 300,000          -             -                 -             (300,000)                 
         Total support services 38,871,202     927,334      2,780,450      4,715         (35,158,703)            
   Enterprise and Community Services: 4,083,154       705,118      3,469,052      171,375     262,391                  
   Facilities Acquisition and Construction: -                  -                          
   Interest on long-term debt 4,868,853       -             -                 -             (4,868,853)              

     Total govermental activities $ 109,862,264   $ 4,297,621   $ 11,182,275    $ 867,493     (93,514,875)            

General revenues:
Property taxes levied for general purposes 25,127,171             
Property taxes levied for debt service 5,848,183               
State school fund - general support 77,338,087             
Other unrestricted state sources 2,546,426               
Common school fund 1,226,724               
County school fund 1,993                      
Other unrestricted federal sources 12,662                    
Earnings on investments 168,950                  
Miscellaneous -                          

Total general revenues 112,270,196           

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 18,755,321             

Net position, restated - July 1, 2014 (13,423,533)            

Net position - June 30, 2015 $ 5,331,788               

Net (Expense),

Net Assets

See notes to basic financial statements.

14



ASSETS

  Equity in pooled cash and investments $ 11,824,293            $ -                $ 1,487,404              $ 3,023,032          $ 16,334,729          
  Receivables 2,617,676              718,083         5,363  815,032             4,156,154            
  Due from other funds 671,462                 -                - - 671,462               

      TOTAL ASSETS $ 15,113,431            $ 718,083        $ 1,492,767             $ 3,838,064          $ 21,162,345         

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
 AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
  Accounts, retainage, payroll and
    payroll withholding payables $ 6,661,584              $ 59,792           $ 258,221                 $ 17,289               $ 6,996,886            
  Due to other funds - 654,291         - 17,171               671,462               
  Unearned revenue - 4,000             - 153,081             157,081               

      Total Liabilities 6,661,584              718,083         258,221                 187,541             7,825,429            

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
  Unavaliable revenue-property taxes 1,585,396              -                - 390,592             1,975,988            

Fund Balances:
   Nonspendable - -                - - - 
   Restricted - -                121,494                 3,259,931          3,381,425            
   Committed - -                - - - 
   Assigned - -                1,113,052              - 1,113,052            
   Unassigned 6,866,451              -                - - 6,866,451            

      Total fund balances 6,866,451              -                1,234,546              3,259,931          11,360,928          

 TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
   AND FUND BALANCES $ 15,113,431            $ 718,083        $ 1,492,767             $ 3,838,064          $ 21,162,345         

Other 
Grant
Fund

Captial
Projects

Fund
Governmental

Funds

GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT

BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2015

General
Fund

Federal

Total

See notes to basic financial statements.

15



TOTAL FUND BALANCES $ 11,360,928      

Capital assets are not financial resources and therefore are not reported in the 
 governmental funds:
    Cost $ 132,913,202    
    Accumulated depreciation (59,501,363)     73,411,839      

A portion of the District's property taxes are collected after year-end but are not
 available soon enough to pay for the current years' operations, and therefore are
 not reported as revenue in the governmental funds. 1,975,988        

The proprotionate share of the net pension asset is not reported as an asset 
 in the governmental funds 12,462,938      

The net pension asset is not reported as an asset in the governmental funds. 262,225           

The net OPEB obligation is not reported as an asset in the governmental funds. (1,925,735)       

The net deferred pension asset is not reported as a deferred inflow in the
 in the governmental funds (17,456,656)     

Equity interest in the Center for Advanced Learning (CAL) is not reported
 in the governmental funds. 3,897,737        

Long-term liabilities not payable  in the current year are not reported as
governmental fund liabilities.  Interest in long-term debt is not accrued in the
governmental funds, but rather is recognized as an expenditure when due.
These liabilities consist of:

    Accrued interest payable (73,020)            
    Capital leases (748,154)          
    Bonds payable (77,176,323)     
    Compensated absences payable (659,979)          (78,657,476)     

TOTAL NET POSITION $ 5,331,788        

GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT
RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET TO STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2015

See notes to basic financial statements.

16



REVENUES:
  Property taxes $ 25,067,180            $ -                 $ - $ 5,840,881 $ 30,908,061            
  Other taxes - -                 462,951          - 462,951                 
  Federal sources 63,087 6,740,339      - 3,559,906 10,363,332            
  State and local sources 81,145,030            -                 293,952          900,395 82,339,377            
  Charges for services 1,835,070              -                 12,161            2,450,390 4,297,621              
  Investment earnings 127,300                 -                 19,473            22,177 168,950                 

      TOTAL REVENUES 108,237,667          6,740,339      788,537          12,773,749          128,540,292          

EXPENDITURES:
  Current:
    Instruction 67,975,058            4,550,195      - 2,218,759 74,744,012            
    Support services 39,239,044            2,156,267      246,784          756,989 42,399,084            
    Community services 231,303                 33,877           - 3,869,227 4,134,407              
    Facilities acquisition and construction - - - 
  Debt service:
    Principal - -                 377,911          4,360,000 4,737,911              
    Interest - -                 63,300            1,537,231 1,600,531              
  Capital outlay 502,128                 -                 503,262          176,090 1,181,480              

      TOTAL EXPENDITURES 107,947,533          6,740,339      1,191,257       12,918,296          128,797,425          

        EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF
        REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 290,134                 -                 (402,720)         (144,547)             (257,133) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
   Transfers to other funds (510,000)                -                 - - (510,000) 
   Transfer from other funds - -                 250,000          260,000 510,000                 
   Proceeds from capital leases 1,006,065              -                 - - 1,006,065              
   Sale of capital assets - -                 - - - 

          TOTAL OTHER FINANCING 
             SOURCES (USES) 496,065                 -                 250,000          260,000 1,006,065              

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 786,199                 -                 (152,720)         115,453 748,932                 

FUND BALANCE, July 1, 2014 6,080,252              -                 1,387,266       3,144,478 10,611,996            

FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2015 $ 6,866,451              $ -                 $ 1,234,546       $ 3,259,931 $ 11,360,928            

Funds

Captial

Fund
General

Fund

Federal
Grant
Fund Total

Projects

GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Other 
Governmental

See notes to basic financial statements.

17



NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ 748,932             

Amounts reported for governmental activies in the Statement of Activities are
different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures.  However, in the
Statement of Activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.  This is the amount by which
capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period.

Expenditures for capital assets $ 1,181,480      
Less current year depreciation (2,747,187)    (1,565,707)        

Dinated assets were not reported in the governmental funds, but were reported
as a revenue in the Statement of Activities

10,000               
In the Statement of Activities, the contributions to the Pension Trust Fund were
less than the actuarially determined contribution amount decreasing the net
pension asset.  In the governmental funds the entire contribution is recognized as
an expenditure.  This is the amount by which the net pension asset is decreased:

Contibution to Pension Trust Fund 400,449         
Annual pension cost (417,324)        (16,875)  

In the Statement of Activities, the contributions to the Post Retirement Health
Benefits Program were less than the actuarially determined contribution amount
increasing the net OPEB liability.  In the governmental funds the entire contribution
is recognized as an expenditure.  This is the amount by which the net OPEB
liability is increased:

Contibution to Post Retirement Health Benefits 1,165,092      
Annual OPEB cost (1,650,135)    (485,043)           

Long-term debt proceeds are reported as other financining souces in the 
governmental funds.  In the Statement of Net Position, however, issuing long-term
debt increases liabiliites.  Similarly, repayment of principal is an expenditure in
the governmental funds but reduces the liability in the Statement of Net Position:

Debt principal repaid (GO $4,360,000 PERS $1,381,367, FFCO $120,000) 5,861,367  
Proceeds from capital lease (1,006,065)        
Payments on captial lease 257,911             

Governmental funds report the effect of premiums, and discounts when debt is first
issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the Statement of Activities.

Amortization of premium/(discount) (1,104,110)        

Change in Proportionate Share of Net Pension Asset 40,521,255       

Change in deferred inflow of resources from Net Pension Asset (24,476,353)      

Change in Equity Interest in Center for Advanced Learning (CAL) (72,719)  

In the Statement of Activities interest is accrued on long-term debt, whereas
 in the govenmental funds it is recorded as an interest expense when due (7,245)                

Property taxes that do not meet the measurable and available criteria are not
 recognized as revenue in the current year in the governmental funds.  In the 
 Statement of Activities property taxes are recognized as revenue when levied. 67,293               

Compensated absences are recognized as an expenditure in the governmental funds
when they are paid.  In the Statement of Activities compensated absences are 
recognized as an expenditures when earned. 22,680               

CHANGE IN NET POSITION $ 18,755,321       

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

See notes to basic financial statements.

18



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCE- BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

REVENUES:
Property taxes $ 24,731,296     $ 24,731,296    $ 25,066,579     $ 335,283         
State and local sources 81,830,454     81,830,454    82,980,100     1,149,646      
Investment earnings 140,000          140,000         127,901          (12,099)          
Federal sources 45,000 45,000           63,087 18,087           

      Total revenues 106,746,750   106,746,750  108,237,667   1,490,917      

EXPENDITURES:
Instruction 68,196,180     68,196,180    67,975,058     (221,122)        
Support services 38,912,954     39,919,019    39,441,172     (477,847)        
Community services 246,502          246,502         231,303          (15,199)          
Facilities acquisition and construction - - - - 
Operating contingency 4,836,114       4,836,114      - (4,836,114)     

      Total expenditures 112,191,750   113,197,815  107,647,533   5,550,282      

          EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF
          REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES (5,445,000)      (6,451,065)     590,134          7,041,199      

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
  Transfers to other funds (810,000) (810,000)        (810,000) - 
  Proceeds from capital leases 1,006,065      1,006,065       - 
  Proceeds from sale or loss of capital assets 5,000 5,000             - (5,000)            

(805,000) 201,065         196,065          (5,000)            

          NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (6,250,000)      (6,250,000)     786,199          7,036,199      

FUND BALANCE, July 1, 2014 6,250,000       6,250,000      6,080,252       (169,748)        

FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2015 $ - $ - $ 6,866,451       $ 6,866,451      

Adopted Final
Budget

Variance with
Final Budget

Over
(Under)Actual

See notes to basic financial statements.

19



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FEDERAL GRANT FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

REVENUES:
Federal sources $ 8,362,380       $ 8,362,380      $ 6,740,339       $ (1,622,041)     

      Total revenues 8,362,380       8,362,380      6,740,339       (1,622,041)     

EXPENDITURES:
Instruction 5,852,183       5,852,183      4,550,195       (1,301,988)     
Support services 2,410,197       2,410,197      2,156,267       (253,930)        
Community services 100,000          100,000         33,877 (66,123)          

      Total expenditures 8,362,380       8,362,380      6,740,339       1,622,041      

          NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE - - - - 

FUND BALANCE, July 1, 2014 - - - - 

FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2015 $ - $ - $ - $ - 

Adopted Final
Budget

Variance with
Final Budget

Over
(Under)Actual

See notes to basic financial statements.
20



 

 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
 
 

These funds account for the District’s early retirement and post-employment health care benefits, and 
scholarship programs provided by bequests and donations.  Included are: 
 

Pension Trust Fund – The Early Retirement Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources to be 
used for payments to employees who receive supplemental early retirement stipends.  The Post 
Retirement Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources to be used to pay post-employment 
medical care benefits (OPEB).   Resources for the early retirement fund are charged to other funds as 
a percent of payroll based on actuarial valuations.  Resources are contributed to the Post Retirement 
Fund through a transfer from the general fund.  Both funds are budgeted together as the Pension Trust 
Fund. 
 
Agency Fund – accounts for the receipts and disbursements associated with the processing of payroll 
for the Center for Advanced Learning and to account for “pass-through” grants where the District acts 
as fiscal agent or cash conduit.   



 

 

 
 

 
 

  
 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank 
 



ASSETS
  Cash and cash equivalents $ 299,107          $ 791,147 $ 8,531 
  Receivables - -                 6,099 

      TOTAL ASSETS 299,107          791,147 14,630 

LIABILITIES
  Book overdraft - -                 6,099 
  Due to other agencies - -                 8,531 

       TOTAL LIABILITIES - -                 14,630 

NET POSITION
Held in trust for:
  Pension benefits 299,107          -                 -               
  Other post employment benefits - 791,147 -               

      TOTAL NET POSITION $ 299,107          $ 791,147 $ -               

GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2015

Agency

Pension Trust Funds
Post

Retirement
Fund

Early 
Retirement

Fund Fund

See notes to basic financial statements.

21



ADDITIONS:
  Contributions:
      Employer $ 400,449 $ 300,000           
  Investment earnings 1,335 4,513 

        Total additions 401,784 304,513           

DEDUCTIONS:
      Early retirement benefits 425,400 - 
      Health and welfare benefits -               160,069           

        Total deductions 425,400 160,069           

CHANGE IN NET POSITION (23,616) 144,444           

NET POSITION, July 1, 2014 322,723 646,703           

NET POSITION, June 30, 2015 $ 299,107 $ 791,147           

Retirement 
Fund

GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT

Retirement
Fund

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Early
Pension Trust Funds

Post 

See notes to basic financial statements.

22



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2015 

23 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Reporting Entity

Gresham-Barlow School District 10JT (the District), was established on July 1, 1994 as the result of the unification of the former 
Gresham Grade, Orient, Damascus Union and Barlow-Gresham Union High School Districts.  The elementary districts merged into 
Barlow-Gresham Union High School District.  The Barlow-Gresham Union High School District Board of Directors remained the 
governing Board and the policies of the high school remained intact. 

The District is governed by an elected seven-member board.  The District is a special-purpose primary government exercising 
financial accountability for all public education within its boundaries.  As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these 
financial statements present all significant activities and organizations of the District.  The District reports no component units, nor is 
the District a component unit of any other entity.  There are various governmental agencies and special service districts, which 
provide service with the District’s boundaries, however, the District is not financially accountable for any of these entities, and 
therefore, none of them are considered component units or included in these basic financial statements. 

The District has granted charter to three public charter schools, Gresham-Barlow Web Academy Charter School, Gresham Arthur 
Academy Charter School and Lewis and Clark Montessori Charter School.  These public charter schools are legally separate, tax-
exempt organizations governed by their own boards of directors and their financial statements may be obtained by their 
administrative offices.   

Gresham-Barlow Web Academy   
1331 NW Eastman Parkway        
Gresham, OR 97030         

Lewis and Clark Montessori Charter School 
PO Box 365 
Gresham, OR 97030 

Arthur Academy Gresham, Mastery Learning Institute 
13717 SE Division 
Portland, OR 97236 

  Basis of Presentation 

Government-wide Financial Statements 

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities display information about the District.  These statements include 
the governmental financial activities of the overall District, except fiduciary activities.  Eliminations have been made to minimize 
the double counting of internal activities. Governmental activities are financed primarily through property taxes, 
intergovernmental revenues, and charges for services.       

The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each of its 
functions/programs. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a function and, therefore, are clearly 
identifiable to that function.  Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting of internal activities in the 
Statement of Activities, however interfund services provided and used are not eliminated in the process of consolidation. 
Program revenues include: (1) charges to students or others for tuition, fees, rentals, material, supplies or services provided, 
(2) operating grants and contributions and (3) capital grants and contributions. Revenues that are not classified as program 
revenues, including property taxes and state support, are presented as general revenues. 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded 
from the government-wide financial statements.   

Net position is reported as restricted when constraints placed on net position use are either externally restricted, imposed by 
creditors (such as through grantors, contributors or laws) or through constitutional provisions or enabling resolutions 

Fund Financial Statements 

The fund financial statements provide information about the District's funds including those of a fiduciary nature.  Separate 
statements for each fund category - governmental and fiduciary - are presented.  The emphasis of fund financial statements is  



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2015 

24 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

on major governmental funds, each displayed in a separate column.  All remaining governmental funds are aggregated and 
reported as other governmental funds. 

The District reports the following major governmental funds: 

General Fund - This is the District's primary operating fund and accounts for all revenues and expenditures except those 
required to be accounted for in another fund. 

Federal Grant Fund – This fund accounts for revenues and expenditures of grants restricted for specific educational 
projects.  Principal revenue sources are federal grants. 

Capital Project Fund – This fund accounts for financial resources that are used for the acquisition of land, construction of 
buildings, remodel, rehabilitation and/or major renovation of capital facilities, fixtures, new equipment and textbooks for 
program improvement and educational technology.  Principal revenue sources are construction excise taxes, SB 1149 
revenues, rental fees on surplus land and surplus land sales, MESD resolution, and transfers from the General fund. 

Additionally, the District reports the following fund types: 

The pension trust fund accounts for the accumulation of resources to be used for payments to employees who receive 
supplemental early retirement stipends and post-employment health care benefits.   

The Agency Fund accounts for pass-through grants where the District acts as fiscal agent or cash conduit and handles the 
payroll function for the Center for Advanced Learning and Gresham-Barlow Education Foundation. 

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 

Government-wide and pension trust fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and 
the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and  
expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take  
place.  Non-exchange transactions, in which the District receives value without giving equal value in exchange, include property 
taxes, grants, entitlements and donations. On the accrual basis of accounting, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the 
fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which 
all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.  Under terms of grant agreements, the District funds certain programs by a 
combination of specific cost-reimbursement grants and general revenues.  Thus, when program expenses are incurred, there are 
both restricted and unrestricted net position available to finance the program.  It is the District's policy to first apply cost-
reimbursement grant resources to such programs and then general revenues. 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and modified accrual 
basis of accounting.  Under this method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available.  The District considers all 
revenues reported in the governmental funds to be available if they are collected within thirty days after year-end.  Property taxes 
and interest are considered to be susceptible to accrual.  Expenditures are  

recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt and claims and 
judgments, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured.  Capital asset acquisitions are reported as 
expenditures in the governmental funds and proceeds from general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are 
reported as other financing sources.   

Agency fund financial statements report only assets and liabilities and therefore, have no measurement focus.  However the accrual 
basis of accounting is used to recognize receivables and payables. 

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments 

The District's cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, demand deposits, saving deposits, money market deposits, 
investments in the State of Oregon Treasurer’s Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) and cash with county treasurers.    



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2015 

25 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The District's investments, according to policy, can consist of time certificates of deposit, bankers’ acceptances, commercial 
paper and U.S. Government Agency securities.  Time certificates of deposits are stated at cost which approximates fair value. 
Investments, other than time certificates of deposit, that have a remaining maturity at the time of purchase of one year or less 
are stated at amortized cost.  All other investments are stated at fair value, or estimated fair value.  The LGIP is stated at cost 
which approximates fair value.  Fair value of the LGIP is the same as the District’s value in pool shares. 

The Oregon State Treasury administers the LGIP.  It is an open-ended no-load diversified portfolio offered to any agency, political 
subdivision or public corporation of the State that by law is made the custodian of, or has control of, any fund.  The LGIP is 
commingled with the State’s short-term funds.  In seeking to best serve local governments of Oregon, the Oregon legislature 
established the Oregon Short-Term Fund Board.  The purpose of the Board is to advise the Oregon State Treasury in the 
management and investment options of the LGIP. 

Property Taxes Receivable 

Property taxes are levied and become a lien on July 1. Collection dates are November 15, February 15, and May 15 following 
the lien date.  Discounts are allowed if the amount due is received by November 15 or February 15.  Taxes unpaid and 
outstanding on May 16 are considered delinquent.  Uncollected property taxes are recorded on the statement of net assets. 
Uncollected taxes are deemed to be substantially collectible or recoverable through liens; therefore, no allowance for 
uncollectible taxes has been established.  All property taxes receivable are due from property owners within the District. 

Accounts and Other Receivables 

Accounts and other receivables are comprised primarily of State school support and claims for reimbursement of costs under 
various federal and state grants.  All accounts receivable are current and no allowance for uncollectible accounts is made. 

Interfund Receivables and Payables and Transfers 

The receipt and payment of monies through one central checking account, as well as transfers between funds, result in 
interfund payables and receivables until cash is transferred from one fund to the other.  These amounts represent current 
assets and liabilities and are reported as due to or due from other funds. 

Grants 

Unreimbursed expenditures due from grantor agencies are reflected in the basic financial statements as receivables and revenues.  
Grant revenues are recorded at the time eligible expenditures are incurred.  Grant monies received prior to the occurrence of 
qualifying expenditures are recorded as unearned revenue. 

Supply Inventories and prepaids 

Inventories are charged as expenditures when purchased and are stated at cost using first-in, first-out (FIFO) method.  Any 
donated inventories are stated at their estimated fair market value.  Inventories at year end were considered immaterial. 

A portion of the inventory consists of donated United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) commodities.  Commodities 
are recorded when processing and handling fees are paid and are stated at their fair market value based on guidelines 
provided by the USDA.  Commodities on hand at year end were considered immaterial. 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items in both 
government-wide and fund financial statements. 

Intangible Assets 

Intangible assets are recorded in accordance with GASB Statement No. 51.  The capitalization threshold for intangible assets 
is $50,000.  There were no intangible assets as of June 30, 2015. 



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2015 

26 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Capital Assets 

Capital assets are recorded at original or estimated original cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair 
market value on the date donated.  The District defines capital assets as assets with an initial cost of more than $5,000 and an 
estimated life in excess of three years.  Interest incurred during  
construction is not capitalized.   Maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets' lives 
are not capitalized.  Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following useful lives: 

Buildings and improvements 10 to 50 years 
Equipment and vehicles   5 to 20 years 
Land and construction in progress are not depreciated. 

Retirement Plans 

Substantially all of the District's employees are participants in the State of Oregon Public Employees Retirement System 
(PERS).  For the purpose of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about fiduciary net position of PERS and additions 
to/deductions from PERS’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by PERS.  
For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in 
accordance with the benefit terms.  Investments are reported at fair value. 

In addition, licensed, classified employees (hired prior to July 1, 1999), administrative supervisors, (hired prior to July 1, 2005) 
and confidential employees (hired prior to July 1, 2009) with 15 years of service with the District and reaching age 55 (10 
years for administrative) or age 55 with 30 years of service with PERS, generally, are eligible for early retirement benefits. 
Payment of benefits is made from a fiduciary fund, which accumulates contributions made from the General Fund.  These 
contributions are charged to expenditures based on actuarially determined amounts.  Employer contributions to the Pension 
Trust Fund are recorded when due and the Board has made a formal commitment to provide contributions. 

The District offers its employees tax deferred annuity plans established pursuant to Section 403(b) and Section 457(b) of the 
Internal Revenue Code. 

Post Employment Health Care Benefits 

Eligible administrative and confidential employees who elect early retirement are entitled to payment of group medical and 
dental insurance premiums up to specified maximum limits.  Such costs are recorded as expenses in the Pension Trust Fund 
and funded as premiums become due. 

Compensated Absences 

It is the District’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick pay benefits.  There is no 
liability for unpaid accumulated sick leave since the District does not have a policy to pay any amounts when employees 
separate from service with the District.  All unused vacation pay is accrued when earned in the government-wide financial 
statements.  A liability for these amounts is reported in the governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a 
result of employee resignation and retirements. 

Long-term Debt 

In the government-wide financial statements long-term debt is reported as a liability in the Statement of Net Position.   Bond 
premiums and discounts, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line method, which 
approximates the effective interest method.  Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.   

In the fund financial statements bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, are recognized when incurred 
and not deferred.  The face amount of the debt issued, premiums received on debt issuances, and discounts are reported as 
other financing sources and uses.  Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are 
reported as debt service expenditures. 



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2015 

27 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Budget 

A budget is prepared and legally adopted for each governmental fund type and pension trust funds  on the modified accrual 
basis of accounting.  The agency fund is not required to be budgeted.  A budget is prepared for multiple areas of the District’s 
Captial Project Fund and Special Revenue Funds because the individual funds are associated with specific bond proceeds, 
grants or other revenue souces, however, the legal level of budgetary control is at the combined level as adopted by the 
Board of Education by resolution.  The budgetary basis of accounting is substantially the same as accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America basis, except capital outlay expenditures, including items below the 
District's capitalization level, are budgeted by major function in governmental fund types, inventories are budgeted as 
expenditures when purchased and contributions to the Post Retirement Fund are budgeted as transfers. The resolution 
authorizing appropriations for each fund sets the level by which expenditures cannot legally exceed appropriations.   

Appropriations are established at the major function level (instruction, support services, community services, facilities 
acquisition and construction, debt service, operating contingency and transfers) for each fund.  The detail budget document, 
however, is required to contain more specific, detailed information for the aforementioned expenditure categories. 
Unexpected additional resources may be added to the budget through the use of a supplemental budget and appropriation 
resolution.  

Supplemental budgets less than 10% of a fund’s original budget may be adopted by the Board at a regular meeting.  A 
supplemental budget greater than 10% of a fund’s original budget requires hearings before the public, publication in 
newspapers and approval by the Board.  A budget amendment was approved by the Board on May 7, 2015 in the amount of 
approximately $1 million which was less than one percent of the original budget.  Original and supplemental budgets may be 
modified by the use of appropriation transfers between the levels of control (major function levels) with Board approval. 
During the year, no appropriation transfers were made.  Appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year.    Expenditures of 
the various funds were within authorized appropriations. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of basic financial statements, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America, requires management to make estimates and assumptions that effect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the basic financial statements and reported amounts 
of revenues and expenditures during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates.    

Deferred outflows/inflows of resources 

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflow of 
resources.  This separate financial statement element represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future 
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then.  The District has 
unavailable property taxes and a net deferred pension inflow, which arises only under the modified accrual basis of 
accounting, which qualifies for reporting in this category.  This amount is deferred and recognized as an outflow of resources 
in the period that the amounts are due.   

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of 
resources.  This separate financial statement element represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future 
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.  The District has items, which arise 
only under the modified accrual basis of accounting, which qualifies for reporting in this category.  Accordingly, these items, 
unavailable revenue, are reported only in the governmental funds balance sheet. These amounts are deferred and 
recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become available. 

Net position flow assumption 

Sometimes the District will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and unrestricted resources.  In order to 
calculate the amounts to report as restricted-net position and unrestricted-net position in the government-wide financial 
statements, a flow assumption must be made about the order in which resources are considered applied.  It is the District’s 
policy to consider restricted-net position to have been depleted before unrestricted-net position is applied. 



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2015 

28 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fund Balance Policies 

Fund balance of governmental funds is reported in various categories based on the nature of any limitation requiring the use 
of resources for specific purposes.  These categories are described as follows: 

Nonspendable Fund Balance – represents amounts that are not in a spendable form (inventories and prepaid items).  
The District currently has no nonspendable fund balance. 

Restricted Fund Balance – represents amounts that are legally restricted by outside parties for a specific purpose (such 
as debt covenants, grant requirements, donor requirements or other governments) or are restricted by law 
(constitutionally or by enabling legislation).   

Committed Fund Balance – represents funds formally set aside by the Board of Directors for a particular purpose.  The 
Board of Directors must take formal action by resolution to establish, modify or resend the commitment.  The District 
currently has no committed fund balance. 
Assigned Fund Balance – represents amounts that are constrained by the expressed intent to use resources for specific 
purposes that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed.  The Board has given authority by 
motion to the District’s Superintendent and/or the District’s Chief Finance Officer to assign fund balance.   

Unassigned Fund Balance – is the residual classification of the General Fund.  Only the General Fund may report a 
positive unassigned fund balance.  Other governmental funds would report any negative residual fund balance as 
unassigned. 

The Board of Directors has approved the following order of spending regarding fund balance categories:  

1. Restricted Fund Balance
2. Committed Fund Balance
3. Assigned Fund Balance
4. Unassigned Fund Balance

2. CASH, DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Cash, deposits and investments are comprised of the following as of June 30, 2014, stated at cost which approximates fair value: 

Cash on hand $ 3,879 
Deposits banks 4,080,199 
Time certificates of deposit 136,087 
State of Oregon treasurer’s investment pool 13,207,250 

$ 17,427,415 

Cash and investments are shown on the basic financial statements as: 

 Statement of Net Position 
      Equity in Cash and Investments $ 16,334,729 
 Statement of Fiduciary Funds Net Assets 

 Equity in Cash and Investments 1,098,785 
     Book overdraft  (6,099) 

$ 17,427,415 

Interest rate risk.  In accordance with its investment policy, the District manages its exposure to declines in fair values by structuring 
the investment portfolio so that securities mature to meet cash requirements for ongoing operations, thereby avoiding the need to 
sell securities on the open market prior to maturity and investing operating funds primarily in shorter-term securities or short-term  



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2015 

29 

2. CASH, DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

investment pools.  The maximum maturity shall be the anticipated use of the cash or 18 months, whichever is shorter, unless the 
funds are being accumulated for a specific purpose, including future construction projects, and upon approval of the District, the 
maximum maturity date matches anticipated use of the funds. 

As of June 30, 2015 the District held the following investments and maturities: 

Investment Type

Local Government Investment Pool $ 13,207,250        $ 13,207,250        $ -     $ -     100 %
U. S. Agencies -                     -                     -     -     0

$ 13,207,250        $ 13,207,250        $ -     -     100    %

Investment Maturities (in months) % of
PortfolioFair Value Less than 3 3-18 18-59

Credit risk.  State law and the District’s investment policy limits investments in corporate bonds to the top two ratings issued by 
nationally recognized statistical rating organizations (NRSROs) and commercial paper to the top rating (top two if issued on Oregon 
business enterprises).  The District’s investment in U.S. Agency Securities were rated Aaa by Moody’s Investors Service.  The State 
treasurer’s investment pool is an open-ended, no-load diversified portfolio.  The fund is not registered with the U. S. Securities and 
Exchange Commission as an investment company and is not rated. 

Concentration of Credit Risk.  The District’s investment policy places no limit on the amount the District may invest in U.S. 
government agency securities and instrumentalities of government-sponsored corporations or the state treasurer’s investment pool, 
however the policy limits investment to a single U. S government agency to 50% of surplus funds   The District’s investment policy 
limits commercial paper to 35% of total investments with no more than 5% in a single corporate entity or it affiliates or subsidiaries.  
The District‘s investment policy also limits banker’s acceptances to 50% of the total investment portfolio with no more than 25% of 
the total portfolio of investments in a single issuer.  State and Local Government securities are limited to 25% of the total portfolio 
and to lawfully issued debt obligation or the agencies and instrumentalities of the States of Oregon, Washington, Idaho and 
California.  The District policy, which adheres to State of Oregon law, is to limit its investment to issuers within Oregon with a rating 
of at least “A” (bond) or A-2/P-2 (commercial paper) or better by Standard and Poor’s, Moody’s Investor Service or any other  

nationally recognized statistical rating organization, issuers not in Oregon must be rated AA/Aa (bonds) or A-1/P-1 (commercial 
paper) or better. 

Custodial credit risk – deposits.  At year-end, the District's net carrying amount of deposits was $4,216,286 and the bank balance 
was $5,053,224.  Of these deposits, $782,351 was covered by federal depository insurance, the remainder is collateralized the 
Oregon Public Funds Collateralization Program (PFCP).  Oregon Revised Statutes and District policy require depository institutions 
to maintain on deposit, with the collateral pool manager, securities having a value not less than 10% of their quarter-end public fund 
deposits if they are well capitalized, 25% of their quarter-end public fund deposits if they are adequately capitalized, or 110% of their 
quarter-end public fund deposits if they are undercapitalized or assigned to pledge 110% by the Office of the State Treasurer.  

Custodial credit risk – investments.  For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the 
government will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside 
party.  The District minimizes custodial credit risk by limiting investments to the types of securities allowed by law; and pre-qualifying 
the financial institutions, and broker/dealers with which the District will do business.  The 

District’s investment policy requires that all of the District’s investments, except for the investment in the Local Government 
Investment Pool which is not evidenced by securities and the overnight sweep repurchase agreements, to be delivered to and held 
in third party safekeeping.  The overnight sweep repurchase agreements were held in safekeeping by the financial institution 
counterparty in the financial institution’s general customer account name.  There was no overnight sweep balance at June 30, 2015. 



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2015 

30 

3. RECEIVABLES

Receivables are comprised of the following as of June 30, 2015: 

Property taxes $ 1,975,988 
Grants  941,476 
Common school fund 613,273 
July turnover with county treasurer 192,053 
Agency fund  6,099 
Other  433,364   

Total $ 4,162,253 

4. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets activity for the year was as follows: 
July 1,  June 30,

Increases Decreases 2015
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land $ 6,326,123      $ - $ - $ 6,326,123      
Construction in progress -         517,039         - 517,039         

Total capital assets not being depreciated 6,326,123      517,039         - 6,843,162      

Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings and improvements 118,994,367  383,384         - 119,377,751  
Vehicles and equipment 6,401,232      291,057         - 6,692,289      

Total capital assets being depreciated 125,395,599  674,441         - 126,070,040  

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements (51,381,673)  (2,610,760)    -  (53,992,433)  
Vehicles and equipment (5,372,503)    (136,427)       - (5,508,930)    

Total accumulated depreciation (56,754,176)  (2,747,187)    -  (59,501,363)  

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 68,641,423    (2,072,746)    - 66,568,677    

Total capital assets, net $ 74,967,546     $ (1,555,707)    $ - $ 73,411,839     

2014

Depreciation expense for the year was charged to the following programs: 

Program
Regular programs $ 2,476,685  
Special programs 32,503       
Student support services 971            
Instructional programs 661            
School administration 1,611         
Business support services 189,306     
Central activities 5,310         
Enterprise and community services 40,140       

Total $ 2,747,187  



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2015 

31 

5. Long-Term Debt

Bonds Payable 

General Obligation Bonds

General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the District.  The District issues general 
obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of District school facilities.  Outstanding issues are all 
refunding issues which refunded the 1996 and 2000 construction bonds. 

On June 19, 2012 the District issued $9.43 million in taxable refunding bonds in order to refund $8,895 million of the Series 
2003 GO Bonds.  As a result, the refunded bonds are considered to be defeased and the liability has been removed from the 
government activities column of the statement of net assets.  The bonds were issued at par.   

 Changes in general obligation bonds outstanding are as follows:   

Outstanding Matured Outstanding Due 
Original  July 1, and June 30, Within Interest 

ISSUE DATE: Issue 2014 Issued Redeemed 2015 One Year Rates 
        April 18, 2005  $32,405,000      $  27,240,000    $               -  $  2,115,000 $  25,125,000   $2,340,000       5.50% 

 June 19, 2012     9,430,000 6,865,000                -              2,245,000 4,620,000       2,290,000   1.23-1.37 
34,105,000                -            4,360,000 29,745,000     4,630,000 

 Unamortized premium             1,619,040 - 231,291 1,387,749        231,292 

    Total         $ 35,724.040 $               -    $  4,591,291 $     31,132,749   $  4,861,292 

  Pension Obligation Bonds 

On October 31, 2002 and April 21, 2003, limited tax pension obligation bonds totaling $35,758,403 and $25,307,539, 
respectively, were issued to finance the District’s unfunded actuarially accrued liability (UAL) with the State of Oregon Public 
Employees Retirement System (PERS).  The issuance of the bonds was considered an advance refunding of the District’s 
UAL and resulted in as estimated present value saving of approximately $16 million over the life of the bonds.  The actual 
savings realized by the District over the life of the bonds is uncertain because of the various legislative changes and legal 
issues pending with the PERS system which could impact the District’s future required contribution rate. 

On January 31, 2012, limited tax pension refunding obligation bonds totaling $2,485 million were issued to refund $2,380 
million of the October 31, 2002 limited tax pension obligation bonds.  The remaining pension obligation bonds are not callable.  
As a result, the refunded bonds are considered to be defeased and the liability has been removed from the government 
activities column of the statement of net assets.   
Changes in pension obligation bonds outstanding are as follows: 

Outstanding Matured Outstanding Due 
Original July 1, and June 30, Within Interest 

ISSUE DATE: Issue 2014 Issued Redeemed 2015 One Year Rates 
 October 31, 2002  $ 35,758,403       $  28,643,794  $                 -    $       698,239 $27,945,555  $   714,911  5.48-6.1% 

 April 21, 2003       25,307,539       19,436,020                -            683,128           18,752,892       686,195    5.66-6.34 
 January 31, 2012        2,485,000           2,485,000 - 2,485,000 2.75 

   50,564,814 -         1,381,367         49,183,447   1,401,106 

 Unamortized  discount    (6,450,959) -       (1,348,147)        (5,102,812)  (1,348,147) 

    Total  $  44,113,855  $                 -    $       33,220   $        44,080,635  $     52,959 



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2015 

32 

5. LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

Full Faith and Credit Obligations 

On August 22, 2012 the District issued $2.185 million in full faith and credit obligations in order to finance energy efficiency and 
related capital projects.  Repayment will be made from the District’s general non-restricted revenues and other funds that may be 
available for that purpose but primarily SB 1149 revenues which are designated for energy projects.  The obligations are not general 
obligation bonds and are not subject to the District’s debt limitation. 

Changes in full faith and credit obligation bonds outstanding are as follows: 

Outstanding Matured Outstanding Due 
Original July 1, and June 30, Within  Interest 

ISSUE DATE: Issue 2014 Issued Redeemed 2015 One Year  Rates 
 August 12, 2012  $ 2,185,000   $     1,930,000 $            -   $       120,000 $1,810,000  $   125,000  3-4% 

Unamortized premium  165,685 12,745           152,939            12,745 

Total  $     2,095,685  $            -   $      132,745   $        1,962,939  $   137,745 

 Future maturities are as follows and does not include amortization of premium and discounts: 

Fiscal Year  
Ending June 30,  Principal  Interest 

2016 $ 6,155,106 $ 5,208,712 
2017 6,449,247   5,304,805 
2018 5,974,791 5,403,378 
2019 6,391,415 5,449,602 
2020 6,825,175 5,487,030 

2021-2025 29,237,713 14,428,498 
2026-2028   19,705,000 1,987,477 

Total $ 80,738,447 $ 43,269,502 

In prior years, the District defeased general obligation bonds by placing the proceeds of new bonds in irrevocable trusts to 
provide for all future debt service payments on the old obligations.  As a result, the early refunding bonds are considered to 
be defeased.  Accordingly, the trust account assets and the liabilities for the defeased obligations are not included in the 
District’s basic financial statements.  At June 30, 2015, $29,825,000 of general obligation bonds and $2,380,000 of PERS 
bonds outstanding are considered defeased. 

Compensated Absences 

Outstanding 7/1/14         Additions  Payments   Outstanding 6/30/15          Due with one year 

   $682,659       $526,474  $549,154          $659,979 $522,297 

Compensated absences are assumed to be used on a first in first out basis and are generally liquidated by the general fund.  
An estimate has been made to determine balances which are considered due within one year. 

The general obligation bonds will be paid from general property tax revenues from the Debt Service Fund.  The pension 
bonds will be paid from the general fund with reimbursements from charges to fringe benefits for all employees who qualify 
for the State of Oregon Public Employees Retirement System.  Compensated absences will be paid from the general fund.     



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2015 

33 

6. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS

Due to/from other funds at June 30, 2015 are as follows: 

General fund $ 671,462         
Federal Grant Fund $ 654,291      
Non-major governmental funds 17,171        
Total interfund receivables and payables $ 671,462         $ 671,462      

Receivables Payables

The outstanding balances between funds results from grant awards which require the expenditure of funds prior to 
reimbursement, causing negative cash balances until grant reimbursement is received.  This transaction properly records 
negative cash balances. 

Transfers are used to move unrestricted revenues to finance various programs that the District must account for in other 
funds in accordance with budgetary authorization. 

In the year ended June 30, 2015, the District made the following transfers: 

1) A transfer of $250,000 from the General Fund to the Capital Projects Fund in support of the maintenance reserve
program.

2) A transfer of $300,000 from the General Fund to the Post Retirement Fund in support of other post employment
health care benefits.

3) A transfer of $260,000 from the General Fund to the Other Special Revenue Fund in support of print shop operations.

7. OPERATING LEASES

The District leases equipment, primarily copiers, under non-cancelable lease agreements.  Operating lease 
expenses/expenditures totaled approximately $282,000 for the year ended June 30, 2015.  Future payments associated with 
operating leases are due as follows:  

Fiscal Year Ending June 
30, 

Amount 

2016 $ 198,500 
2017 178,800 
2018 66,200 
2019 24,700 
2020 800 

$ 469,000 

8. CAPITAL LEASES 

The District has entered into a lease agreement as lessee for financing the acquisition of computer hardware with a down
payment of $257,911.  The lease agreement qualifies as a capital lease for accounting purposes and, therefore has been
recorded at the present value of the future minimum lease payments as of the inception date.  The equipment acquired
through the capital lease had a purchase price of $1,006,065 but did not meet the criteria for capitalization under the District’s
capitalization policy and therefore was expensed in the current fiscal year.

The future minimum lease obligation and net present value of these lease payments as of June 30, 2015 is as follows:
Year ending June 30, Amount
2016 257,911$    

2017 257,912   
2018 257,911   
Total minimum lease payments 773,734   
Less: amount representing interest (25,580)    
Present Value of minimum lease payments 748,154$   



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2015 

34 

9. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

Early Retirement

Plan Description - The District maintains a single employer early retirement supplement program for its employees.  This
program covers all full-time certificated and classified employees (hired prior to July 1, 1999) and administrative employees
(hired prior to July 1, 2005) and confidential (hired prior to July 1, 2009 ) personnel of the District.  The District does not issue
a stand alone report for this plan.

These programs have been established under separate collective bargaining agreements and provide provisions for early 
retirement after 30 years of service or age 55 with at least 15 years of continuous District service (ten years for administrative) 
immediately preceding retirement.  This optional early retirement program provides the employee with the following: 

 For certificated employees, $780 per month for the earlier of forty-eight months or until age 62.
 For classified or confidential employees, $200 per month for the earlier of forty-eight months or until age 62.
 For administrators with between 10 and 15 years of service, $350 per month for the earlier of forty-eight months or until age 

62. 
 For administrators with 15 or more years of service, $400 per month for the earlier of forty-eight months or until age 62 

Summary of significant accounting polices –The plan is accounted for in the Early Retirement Fund, which is reported on the 
accrual basis of accounting.  The District’s contributions are recognized when due and a formal commitment to provide the 
contributions has been made. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the 
plan. Plan investments are a part of the District’s investment pool, reported at fair value.   

Funding Policy - The benefits from this program are fully paid by the District and, consequently, no contributions by employees 
are required.  Although there is no obligation on the part of the District to fund 
these benefits in advance, the District has established an Early Retirement Fund to accumulate assets to pay these benefits in the 
future based on an actuarially determined rate.  

Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation - The District's annual pension cost and net pension obligation (NPO) to the 
Early Retirement Fund for the current year and prior year were as follows: 

Annual required contribution $ 386,928    $ 386,928  $ 414,583   
Interest on net pension obligation (9,768)   (10,650)   (11,773)    
Adjustment to annual required contribution 40,164  43,788    41,393  

     Annual pension cost 417,324    420,066  444,203   
Contributions made (400,449)   (394,882)    (454,172)  

     Increase in net pension obligation 16,875  25,184    (9,969)   
NPO (Asset) at beginning of year (279,100)   (304,284)    (294,315)  

NPO (Asset) at end of year $ (262,225)   $ (279,100)    $ (304,284)  

Percentage of APC contributed 95.0% 94.0% 102.2%

2015 2014 2013

 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions - The annual required contribution (ARC) for the current year was determined as part of the 
July 1, 2013 actuarial valuation using the aggregate actuarial cost method, which does not identify nor separately amortize 
unfunded actuarial liabilities.  The actuarial assumptions included 
(a)  a rate of return on investment of present and future assets of 3.5% compounded annually; (b) no future increase in benefit 
payable from this program; and (c) no post-retirement benefit increases and an inflation rate of 2.75%.  Assets of the Early 
Retirement Fund for these programs are valued at cost which approximates fair value. 



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2015 

35 

9. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

Early Retirement (Continued) 

Funding Status and Funding Progress – Because the aggregate actuarial cost method does not identify or separately 
amortize unfunded actuarial liabilities, information about funding progress has been prepared using the entry age actuarial 
cost method for that purpose, and the information presented is  
intended to serve as a surrogate for the funded status and funding progress of the plan.  As of July 1, 2015, the most recent 
actuarial valuation date, the plan was 12.4% funded.  The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was approximately $2.4 
million, and the actuarial value of assets was $299,107, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of 
approximately $2.1 million.  The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was approximately 
$15.2 million, and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 13.8%.   

The schedule of funding progress, presented as RSI following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend 
information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial 
accrued liability for benefits. 

The funding policy for these programs provides for an actuarially determined periodic transfer of resources by the General Fund to 
the Early Retirement Fund.  The transfer of resources is intended to be a constant  
dollar amount for each employee covered by the programs so that sufficient resources will be available to pay benefits when due.  
Costs of administering these programs are funded by the District. 

Program membership consisted of the following at January 1, 2015: 

Retirees currently receiving benefits 53
Active program members 273

Total 326

Post Employment Health Care Benefits 

Plan Description - The District, as a result of collective bargaining agreements, offers post-employment medical benefits 
under a single-employer, defined benefit plan, to administrators and confidential employees upon retiring under the provisions 
of PERS and to instructors who retired prior to July 1, 1992.  In addition to qualifying for PERS, retirees must elect early 
retirement under the District’s early retirement program as described in the previous Note.  For these retirees, the District 
provides payments for medical premiums and provides dental coverage to administrators until the earlier of 120 months or 
until age 65. 

Prior to July 1, 1992, the program was also available to instructors.  As a result of collective bargaining, increased benefits in 
the District’s early retirement program, as described in the previous note, have replaced the post-employment health care 
benefits for instructions retiring on or after July 1, 1992.  Benefits will continue for those instructors already receiving benefits, 
who retired prior to July 1, 1992.  The District does not issue a stand-alone report for this plan. 

Summary of significant accounting polices –The plan is accounted for in the Post Retirement Fund, which is reported on the 
accrual basis of accounting.  The District’s contributions are recognized when due and a formal commitment to provide the 
contributions has been made. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the 
plan. Plan investments are a part of the District’s investment pool, reported at fair value. Because the District has not 
transferred the assets to an insurance trust, the actuarial value of assets is zero.  

Funding Policy - The benefits from this program are fully paid by the District and, consequently, no contributions by employees are 
required.  Although there is no obligation on the part of the District to fund these benefits in advance, the District has established a 
Post Retirement Fund to accumulate assets to pay these benefits in the future; however the District does not contribute to the fund 
on an actuarially determined basis.   

Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation - The District's annual other postemployment benefit cost is calculated based on 
the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), and amount actuarially determined in accordance within the parameter of 
GASB Statement 45.  The ARC represents a level of  funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost  



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2015 

36 

9. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS  (CONTINUED)

each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years.  The following
table shows the components of the OPEB obligation at the end of the year: 

Annual required contribution $ 251,201      $ 256,645  $ 267,823   
Interest on net pension obligation 7,206     5,404      4,557  
Adjustment to annual required contribution (24,779)  (18,581)   (14,103)    

     Annual pension cost 233,628      243,468  258,277   
Contributions made (173,541)     (191,979)      (217,792)  

     Increase in net pension obligation 60,087   51,489    40,485     
OPEB (Asset) at beginning of year 205,889      154,400  113,915   

OPEB (Asset) at end of year $ 265,976      $ 205,889  $ 154,400   

Percentage of APC contributed 74.3% 78.9% 84.3%

2015 2014 2013

 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions – Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan 
(the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the type of benefits provided at the time of each 
valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point.  The actuarial 
methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial 
accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations. 

The annual required contribution (ARC) for the current year was determined as part of the July 1, 2013 actuarial valuation using 
the projected unit credit method.  The objective of this method is to fund each participant’s benefits under the plans as they accrue.  
The unfunded accrued liability is amortized over an open period of 10 years as a percentage of payroll.  The actuarial assumptions 
included (a) a rate of return on investment of present and future assets of 3.5% compounded annually and a 100% assumption of 
participants who elect medical coverage at retirement; (b) for employees who are not yet retired, the District paid cap is assumed 
to increase $60 per month each year until retirement; and (c) no post-retirement benefit increases, an inflation rate of 2.75% and a 
payroll growth rate of 3.5%. 

Funding Status and Funding Progress – As of July 1, 2015, the plan was 0% funded.  The actuarial accrued liability for 
benefits was $1,222,355, and the actuarial value of assets was zero, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability 
(UAAL) of $1,222,355.  The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $3,397,410, and 
the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 36%.   

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the 
probability of occurrence of events far into the future.  Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, 
and the healthcare cost trend.  Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required 
contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new 
estimates 
are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as RSI following the notes to the financial statements, 
presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets are increasing or decreasing over time 
relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits. 

The funding policy for these programs provides for an actuarially determined periodic transfer of resources by the General Fund to 
the Post Retirement Fund.  The transfer of resources is intended to be a constant dollar amount for each employee covered by the 
programs so that sufficient resources will be available to pay benefits when due.  Costs of administering these programs are 
funded by the District. 



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2015 

37 

9. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS  (CONTINUED)

Program membership consisted of the following at January 1, 2015:

Retirees currently receiving benefits 15 
Active program members 

Total 
37 
52 

Post Employment Health Insurance Subsidy 

Plan Description - The District operates a single-employer retiree benefit plan that provides postemployment health, dental 
vision and life insurance benefits to eligible employees and their spouses.  There are active and retired members in the plan. 
Benefits and eligibility for members are established through the collective bargaining agreements.   

The District’s post-retirement healthcare plan established in accordance with Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) 243.303.  ORS 
stipulated that for the purpose of establishing healthcare premiums, the rate must be based on all plan members, including both 
active employees and retirees.  The difference between retiree claims cost, which because of the effect of age is generally higher 
in comparison to all plan members, and the amount of retiree healthcare premiums represents the District’s implicit employer 
contribution.   

The District did not establish an irrevocable trust (or equivalent arrangement) to account for the plan.  Instead, the activities of the 
plan are reported in the General Fund.  The District does not issue a stand-alone report for this plan. 

Funding Policy – The benefits from this program are paid by the retired employees on a self-pay basis and the required 
contribution is based on projected pay-as-you go financing requirements.  There is no obligation on the part of the District to 
fund these benefits in advance. 

Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation - Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the 
substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the type of benefits provided at the 
time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. 
The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in 
actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations. 

The District's annual other postemployment benefit cost is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer 
(ARC), and amount actuarially determined in accordance within the parameter of GASB Statement 45.  The ARC represents a 
level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial 
liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years.  The following table shows the components of the OPEB 
obligation at the end of the year: 

Annual required contribution $ 1,450,464   $ 1,366,042  $ 1,449,693  
Interest on net pension obligation 43,218  31,071  24,965  
Adjustment to annual required contribution (77,175)    (52,219)    (35,547)    

     Annual pension cost 1,416,507   1,344,894  1,439,111  
Contributions made (991,551)  (997,821)  (1,175,507)    

     Increase in net pension obligation 424,956   347,073   263,604   
OPEB (Asset) at beginning of year 1,234,803   887,730   624,126   

OPEB (Asset) at end of year $ 1,659,759   $ 1,234,803  $ 887,730   

Percentage of APC contributed 70.0% 74.2% 81.7%

2015 2014 2013

 



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2015 

38 

9. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS  (CONTINUED)

Post Employment Health Insurance Subsidy (Continued) 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions – The annual required contribution (ARC) for the current year was determined as part of the 
July 1, 2015 actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method.  The objective of this method is to fund each participant’s 
benefits under the plans as they accrue.  The unfunded accrued liability is amortized over a closed period of 20 years as a 
percentage of payroll.  The actuarial assumptions included (a) a rate of return on investment of present and future assets of 3.5% 
compounded annually, an inflation rate of 2.75% and a payroll growth rate of 3.5%, (b) a 50% assumption of participants who elect 
self-pay retiree medical coverage and a 100% assumption of participants who elect self-pay retiree life insurance coverage at 
retirement; (c) medical and prescription  

drug costs would increase at 10.5% inflation for the current year, grading down to annual rate of 5.25% after thirty two years  and 
dental costs would increase at 5.25% inflation for the current year. 

The demographic assumptions, such as mortality rates, disability incidence rates, retirement rates and withdrawal rates, are 
the same as those used by Oregon PERS for School Districts. 

Funding Status and Funding Progress – As of July 1, 2015, the plan was 0% funded.  The actuarial accrued liability for benefits 
was $8,680,775, and the actuarial value of assets was zero, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of 
$8,680,775.  The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $54,456,022, and the ratio of the 
UAAL to the covered payroll was 15.9%.   

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the 
probability of occurrence of events far into the future.  Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, 
and the healthcare cost trend.  Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required 
contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new 
estimates are made about the future.  The schedule of funding progress, presented as RSI following the notes to the financial 
statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets are increasing or 
decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits. 

Tax Sheltered Annuity 

The District offers its employees a tax deferred annuity programs established pursuant to Section 403(b) and 457(b) of the 
Internal Revenue Code (the Code). Contributions are made through salary reductions from participating employees up to the 
amounts specified in the Code.  No contributions are required from the District.  As of June 30, 2015, approximately 380 
employees were participating in the plan. 

10. PENSION PLAN

Plan Description – The Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) consists of a single cost-sharing multiple-
employee defined benefit plan.  All benefits of the system are established by the legislature pursuant to Oregon Revised 
Statute (ORS) Chapters 238 and 238A.  Oregon PERS produces an independently audited Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report which can be found at:  http://www.oregon.gov/pers/Pages/section/financial_reports/financials.aspx. 

a. PERS Pension (Chapter 238).  The ORS Chapter 238 Defined Benefit Plan is closed to new members hired on or
after August 29, 2003.

i) Pension Benefits.  The PERS retirement allowance is payable monthly for life.  It may be selected from 13 retirement
benefit options.  These options include survivorship benefits and lump-sum refunds.  The basic benefit is based on
years of service and final average salary.  A percentage (2.0 percent for police and fire employees, and 1.67 percent
for general service employees) is multiplied by the number of years of service and the final average salary.  Benefits
may also be calculated under either a formula plus annuity (for members who were contributing before August 21,
1981) or a money match computation if a greater benefits results.

ii) Death Benefits.  Upon the death of a non-retired member, the beneficiary receives a lump-sum refund of the
member’s account balance (accumulated contributions and interest).  In addition, the beneficiary will receive a lump-
sum payment from employer funds equal to the account balance, provided on or more of the following contributions
are met:



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2015 

39 

10. PENSION PLAN, (CONTINUED)

 member was employed by PERS employer at the time of death,
 member died within 120 days after termination of PERS covered employment,
 member died as a result of injury sustained while employed in a PERS-covered job, or
 member was on an official leave of absence from a PERS-covered job at the time of death.

iii) Disability Benefits.  A member with 10 or more years of creditable service who becomes disable from other than duty-
connected causes may receive a non-duty disability benefit.  A disability resulting from a job-incurred injury or illness
qualifies a member (including PERS judge members) for disability benefits regardless of the length of PERS-covered
service.  Upon qualifying for either a non-duty or duty disability, service time is computed to age 58 (55 for police and
fire members) when determining the monthly benefit.

iv) Benefit Changes After Retirement.  Members may choose to continue participation in a variable equities investment
account after retiring and may experience annual benefit fluctuations due to changes in the market value equity
investments.  Under ORS 238.360 monthly benefits are adjusted annually through cost-of-living changes.  The cap on
the COLA will vary based on the amount of the annual benefit.

b) OPSRP Pension Program (OPSRP DB).  The ORS Chapter 238A Defined Benefit Pension Program provides benefits to
members hired on or after August 29, 2003.
i) Pension Benefits.  This portion of OPSRP provides a life pension funded by employer contributions.  Benefits are

calculated with the following formula for members who attain normal retirement age:
Police and fire: 1.8 percent is multiplied by the number of years of service and the final average salary.  Normal
retirement age for police and fire members is age 60 or age 53 with 25 years of retirement credit.  To be classified as
a police and fire member, the individual must have been employed continuously as a police and fire member for at
least five years immediately preceding retirement.
General service:  1.5 percent is multiplied by the number of years of service and the final average salary.  Normal
retirement age for general service members is age 65, or age 58 with 30 years of retirement credit.
A member of the pension program becomes vested on the earliest of the following dates:  the date the member
completes 600 hours of service in each of five calendar years, the date the member reaches normal retirement age,
and, if the pension program is terminated, the date on which termination becomes effective.

ii) Death Benefits.  Upon the death of a non-retired member, the spouse or other person who is constitutionally required
to be treated in the same manner as the spouse, receives for  life 50 percent of the pension that would otherwise have
been paid to the deceased member.

iii) Disability Benefits.  A member who has accrued 10 or more years of retirement credits before the member becomes
disabled or a member who becomes disabled due to job-related injury shall receive a disability benefit of 45 percent of
the member’s salary determined as of the last full month of employment before the disability occurred.

iv) Benefit Changes After Retirement.  Under ORS 238A.210 monthly benefits are adjusted annually through cost-of-
living changes.  The cap on the COLA will vary based on the amount of the annual benefit.

Contributions – PERS funding policy provides for monthly employer contributions at actuarially determined rates.  These 
contributions, expressed as a percentage of covered payroll, are intended to accumulate sufficient assets to pay benefits 
when due.  The funding policy applies to the PERS Defined Benefit Plan and the Other Postemployment Benefit Plans.  
Employer contribution rates during the period were based on the December 31, 2011 actuarial valuation, which became 
effective July 1, 2013.  The state of Oregon and certain schools, community colleges, and political subdivision have made 
unfunded actuarial liability payments and their rates have been reduced.  Employer contributions for the year ended June 30, 
2015 were $4,088,013, excluding amounts to fund employer specific liabilities.   Approximately $5,098,000  was charged for 
the year ended June 30, 2015 as PERS benefits expenditures to be used for bond payments as they become due.   In 
addition approximately $2,222,000 in employee contributions were paid or picked up by the District in fiscal 2015.         

At June 30, 2015, the District reported a liability of $12,462,938 for its proportionate share of the net pension asset.  The 
pension asset was measured as of December 31, 2012, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension 
liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.  The District’s proportion of the net pension liability was 
based on a projection of the District’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected 
contributions of all participating school districts, actuarially determined.  At December 31, 2012, the District’s proportion was 
.55 percent. 



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2015 

40 

10. PENSION PLAN, (CONTINUED)

Difference between expected and actual experience $ -     $ -         
Changes in assumptions -     -         
Net difference between projected and actual 
earnings on pension plan investments -     24,048,422            
Changes in proportion and differences between District
contributions and proportionate share of contributions -     763,854                 
District contributions subsequent to measurment date 7,355,620           -         

Net deferred outflow (inflow) of resources $ (17,456,656)           

Deferred Outflow
of Resourcesof Resources

Deferred Inflow

Amounts reported as deferred outflows or inflow of resources related to pension will be recognized in pension expense as 
follows: 

Year ending June 30, Amount
2016 (3,491,332)$      

2017 (3,491,331)$      
2018 (3,491,331)$      
2019 (3,491,331)$      
2020 (3,491,331)$      
Thereafter -   
Total (17,456,656)$   

All assumptions, methods and plan provisions used in these calculations are described in the Oregon PERS system-wide 
GASB 68 reporting summary dated July 29, 2015. Oregon PERS produces an independently audited CAFR which can be 
found at:  http://www.oregon.gov/pers/Pages/section/financial_reports/financial.aspx. 

Actuarial Valuations – The employer contribution rates effective July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2015, were set using the entry 
age normal actuarial cost method.  For the Tier One/Tier Two component of the PERS Defined Benefit Plan, this method 
produced an employer contribution rate consisting of (1) an amount for normal cost (estimated amount necessary to finance 
benefits earned by employees during the current service year), (2) an amount for the amortization unfunded actuarial accrued 
liabilities, which are being amortized over a fixed period with new unfunded actuarial liabilities being amortized over 20 years.  

For the OPSRP Pension Program component of the PERS Defined Benefit Plan, this method produced an employer rate 
consisting of (a) an amount for normal cost (the estimated amount necessar4y to finance benefits earned by the employees 
during the current service year), (b) an actuarially determined amount for funding a disability benefit component, and (c) an 
amount for the amortization of unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities, which are being amortized over a fixed period with new 
unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities being amortized over 16 years.  

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: 



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2015 

41 

10. PENSION PLAN, (CONTINUED)

Valuation date December 31, 2012 rolled forward to June 30, 2014 
Experience Study Report 2012, Published September 18, 2013 

Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal 
Amortization method Amortized as a level percentage of payroll as layered amortization bases over a closed 

period; Tier One/Tier Two UAL is amortized over 20 years and OPSRP pension UAL is 
amortized over 16 years 

Asset valuation method Market value of assets 
Inflation rate 2.75 percent 

Investment rate of return 7.75 percent 
Projected salary increase 3.75 percent overall payroll growth; salaries for individuals are assumed to grow at 3.75 

percent plus assumed rates of merit/longevity increases based on service 
Mortality Healthy retirees and beneficiaries: 

RP-2000 Sex-district, generational per Scale AA, with collar adjustments and set-backs as 
described in the valuation.  Active members:  Mortality rates are a percentage of healthy 
retiree rates that vary by group, as described in the valuation.  Disabled retirees: Mortality 
rates are a percentage (65% for males and 90% for females) of the RP-2000 static 
combined disabled mortality sex-distinct table. 

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability 
of events far into the future.  Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared 
to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.  Experience studies are performed as of December 31 of 
even numbered years.  The method and assumptions shown are based on the 2012 Experience Study which is reviewed for 
the four-year period ending December 31, 2012. 

Discount Rate – The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.75 percent for the Defined Benefit 
Pension Plan.  The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from the plan 
members and those of the contributing employers are made at the contractually required rates, as actuarially determined.  
Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected 
future benefit payments of current plan members.  Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan 
investments for the Defined Benefit Pension Plan was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the 
total pension liability.   

Sensitivity of the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate – The following 
presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 7.75 percent, as 
well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate 
that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.75 percent) or 1-perentage-point higher (8.75 percent than the current rate. 

Decrease Rate Increase 
(6.75% ) (7.75% ) (8.75% )

District's proportionate share of 
the net pension liability 26,392,001$      (12,462,938)$       (45,325,103)$       

Changes in Plan Provisions Subsequent to Measurement Date: The Oregon Supreme Court on April 30, 2015, ruled in the 
Moro decision, that the provisions of Senate Bill 861, signed into law in October 2013, that limited the post-retirement COLA 
on benefits accrued prior to the signing of the law were unconstitutional. Benefits could be modified prospectively, but not 
retrospectively. As a result, those who retired before the bills were passed will continue to receive a COLA tied to the 
Consumer Price Index that normally results in a 2% increase annually. PERS will make restoration payments to those benefit 
recipients. PERS members who have accrued benefits before and after the effective dates of the 2013 legislation will have a 
blended COLA rate when they retire. Oregon Public Employees Retirement System Notes to the Schedules of Employer 
Allocations and Pension Amounts by Employer As of and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014.  This is a change in 
benefit terms subsequent to the measurement date of June 30, 2014, which will be reflected in the next year’s actuarial 
valuations. The impact of the Moro decision on the total pension liability and employer’s net pension liability (asset) has not 
been fully determined.  



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2015 

42 

10. PENSION PLAN, (CONTINUED)

However, PERS’ third-party actuaries have estimated the impact of the Moro decision under one possible methodology,
which is summarized below (dollars in millions). Estimates have been rounded to the nearest $10 million.

Net pension liability 

Total pension liability $ $ 68,050

Fiduciary net position 65,400

Net pension liability (asset) 2,650

63,135

65,402

-2,267

June 30, 2014 Measurement Date for all PERS 
Employers (in millions)

Pre- Moro Post- Moro

Additional disclosures related to Oregon PERS not applicable to specific employers are available online at the below website, 
or by contacting PERS at the following address: PO BOX 23700 Tigard, OR 97281-3700, 

http://www.oregon.gov/pers/EMP/docs/er_general_information/opers_gasb_68_disclosure_information_revised.pdf 

11. RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft or damage to and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; 
and natural disasters. The District purchases commercial insurance for all claims other than that represented by minimal deductible 
amounts per loss.  Workers’ compensation insurance is purchase on a retrospectively rated basis so that total insurance cost is 
ultimately in direct proportion to losses.  Settled claims have not exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the past three fiscal 
years and there have been no reductions in insurance coverage from the prior year.  The District does not engage in risk financing 
activities where the risk is retained (self-insurance).  

12. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

On July 1, 2004, the District entered into a contract for pupil transportation to extend through the 2013-2014 school year.  The 
District may extend the contract for up to an additional four years in two year increments.  The contract was extended on July 11, 
2013 for an additional two years through the 2015-16 school year.  The total cost to the District under this contract will vary 
depending upon the number of buses utilized each day.  Expenditures under the contract for pupil transportation during fiscal 2015 
were approximately $5,653,000, including expenditures for gasoline and additional bus services not included in the computation of 
minimum annual costs.   

In July 2010, the District entered into a one-year contract for food service management to extend through the 2010-11 school year.  
The contract may be renewed yearly upon mutual written agreement for up to four additional years.  The contract was renewed on 
June 12, 2014 for the 2014-15 fiscal year.  The total cost to the District under the contract will vary depending upon the number of 
meals served.  Expenditures under the contact for fiscal 2015 were approximately $3,356,000 

The District, in the regular course of business, is named as a defendant in various lawsuits.  The likely outcome of these 
lawsuits is not presently determinable. 

13. JOINT VENTURE

The District has entered into an intergovernmental property agreement to build and operate a Center for Advanced Learning 
(CAL), a charter school.  However, payment and ownership will be shared with the following Districts along with their share of 
ownership:  Reynolds School District No. 7, 19.305%; Centennial School District no. 28J, 16.369%; Mt. Hood Community 
College, 15.058%; and Gresham-Barlow School District No. 10J, 49.268%.  The District’s investment in CAL at June 30, 
2014 and 2015 was $4,098,594 and $3,897,737, respectively. The Center for Advanced Learning issues a publicly available 
financial report which may be obtained by writing: Administrator, The Center for Advanced Learning, 1484 NW Civic Drive, 
Gresham, OR 97030. 



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2015 

43 

14. SCHOOL FUNDING

The District is dependent on the State of Oregon for a substantial portion of its operating funds.  Due to funding uncertainties 
at the State level, future funding for school districts may be reduced.  The ultimate effect of this possible reduction in funding 
on the District’s future operations is not yet determinable. 

The District participates in a number of federally assisted grant programs.  These programs are subject to program 
compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives.  The federal audits for these programs for the year ended June 30, 
2015 have not been conducted.  Accordingly, compliance with grant requirements will be established at some future 
date.  The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined at this 
time, although such amounts are expected to be immaterial. 

15. FUND BALANCES

Below is a schedule of ending fund balance, based on GASB Statement No 54 implementation. 

Major Capital 
Fund Balances: Projects Fund
Restricted:
 Student and other activ ities -   -   1,463,082     1,463,082    
 Food Serv ices -   -   943,319    943,319    
 Debt Serv ice -   -   853,530    853,530    
 School Construction -   121,494    -    121,494    

-   121,494    3,259,931     3,381,425    
Assigned to:
 Other Capital Projects -   1,113,052    -    1,113,052    

-   1,113,052    -    1,113,052    
Unassigned: 6,866,451    -   -    6,866,451    

Total Fund Balances $ 6,866,451    $ 1,234,546    $ 3,259,931     $ 11,360,928  

Non Major
Funds Total

General
Fund

16. RESTATEMENT OF PRIOR YEAR NET POSITION

Due to the implementation of GASB 68 a restatement of the prior year net position was required.  The restatement is as 
follows:  

 Net position-Beginning as previously reported                  $  41,681,249 
 Pension asset for prepaid as of 6/30/14 (34,066,162) 
 Proportionate share of net pension liability                           (28,058,317) 
 Net outflow/(inflows) of resources     7,019,697 
 Net position-Beginning as restated                  $ (13,423,533) 

17. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

The District entered into a ten-year financing agreement with Washington Federal on July 6, 2015 for the purpose of 
replacing the turf field at Gresham High School in the amount of $1.5 million, per Board resolution 1415-06 approved May 7, 
2015.  Payments range from $138,000 to $164,000 beginning June 15, 2016 through June 15, 2025.  



This page is intentionally left blank 



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

(b)-(a)
AAL

(UAAL)

2015 $ 299,107       $ 2,113,618      $ 1,814,511     14.2          % $ 15,264,713      11.9 %
2013 409,601       2,626,610      2,217,009    15.6          15,172,265      14.6
2011 643,601       3,074,897      2,431,296    16.4          21,032,620      11.6
2009 798,715       3,919,169      3,120,454    20.4          30,719,808      10.2
2007 602,404       4,764,481      4,162,077    12.6          28,321,924      14.7
2005 605,330       5,725,034      5,119,704    10.6          31,277,187             16.4

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

2015 $ 386,928         103 %
2014 386,928         102
2013 414,583         110
2012 414,583         116
2011 492,283         102
2010 492,283         109
2009 625,353         111
2008 625,353         116
2007 706,668         103
2006 706,638         100

The above data is based on actuarial valuations performed as of July 1, 2005, July 1, 2007
July 1, 2009, July 1, 2011, July 1, 2013 and July 1, 2015.  Significant acturial assumptions used in the valuation include
(a) a rate of return on investment of present and future assets of  4.0% (5.5% July 1, 2005 and 4% July 1, 2007-2015)
compounded annually, (b) no future increases in benefits payable from the program, 
(c) the actuarial cost method used is the Aggregate Actuarial Cost Method, which provides no unfunded actuarial accrued liability
and no amortization added to the normal cost, (d) the asset valuation method is fair value, and (e) an inflation rate of 2.75%.

Percentage

Actuarial
(a/b)

Liability (AAL)
Entry Age

Contribution ContributedJune 30,

Year
Ended Required 

Actuarial
Covered

(c)Accrued

Annual

Ratio

GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT

EARLY RETIREMENT PROGRAM

(a)

Payroll
of Covered
Percentage 

(b)

Payroll

Actuarial
Valuation

UAAL as a 
((b-a)/c)

Date Assets
Value of Funded

44



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

(b)-(a)
AAL

(UAAL)

2015 $ -               $ 1,222,355      $ 1,222,355     -            % $ 3,397,410        36.0 %
2013 -               1,598,837      1,598,837     -            3,306,481        48.4
2011 -               1,744,609      1,744,609     -            3,825,831        45.6
2009 -               2,280,325      1,963,075     -            4,036,745        48.6
2007 1,963,075      1,963,075     4,808,901        40.8

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

2015 $ 251,201         69.1 %
2014 256,645         74.8
2013 267,823         81.3
2012 276,562         81.3
2011 352,329         64.7
2010 285,962         81.1
2009 141,142         181.4
2008 -                 -                
2007 -                 -                

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

(b)-(a)
AAL

(UAAL)

2015 $ -               $ 8,680,775      $ 8,680,775     -            % $ 54,456,022       15.9 %
2013 -               11,556,634    11,556,634   -            49,346,866      23.4
2011 -               12,281,208    12,281,208   -            53,980,419      22.8
2009 -               10,417,117    10,417,117   -            52,093,617      20.0
2007 8,766,708      8,766,708     -            48,950,495      17.9

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

2015 $ 1,450,464      68.4 %
2014 1,366,042      73.0
2013 1,449,693      81.1
2012 1,372,543      86.1
2011 1,158,809      76.0
2010 824,371         100.0
2009 852,128         80.9
2008 -                 -                
2007 -                 -                

The above data is based on actuarial valuations performed as of July 1, 2007, 2009, 2011, 2013 and 2015.  Funding requirements from the
2007, 2009, 2011 and 2013 study were used for biennial 2007-09, 2009-11, 2011-13 and 2013-15 respectively.  Significant acturia
assumptions used in the valuation include (a) a rate of return on investment of present and future assets of  4.0%, compounded annually,
and a 100% assumption of participants who elect medical coverage at retirement; b) for employees who are not yet retired, the
District cap is assumed to increase $60 per month annually until retirement; and c) no post-retirement benefit increases and an inflation
rate of 2.75%.  Actuarial Value of Assets are recorded at zero because the District does not use an insurance trust

GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT

POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFIT PROGRAM

Actuarial
(b)

Actuarial
(a)

Actuarial
UAAL as a 
Percentage 

Valuation Value of FundedAccrued
Assets

Annual

RatioDate

Year
Ended

((b-a)/c)

Covered
(c)

Payroll
of Covered

(a/b)

POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTH INSURANCE SUBSIDY

Percentage
June 30,

((b-a)/c)

Liability (AAL)

Contribution Contributed
Required 

Payroll

Ratio Payroll PayrollAssets Liability (AAL)

Actuarial Actuarial (a/b) (c) Percentage 
UAAL as a 

Valuation Value of Covered of CoveredAccrued Funded
Actuarial

Year Annual

(a) (b)

Date

June 30, Contribution Contributed
Ended Required Percentage

45



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY

2015 .55 % $ (12,462,938)       $ 54,561,564   (22.8)           % 103.6 %
2014 .55 28,058,317        47,561,896  59.0            92.0

The amounts presented for each fiscal year were actuarial determinted at 12/31/12 and rolled forward to the measurment date.

SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT CONTRIBUTIONS

2015 $ 4,088,013    $ 4,088,013          $ - $ 54,561,564   7.5 %
2014 3,906,814 3,906,814          - 47,561,896  8.2 

GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT

OREGON PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM

(b) Plan fiduciary
District's District's net position as

(a) (b/c)
NPL as a 

the total pension
Year proportion of proportionate share percentage a percentage of District's

Ended of covered

payroll

June 30, liability (NPL) liability (NPL) payroll liability

Contributions
as a percent
of covered

Year

contributionJune 30, contribution payroll
deficiency
(excess)

Ended required coveredstatutorily required

Contributions in 
relation to the 

(c)

Statutorily Contribution District's

 the net pension  of the net pension covered
payroll

46



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION  



This page is intentionally left blank 



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

REVENUES:
Construction excise taxes $ 125,000          $ 125,000         $ 147,213          $ 22,213           
E-Rate 100,000          100,000         315,738          215,738         
Intermediate Sources 75,000 75,000           75,000 - 
Other state and local sources 250,000          250,000         218,452          (31,548)          
Investment earnings 8,700 8,700             19,473 10,773           
Miscellaneous 25,000 25,000           12,661 (12,339)          

      Total revenues 583,700          583,700         788,537          204,837         

EXPENDITURES:
Support services 1,982,210       1,982,210      750,046          (1,232,164)     
Facilites acquisition and construction 100,000          100,000         - (100,000)        
Debt Service 446,490          446,490         441,211          (5,279)            

      Total expenditures 2,528,700       2,528,700      1,191,257       1,337,443      

          EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF 
          REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES (1,945,000)      (1,945,000)     (402,720) 1,542,280      

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
 Transfers from other funds 250,000          250,000         250,000          - 

250,000          250,000         250,000          - 

          NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (1,695,000)      (1,695,000)     (152,720) 1,542,280      

FUND BALANCE, July 1, 2014 1,695,000       1,695,000      1,387,266       (307,734)        

FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2015 $ - $ - $ 1,234,546       $ 1,234,546      

Adopted Final
Budget

Variance with
Final Budget

Over
(Under)Actual

47



This page is intentionally left blank 



NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

These funds account for revenues and expenditures restricted for specific educational projects, the District's 
food dispensing program, future capital equipment replacement, and student participation fees.  Included are 
the following funds: 

Nutrition Services Fund – The program is funded by the sale of meal tickets and monies and food 
products received from the U. S. D. A. and the Oregon State Department of Education.  The Board has 
contracted the operation of the food service to Sodexho, a nationwide food service contractor. 

State and Other Grant Fund – This fund accounts for revenue and expenditures of grants restricted for 
specific educational projects.  Principal revenue sources are state and local grants. 

Other Special Revenue Fund – This fund accounts for the other special revenues from two primary 
sources:  student activities and the Art Institute.  The major sources of revenue are student participation 
fees and receipts from event admission charges for student activities and art institute participation fees.  

Debt Service Fund  – This fund accounts for the payment of principal and interest on the general 
obligation bonds issued in 1996 and 2001, refunded in 2003, 2005 and 2012. 



This page is intentionally left blank 



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2015

ASSETS
  Equity in pooled cash and investments $ 826,431      $ -                 $ 1,378,784     $ 817,817          $ 3,023,032         
  Property taxes receivable -                 -                 -                    390,592          390,592            
  Accounts and other receivable 161,805      223,393      3,310            35,932            424,440            

        TOTAL ASSETS $ 988,236      $ 223,393      $ 1,382,094     $ 1,244,341       $ 3,838,064         

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
  Accounts and retainage payable $ 672             $ 15,671        $ 727               $ 219                 $ 17,289              
  Matured interest coupons payable -                 -                 - - - 
  Unearned revenue 44,245        108,836      - - 153,081            
  Due to other funds -                 17,171        - - 17,171              

        TOTAL LIABILITIES 44,917        141,678      727               219                 187,541            

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
  Unavailable revenue-property taxes -                 -                 - 390,592          390,592            

Fund Balances:
  Restricted for:
    Food Service 943,319      -                 - - 943,319            
    Retirement of long-term debt -                 -                 - 853,530          853,530            
    School activities -                 -                 1,286,825     - 1,286,825         
    Other activities 81,715        94,542          176,257            
        TOTAL FUND BALANCES 943,319      81,715        1,381,367     853,530          3,259,931         

        TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
        OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES $ 988,236      $ 223,393      $ 1,382,094     $ 1,244,341       $ 3,838,064         

Debt Service
 Fund

State Other
Special Revenue

Fund Total
Food

Services Fund
and Other

Grant Fund

48



Special Revenue
Total

REVENUES:
  Property taxes $ -  $ -  $ -  $ 5,840,881       $ 5,840,881  
  Other taxes -  -  -  -  -  
  Federal grants 3,559,906         -  -  -  3,559,906  
  State and local sources 46,220              681,191  172,984           -  900,395  
  Charges for services 438,391            -  2,011,999        -  2,450,390  
  Investment earnings 5,054               -  389                  16,734             22,177               

          TOTAL REVENUES 4,049,571         681,191  2,185,372        5,857,615       12,773,749       

EXPENDITURES:
  Current:
    Instruction -  130,728  2,088,031        -  2,218,759  
    Support services -  509,895  247,094           -  756,989  
    Community services 3,868,803         424                  -  -  3,869,227  
  Capital outlay 171,375            4,715               -  176,090  
  Debt Service:
    Principal -  -  -  4,360,000       4,360,000  
    Interest -  -  -  1,537,231       1,537,231  

          TOTAL EXPENDITURES 4,040,178         645,762  2,335,125        5,897,231       12,918,296       

          EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF
          REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 9,393                35,429             (149,753)  (39,616)           (144,547)           

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
   5200 Transfers in -  -  260,000           -  260,000  

          NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 9,393                35,429             110,247           (39,616)           115,453  

FUND BALANCE, July 1, 2014 933,926            46,286             1,271,120        893,146  3,144,478  

FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2015 $ 943,319            $ 81,715             $ 1,381,367        $ 853,530  $ 3,259,931  

GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

Services Fund

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

State
and Other

Grant Fund
Nutrition Debt Service

 Fund

Other

Fund

49



DETAIL BUDGET REPORTS 



This page is intentionally left blank 



REVENUES:
 Local Sources:
    Current year taxes $ 24,076,296     $ 24,076,296         $ 24,454,234     $ 377,938         
    Prior year taxes 650,000          650,000              599,257          (50,743)         
    Other taxes 5,000              5,000                  13,088            8,088             
    Penalties and interest 5,000              5,000                  601                 (4,399)           
    Tuition and transportation 145,000          145,000              92,020            (52,980)         
    Investment earnings 135,000          135,000              127,300          (7,700)           
    Co-curricular activities 310,000          310,000              314,331          4,331             
    Community services activities 55,000            55,000                51,511            (3,489)           
    Rentals 235,000          235,000              232,219          (2,781)           
    Services provided to others 220,000          220,000              273,157          53,157           
    Fees charged to grants 250,000          250,000              495,965          245,965         
    Medicare Reimbursements 100,000          100,000              61,498            (38,502)         
    Miscellaneous 340,000          340,000              346,169          6,169             

      Total local sources 26,526,296     26,526,296         27,061,350     535,054         

 Intermediate Sources:
    County School Fund 25,000            25,000                1,993              (23,007)         
    Other Intermediate sources 2,156,391       2,156,391           2,040,362       (116,029)       

      Total intermediate sources 2,181,391       2,181,391           2,042,355       (139,036)       

 State Sources:
    State school fund 76,608,116     76,608,116         77,338,087     729,971         
    Common school fund 1,045,947       1,045,947           1,226,724       180,777         
    Other State Revenue 340,000          340,000              506,064          166,064         

      Total state sources 77,994,063     77,994,063         79,070,875     1,076,812      

 Federal Sources:
    Child care development 33,000            33,000                50,425            17,425           
    Federal forest fees 12,000            12,000                12,662            662                
    Other federal sources -                  - -                  -                

      Total federal sources 45,000            45,000                63,087            18,087           

        TOTAL REVENUES 106,746,750   106,746,750       108,237,667   1,490,917      

 Other Financing Sources:
    Proceeds from capital leases -                  1,006,065           1,006,065       -                
    Proceeds from sale or loss of capital assets 5,000              5,000                  -                  (5,000)           

      Total other financing sources 5,000              1,011,065           1,006,065       (5,000)           

        TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER 
           FINANCING SOURCES 106,751,750   107,757,815       109,243,732   1,485,917      

FUND BALANCE, July 1, 2014 6,250,000       6,250,000           6,080,252       (169,748)       

        TOTAL REVENUES,  OTHER FINANCING
          SOURCES AND FUND BALANCE $ 113,001,750   $ 114,007,815      $ 115,323,984  $ 1,316,169      

(Under)Actual

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Adopted Final
Budget

Variance with
Final Budget

Over

GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT

SCHEDULE OF DETAILED REVENUES - 

GENERAL FUND

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

50



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT

SCHEDULE OF DETAILED EXPENDITURES - 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

EXPENDITURES:
  Instruction:
    1111 Elementary programs $ 12,056,080      $ 6,878,069     $ 48,581           $ 499,124          
    1121 Middle school programs 7,186,399       3,867,958    32,527           128,533          
    1122 Middle school extracurricular 133,340          43,460         9,323             1,867              
    1131 High school programs 8,148,850       4,353,609    21,713           176,469          
    1132 High school extracurricular 945,983          373,617       134,744         31,385            
    1140 Preschool programs 200,875          154,500       3 11,245            
    1210 Talented and gifted programs 15,181            7,659           939                759                 
    1220 Restrictive programs 1,286,879       828,323       1,039,726      18,329            
    1250  Resource rooms 4,418,627       2,832,356    4,559             7,678              
    1271 Remediation 46,558            16,651         37,000           -                  
    1272 Title I 140                 47                -                 -                  
    1280 Alternative education 115,236          44,170         7,855,183      201                 
    1290 Designated programs 2,364,515       1,379,713    15,128           16,135            
    1400 Summer School 3,880              1,257           14,548           -                  

      Total instruction 36,922,543     20,781,389  9,213,974      891,725          

  Support services:
    2110 Attendance and social work services 627,764          423,779       195,953         943                 
    2120 Guidance services 1,611,536       894,997       -                 4,474              
    2130 Health services 344,200          180,736       5,072             5,762              
    2140 Psychological services 397,235          195,921       1,299             5,672              
    2150 Speech pathology and audiology services 535,276          283,051       24,660           5,554              
    2190 Service direction - student support services 302,854          152,164       19,370           26,169            
    2210 Improvement of instruction services 546,604          246,359       163,129         328,581          
    2220 Educational media services 601,705          418,807       834                55,807            
    2230 Assessment and testing 188,330          91,744         11,795           20,601            
    2240 Instructional staff development 327,831          541,501       112,565         26,913            
    2310 Board of education services 43,390            23,009         90,514           843                 
    2320 Executive administration services 564,589          308,942       61,734           8,086              
    2410 Office of the principal services 4,834,342       2,646,903    180,752         61,650            
    2520 Fiscal services 562,858          324,629       102,913         7,344              
    2540 Operation and maintenance of plant services 2,564,903       1,428,396    3,850,018      642,312          
    2550 Student transportation services 55,627            36,666         5,797,410      1,544              
    2570 Internal services 8,233              7,056           228,976         45,403            
    2620 Planning and development services -                  -               -                 -                  
    2630 Information services 110,628          60,887         44,986           2,739              
    2640 Staff services 394,848          222,667       80,146           36,449            
    2660 Technology sevices 940,020          521,507       47,186           1,345,510       
    2670 Records management -                  -               -                 -                  
    2690 Other central support 46,764            26,202         847                2,858              

      Total support services 15,609,537     9,035,923    11,020,159    2,635,214       

Materials (400)

Actual

51A

Salaries (100) Services (300)Benefits (200)



$ -                  $ - $ 19,481,854    $ 19,758,005            $ 19,758,005    $ (276,151)       
-                  11,233             11,226,650  11,430,472            11,430,472   (203,822)       

187,990         208,550                 208,550        (20,560)         
-                  9,303               12,709,944  13,111,671            13,111,671   (401,727)       

10,857             1,496,586      1,502,632              1,502,632     (6,046)           
-                  1,098               367,721         356,786                 356,786        10,935          
-                  - 24,538           67,103                   67,103          (42,565)         
-                  - 3,173,257      3,590,298              3,590,298     (417,041)       
-                  - 7,263,220      7,431,281              7,431,281     (168,061)       
-                  - 100,209         96,668                   96,668          3,541            
-                  - 187                - -                187               
-                  132,936           8,147,726      6,814,040              6,814,040     1,333,686     
-                  - 3,775,491      3,805,267              3,805,267     (29,776)         
-                  - 19,685           23,407                   23,407          (3,722)           

-                  165,427           67,975,058  68,196,180            68,196,180   (221,122)       

-                  - 1,248,439      1,361,036              1,361,036     (112,597)       
-                  150                  2,511,157      2,645,593              2,645,593     (134,436)       
-                  - 535,770         543,810                 543,810        (8,040)           
-                  - 600,127         602,779                 602,779        (2,652)           
-                  - 848,541         869,332                 869,332        (20,791)         
-                  2,975               503,532         545,734                 545,734        (42,202)         
-                  2,176               1,286,849      998,286                 998,286        288,563        
-                  - 1,077,153      1,160,848              1,160,848     (83,695)         
-                  880                  313,350         372,170                 372,170        (58,820)         
-                  521                  1,009,331      955,972                 955,972        53,359          
-                  12,744             170,500         246,686                 246,686        (76,186)         
-                  11,968             955,319         939,596                 939,596        15,723          
-                  28,086             7,751,733      7,822,174              7,822,174     (70,441)         
-                  553,004           1,550,748      1,682,112              1,682,112     (131,364)       

502,128          8,540               8,996,297      8,948,834              8,948,834     47,463          
-                  - 5,891,247      5,851,331              5,851,331     39,916          
-                  - 289,668         291,978                 291,978        (2,310)           
-                  - -                 - -                -                
-                  1,545               220,785         206,365                 206,365        14,420          
-                  15,622             749,732         742,322                 742,322        7,410            
-                  - 2,854,223      1,990,081              2,996,146     (141,923)       
-                  - -                 44,906                   44,906          (44,906)         
-                  - 76,671           91,009                   91,009          (14,338)         

502,128          638,211           39,441,172  38,912,954            39,919,019   (477,847)       

51B (Continued on the next page)

(Under)

Budget

Total Adopted
Capital

Outlay (500)
Other 

Objects (600) Final

Variance with
Final Budget

Over



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT

SCHEDULE OF DETAILED EXPENDITURES - 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)

GENERAL FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

  Community servies:
    3310 Community services $ 100,483          $ 51,731         $ 6,361             $ 10,626            
    3320 Civic services 46,941            12,945         661                965                 

      Total community services 147,424          64,676         7,022             11,591            

  Facilities acquisition and construction
    4150 Building acquisition and construction -                  -               -                 -                  

      Total facilities acquisition and construction -                  -               -                 -                  

6110 OPERATING CONTINGENCY -                  -               -                 -                  

     TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 52,679,504      $ 29,881,988   $ 20,241,155     $ 3,538,530       

OTHER FINANCING USES:
   5200 Transfers out

7000 UNAPPROPRIATED ENDING FUND BALANCE

     TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES

Benefits (200) Materials (400)

Actual

52A

Salaries (100) Services (300)



$ -                  $ 590                  $ 169,791         $ 183,965                 $ 183,965        $ (14,174)         
-                  - 61,512           62,537                   62,537          (1,025)           

-                  590                  231,303         246,502                 246,502        (15,199)         

-                  -                   -                 - -                -                

-                  - -                 - -                -                

-                  - -                 4,836,114              4,836,114     (4,836,114)    

$ 502,128          $ 804,228           $ 107,647,533  $ 112,191,750          $ 113,197,815  $ (5,550,282)    

810,000         810,000                 810,000        -                

810,000         810,000                 810,000        -                

6,866,451      - - 6,866,451     

$ 115,323,984  $ 113,001,750          $ 114,007,815  $ 1,316,169     

Outlay (500) Objects (600)
Other 

Total

Variance with
Final Budget

Over

 52B

Capital
(Under)Adopted Final

Budget



REVENUES:
  Charges for services:
    1600 Food services sales $ 986,000        $ 986,000       $ 438,376           $ (547,624)       
    1900 Miscellaneous - -                   15 15                 
      Total local sources 986,000        986,000       438,391           (547,609)       
  State sources:
    3102 State school fund - school lunch match 42,000          42,000         40,221             (1,779)           
    3200 Other state sources - - 5,999               5,999            
      Total state sources 42,000          42,000         46,220             4,220            

  Federal sources:
   4505 Received through state agencies 2,625,000     2,625,000    3,338,489        713,489        
   4503 Food distribution 265,000        265,000       221,417           (43,583)         

      Total federal sources 2,890,000     2,890,000    3,559,906        669,906        

  1500 Investment earnings 3,000            3,000           5,054               2,054            

      TOTAL REVENUES 3,921,000     3,921,000    4,049,571        128,571        

EXPENDITURES:

  Community services*:
      3100 Food preparation and dispensing services:
       100 Salaries 26,000          26,000         - (26,000)         
       200 Benefits 14,623          14,623         - (14,623)         
       300 Services 4,086,965     4,086,965    3,404,127        (682,838)       
       400 Materials 607,912        607,912       268,154           (339,758)       
       500 Captial outlay 72,500          72,500         171,375           98,875          
       600 Other 13,000          13,000         196,522           183,522        

      TOTAL EXPENDITURES 4,821,000     4,821,000    4,040,178        (780,822)       

          NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (900,000)      (900,000)     9,393              909,393        

FUND BALANCE, July 1, 2014 900,000       900,000      932,926          32,926          

FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2015 $ - $ - $ 942,319           $ 942,319        

* Appropriation level

Over
Final budget

(Under)Adopted Final Actual

GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NUTRITION SERVICES FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Budget

Variance with

53



REVENUES:
 Federal Sources:
    4500 Received through state agencies $ 8,362,380 $ 8,362,380       $ 6,740,339 $ (1,622,041) 
    4900 Received through other sources - - - - 

      Total federal sources 8,362,380 8,362,380       6,740,339 (1,622,041) 

EXPENDITURES:
 1000 Instruction 5,852,283 5,852,283       4,550,195 (1,302,088) 
 2000 Support Services 2,410,097 2,410,097       2,156,267 (253,830) 
 3000 Community Services 100,000 100,000          33,877 (66,123) 

      Total expenditures 8,362,380 8,362,380       6,740,339 (1,622,041) 

          NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE - - - - 

FUND BALANCE, July 1, 2014 - - - - 

FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2015 $ - $ - $ - $ - 

Variance with
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT

SCHEDULE OF DETAILED REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FEDERAL GRANT FUND

Final Budget

Adopted Final
Budget

Actual
Over

(Under)

54



EXPENDITURES:
  INSTRUCTION*:
    1220 Restrictive programs $ 60,736              $ 43,729              $ 45,613             $ 1,293               
    1250 Resource rooms 558,958            347,051            549                  2,046               
    1272 Title 1 1,668,000         962,583            607,139           213,785           
    1280 Alternative education -  -  -                   -                   
    1290 Other programs -  -  -                   -                   
    1460 Summer school - special programs -  -  -                   -                         
     Total instruction 2,287,694         1,353,363         653,301           217,124           

 SUPPORT SERVICES*:
    2130 Health services 191,816            106,518            -                   -                   
    2140 Psychological services 46,898              31,270              -                   -                   
    2150 Speech pathology and audiology services 211,321            115,257            -                   -                   
    2190 Service direction-student support services 160,415            81,573              2,613               -                   
    2210 Improvement of instruction services 58,186              30,725              690                  2,861               
    2230 Assessment and testing -  -  -                   -                   
    2240 Instructional staff development 527,768            264,514            35,801             18,013             
    2520 Fiscal services -  -  -                   -                   
    2550 Student transportation -  -  -                   -                   
    2690 Other central support services -  -  -                   -                         
      Total support services 1,196,404         629,857            39,104             20,874             

3300 COMMUNITY SERVICES*: 13,644              3,901  6,856               9,476               

        TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 3,497,742         $ 1,987,121         $ 699,261           $ 247,474           

*Appropriation level

55A

Salaries (100) Benefits (200) Materials (400)Services (300)

GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT

SCHEDULE OF DETAILED EXPENDITURES -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FEDERAL GRANT FUND

Actual

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015



$ $ $ 151,371             $ 558,497              $ 558,497             $ (407,126)            
-  -               908,604             878,676              878,676             29,928               
-  38,713         3,490,220          4,106,110           4,106,110          (615,890)            
-  -               -  -  -  -  
-  -               -  300,000              300,000             (300,000)            
-  -               -  9,000  9,000  (9,000)                

-  38,713         4,550,195          5,852,283           5,852,283          (1,302,088)         

-  -               298,334             314,369              314,369             (16,035)              
-  697              78,865               79,145  79,145               (280)  
-  -               326,578             346,972              346,972             (20,394)              
-  241              244,842             255,959              255,959             (11,117)              
-  323              92,785               438,944              438,944             (346,159)            
-  -               -  -  -  -  
-  30,089         876,185             882,950              882,950             (6,765)                
-  238,678       238,678             91,758  91,758               146,920             
-  -               -  -  -  -  
-  -               -  -  -  -  

-  270,028       2,156,267          2,410,097           2,410,097          (253,830)            

-  -               33,877               100,000              100,000             (66,123)              

$ -  $ 308,741       $ 6,740,339          $ 8,362,380           $ 8,362,380          $ (1,622,041)         

55B

FinalTotal Adopted (Under)Outlay (500) Objects (600)

Variance with
Final Budget

Over
Budget

Capital Other 



This page is intentionally left blank



REVENUES:
  Reveues from loacal sources:
    1920 Private donations $ 108,872   $ 108,872   $ 100,545   $ (8,327)          
  1990 Miscellenous - - - -                   

  Total local sources 108,872   108,872   100,545   (8,327)          

   Revenues from intermediate sources:
   2102 ESD  apportionment 100,000   100,000   100,000        -                   
   2900 Other intermdiate souces 530,000   530,000   181,846   (348,154)      

  Total intermdiate sources 630,000   630,000   281,846   (348,154)      

   Revenues from state sources:
   3299 Other restricted grants 197,386   197,386   298,800   101,414       

         TOTAL REVENUES 936,258   936,258   681,191   (255,067)      

EXPENDITURES: 153,376   153,376   130,728   (22,648)        
  1000 Instruction 782,882   782,882   514,610   (268,272)      
  2000 Support services - - 424               424              +
  3000 Community services

936,258       936,258       645,762       (290,496)      
  Total expenditures

- - 35,429         35,429         
          NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

- -       46,286   46,286         
FUND BALANCE, July 1, 2014

$ -                   $ -                   $ 81,715         $ 81,715         
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2015

+Exempt from Oregon Budget Law per ORS 294.338(2)

Variance with
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

STATE AND OTHER GRANT FUND

Adopted Final Actual

Final Budget
Over

(Under)
Budget

56



EXPENDITURES:
  INSTRUCTION*:

 1111 Elementary school programs $ - $ - $ - $ 1,259          
 1121 Middle school programs
 1131 High school programs 3,629           1,371           -  32,469        
 1271 Remediation 9,272   2,728            - - 
 1272 Title I 15,875         13,793         2,952   47,380        
 1290 Other Programs - - - -                  

       Total instruction 28,776         17,892         2,952   81,108        

  SUPPORT SERVICES*:
 2130 Health services
 2190 Service direction-student support services 15,535         2,848           17,117   106             
 2210 Improvement of instruction services 8,034           1,343           12,000   1,579          
 2220 Education media services - - -  14,265        
 2230 Assessment and testing 13,254         2,619           19                 -                  
 2240 Instructional staff development 113,286       43,078         62,346   2,691          
 2320 Executive administration services - - 600               -                  
 2540 Operation and maintenance of plant services - - - -                  
 2550 Student transportation - - - -                  
 2620 Planning and development services - - - -                  
 2640 Staff services - - - -                  
 2660 Technology services - - 22,044   177,131      

 Total support services 150,109       49,888         114,126   195,772      

  3100 COMMUNITY SERVICES*: -               424             

        TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 178,885       $ 67,780         $ 117,078   $ 277,304      

  7000 UNAPPROPRIATED ENDING FUND BALANCE*:

        TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND UNAPPROPRIATED
ENDING FUND BALANCE

*Appropriation level
+Exempt from Oregon Budget Law per ORS 294.338(2)

57A

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Salaries (100) Benefits (200) Services (300) Materials (400)

GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT
SCHEDULE OF DETAILED EXPENDITURES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
STATE AND OTHER GRANT FUND

Actual



$ - $ -                  $ 1,259         $ -                 $ -                 $ 1,259          
-              

- -                  37,469       5,000         5,000         32,469        
- -                  12,000  5,872  5,842  6,158          
- -                  80,000       67,504       67,504       12,496        
- -                  -             75,000       75,000       (75,000)       

- -                  130,728     153,376     153,346     (22,618)       

80,000       80,000       (80,000)       
- -                  35,606       27,330       27,330       8,276          
- -                  22,956       105,500     105,500     (82,544)       
- -                  14,265       -                 -                 14,265        
- -                  15,892       27,500       27,500       (11,608)       
- -                  221,401     129,882     129,882     91,519        
- -                  600            2,800         2,800         (2,200)         
- -                  -             -                 -                 -              
- -                  -             -                 -                 -              
- -                  -             14,870       14,870       (14,870)       
- -                  -             15,000       15,000       (15,000)       

4,715              -                  203,890     380,000     380,000     (176,110)     
-              

4,715              -                  514,610     782,882     782,882     (268,272)     

-              424            -                 -                 424             +

$ 4,715              $ -                  $ 645,762     $ 936,258      $ 936,228      $ (290,466)     

81,715       -                 -                 81,715        

$ 727,477     $ 936,258      $ 936,228      $ (208,751)     

57B

Capital Other Over
Outlay (500) Objects (600) Total Adopted Final (Under)

Variance with
Budget Final Budget



This page is intentionally left blank



REVENUES:
  Local sources:
    1311 Tuition from individuals $ 185,000       $ 185,000        $ 154,722         $ (30,278) 
    1330 Summer school tuition 18,000         18,000          12,840           (5,160) 
    1410 Tranportation from individuals 55,500         55,500          392 (55,108) 
    1700 Extracurricular Activities 1,808,800    1,808,800     1,742,916      (65,884) 
    1920 Contributions 162,500       162,500        172,984         10,484         
    1940 Services provided others 51,980         51,980          36,140           (15,840) 
    1950 Textbook sales and rentals 16,050         16,050          11,073           (4,977) 
    1990 Miscellaneous 33,750         33,750          53,916           20,166         

      Total local sources 2,331,580    2,331,580     2,184,983      (146,597)      

    1500 Investment earnings 700 700 389 (311) 
- 

          TOTAL REVENUES 2,332,280    2,332,280     2,185,372      (146,908)      

EXPENDITURES:
   1000 Instruction 3,288,550    3,288,550     2,088,031      (1,200,519)   
   2000 Support services 468,930       468,930        247,094         (221,836)      

      Total expenditures 3,757,480    3,757,480     2,335,125      (1,422,355)   

          EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF 
          REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES (1,425,200)   (1,425,200)    (149,753)        1,275,447    

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
   5200 Transfers in 260,000       260,000        260,000         - 

          NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (1,165,200)   (1,165,200)    110,247         1,275,447    

FUND BALANCE, July 1, 2014 1,165,200    1,165,200     1,271,120      105,920       

FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2015 $ - $ - $ 1,381,367      $ 1,381,367     

Variance with
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Adopted Final Actual

Final Budget
Over

(Under)
Budget

58



EXPENDITURES:
  INSTRUCTION*:
     1113 Elementary school extracurricular $ -                 $ -                  $ 30,196          $ 128,473       
     1122 Middle school extracurricular -                 -                  109,015        208,175      
     1131 High school programs -                 -                  - 19,847        
     1132 High school extracurricular -                 -                  402,873        665,697      
     1400 Summer school programs. 12,125        3,467          565               817             

       Total instruction 12,125        3,467          542,649        1,023,009   

  SUPPORT SERVICES*:
     2410 Office of the Principal -                 -                  - 12,105        
     2550 Student transportation -                 -                  33,391          -                 
     2570 Internal services 82,822         25,799         14,596          78,381         
       Total support services 82,822        25,799        47,987          90,486        

        TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 94,947        $ 29,266        $ 590,636        $ 1,113,495    

  7000 UNAPPROPRIATED ENDING FUND BALANCE*:

        TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND UNAPPROPRIATED
ENDING FUND BALANCE

*Appropriation level
59A

Salaries (100) Benefits (200)

Actual

Services (300) Materials (400)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT

OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF DETAILED EXPENDITURES -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL



$ -                   $ 54,141         $ 212,810            $ 272,550       $ 272,550      $ (59,740)        
-                   50,986         368,176            604,000       604,000     (235,824)      
-                   -                   19,847              30,000         30,000       (10,153)        
-                   401,654       1,470,224         2,362,000    2,362,000  (891,776)      
-                   -                   16,974              20,000         20,000       (3,026)          

-                   506,781       2,088,031         3,288,550    3,288,550  (1,200,519)   

-                   -                   12,105              42,000         42,000       (29,895)        
-                   -                   33,391              114,950       114,950     (81,559)        

-               -               201,598            311,980        311,980      (110,382)      
-                   -                   247,094            468,930       468,930     (221,836)      

$ -                   $ 506,781       $ 2,335,125         $ 3,757,480     $ 3,757,480   $ (1,422,355)   

1,381,367         - -                 1,381,367    

$ 3,716,492         $ 3,757,480     $ 3,757,480   $ (40,988)        

59B

Outlay (500) Objects (600) Total Adopted Final (Under)

Variance with
Budget Final Budget

Capital Other Over



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

DEBT SERVICE FUND 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

REVENUES:
  1100 Property taxes $ 5,815,451       $ 5,815,451        $ 5,840,881         $ 25,430            
  1500 Investment earnings 15,000            15,000             16,734              1,734              

      TOTAL REVENUES 5,830,451       5,830,451        5,857,615         27,164            

EXPENDITURES:
  5100 Debt service:*
    610 Principal 4,360,000       4,360,000        4,360,000         - 
    620 Interest 1,537,232       1,537,232        1,537,231         (1) 

5,897,232       5,897,232        5,897,231         (1) 

          EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF 
          REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES (66,781)           (66,781)            (39,616)             27,165            

FUND BALANCE, July 1, 2014 770,000          770,000           893,146            123,146          

FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2015 $ 703,219          $ 703,219           $ 853,530            $ 150,311          

*Appropriation level

Budget
Adopted Final Actual (Under)

Variance with

Over
Final Budget

60



REVENUES:
 1130 Construction Excise Tax $ 125,000                  $ 125,000                  $ 147,213                   $ 22,213                    
 2190 Intermediate Sources 75,000  75,000  75,000  -  
 3290 Other State Sources 250,000                  250,000                  218,452                   (31,548)                  
 1500 Investment earnings 8,700 8,700 19,473  10,773                    
 1960 E-Rate and recovery of prior year 100,000                  100,000                  315,738                   215,738                  
 1920 Contributions - -  500  500  
 1910 Rentals 25,000  25,000  12,161  (12,839)                  

     TOTAL REVENUES 583,700                  583,700                  788,537                   204,837                  

EXPENDITURES:
   2000 Support services 1,982,210               1,982,210               750,046                   (1,232,164)             
   4000 Facilities Acquistion and construction 100,000                  100,000                  -  (100,000)                
   5110 Debt services 446,490                  446,490                  441,211                   (5,279)  

      Total expenditures 2,528,700               2,528,700               1,191,257                (1,337,443)             

          EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF 
          REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES (1,945,000)             (1,945,000)             (402,720)  1,542,280  

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
   5200 Transfers in 250,000                  250,000                  250,000                   -  

          NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (1,695,000)             (1,695,000)             (152,720)  1,542,280  

FUND BALANCE, July 1, 2014 1,695,000               1,695,000               1,387,266                (307,734)                

FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2015 $ -  $ -  $ 1,234,546                $ 1,234,546              

(Under)
Budget

Adopted Final Actual
Over

GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

Final Budget
Variance with

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

61



EXPENDITURES:
  SUPPORT SERVICES*:
     2520 Fiscal services $ -  $ -  $ 13,209  $ 111,140                  
     2540 Operation and maintenance of plant services 5,000  1,351 96,452  6,976  
     2630 Information services - -  23,635  -  
     2660 Technology services 5,768 1,832 32,250  -  

       Total support services 10,768  3,183 165,546                   118,116                  

  FACILITIES ACQUISITION AND CONSTRUCTION*:
     4110 Facilities acquisition and construction direction - - - -  
     4120 Site acquisition and development - - - -  
     4150 Building acquisition, construction and improvement - - - -  

- - - -  
       Total facilities acquisition and constsruction

  DEBT SERVICES*:
     5110 Long-Term Debt
              Principal - - - -  
              Interest - - - -  

       Total debt services -  -  - - 

        TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 10,768  $ 3,183 $ 165,546                   $ 118,116                  

  7000 UNAPPROPRIATED ENDING FUND BALANCE*:

        TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND UNAPPROPRIATED
 ENDING FUND BALANCE

*Appropriation level

Services (300) Materials (400)

GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

SCHEDULE OF DETAILED EXPENDITURES -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

62A

Salaries (100) Benefits (200)

Actual



$ -                   $ -                   $ 124,349       $ 75,000         $ 75,000         $ 49,349          
452,433       -                   562,212       1,539,200    1,539,200    (976,988)      

-                   -                   23,635         -                   -                   23,635          
-                   -                   39,850         368,010       368,010       (328,160)      

452,433       -                   750,046       1,982,210    1,982,210    (1,232,164)   

-                   -                   -               -                   -                   -                
-                   -                   -               100,000       100,000       (100,000)      
-                   -                   -               -               -               -                

-                   -                   -                   100,000       100,000       (100,000)      

-                   377,911       377,911       383,190       383,190       (5,279)          
-                   63,300         63,300         63,300         63,300         -                

-               
-               441,211       441,211       446,490       446,490       (5,279)          

$ 452,433       $ 441,211       $ 1,191,257    $ 2,528,700    $ 2,528,700    $ (1,337,443)   

1,234,546    -                   -                   1,234,546    

$ 2,425,803    $ 2,528,700    $ 2,528,700    $ (102,897)     

Capital Other 

62B

Variance with
Budget Final Budget

Over
Outlay (500) Objects (600) Total Adopted Final (Under)



Adopted Final Actual
REVENUES:
   5200 Contributions $ 300,000           $ 300,000        $ 300,000         $ - 
   1970 Charges for Services 406,525           406,525        400,449         (6,076) 
   1500 Investment earnings 5,000 5,000 5,848 848 

          TOTAL REVENUES 711,525           711,525        706,297         (5,228) 

EXPENDITURES:
  Support services:*
    2700 Supplemental retirement program:
      100 Salaries 629,842           629,842        408,212         
      200 Benefits 991,683           991,683        177,256         

        Total support services 1,621,525        1,621,525     585,468         - 

          NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (910,000) (910,000)       120,829         (5,228) 

FUND BALANCE, July 1, 2014 910,000           910,000        969,426         59,426          

FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2015 $ - $ - $ 1,090,255      $ 1,090,255      

*Appropriation level

GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT

PENSION TRUST FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN 

(Under)

FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Final Budget
Variance with

Budget Over

63



BALANCES BALANCES
JULY 1, 2014 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS JUNE 30, 2015

ASSETS

Cash and investments 5,988$               592,076$          589,533$              8,531$                  
Accounts receivable 2,355 6,099 2,355 6,099 

  Total Assets 8,343$               598,175$          591,888$              14,630$                 

LIABILITIES

Book overdraft 2,355$               6,099$             2,355$                 6,099$                  
Due to agencies 5,988 592,076            589,533                8,531 

   Total Liabilities 8,343$               598,175$          591,888$              14,630$                 

GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT

AGENCY FUND
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

64



This page is intentionally left blank 



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT

SCHEDULE OF BOND REDEMPTION AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS

 June 30, 2015

2005 Refunding Series 2012 FFCO Series* 2003 Series
DATE Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2015-16 $ 2,340,000  $ 1,346,350  $ 2,290,000            $ 60,088  $ 125,000                $ 60,900  $ 685,195  $ 1,511,073            
2016-17 2,575,000  1,223,500  2,330,000            31,921  130,000                57,150  685,705  1,620,564            
2017-18 4,420,000  1,088,438            - -   130,000                53,250  682,234  1,739,035            
2018-19 4,825,000  856,387               - -   135,000                48,050  677,872  1,863,497            
2019-20 5,250,000  603,075               - -   140,000                42,650  674,173  1,992,096            
2020-21 5,715,000   314,325               - -   145,000                37,050  669,426  2,126,843            
2021-22 - - - -   155,000                31,250  666,333  2,264,935            
2022-23 - - - -   160,000                26,050  666,954  2,409,315            
2023-24 - - - -   165,000                20,700  2,465,000  756,269               
2024-25 - - - -   170,000                15,750  2,760,000  617,984               
2025-26 - - - -   175,000                10,650  3,080,000  461,216               
2026-27 - - - -   180,000                5,400  3,420,000  286,272               
2027-28 - - - - - -   1,620,000            92,016                 

TOTALS $ 25,125,000  $ 5,432,075  $ 4,620,000            $ 92,009                $ 1,810,000            $ 408,850              $ 18,752,892  $ 17,741,115         

DATE Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2015-16 $ 714,911  $ 2,161,963            $ - $ 68,338                 $ 6,155,106  $ 5,208,712            
2016-17 728,542  2,303,332            - 68,338  6,449,247  5,304,805            
2017-18 742,557  2,454,318            - 68,337  5,974,791  5,403,378            
2018-19 753,543  2,613,331            - 68,337  6,391,415  5,449,602            
2019-20 761,002  2,780,872            - 68,337  6,825,175  5,487,030            
2020-21 -   1,341,874  2,485,000            68,337  9,014,426  3,888,429            
2021-22 2,705,000  1,341,874            - -   3,526,333  3,638,059            
2022-23 3,050,000  1,193,640            - -   3,876,954  3,629,005            
2023-24 3,425,000  1,026,195            - -   6,055,000  1,803,164            
2024-25 3,835,000  836,107               - -   6,765,000  1,469,841            
2025-26 4,275,000  623,265               - -   7,530,000  1,095,131            
2026-27 4,745,000  386,003               - -   8,345,000  677,675               
2027-28 2,210,000  122,655               - -   3,830,000  214,671               

TOTALS $ 27,945,555  $ 19,185,429  2,485,000  $ 410,024              80,738,447          $ 43,269,502         

*These bonds are not subject to the District's debt limit.

Gresham-Barlow #10JT
2012 Refunding Series

2012 Refunding Series

Gresham-Barlow #10JTGresham-Barlow #10JT

PERS Bonds

PERS Bonds

PERS Bonds
2002 Series

Total Requirements
All Issues

65



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT

SCHEDULE OF PROPERTY TAX TRANSACTIONS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

TAXES ADD (DEDUCT) TAXES

UNCOLLECTED ADD LEVY AS DEDUCT CANCELLATION UNCOLLECTED

JUNE 30, EXTENDED BY DISCOUNTS ADD AND DEDUCT JUNE 30,

General Fund: 2014 ASSESSOR ALLOWED INTEREST ADJUSTMENTS COLLECTIONS 2015

Total General Fund Levies

2014-2015 $ 25,773,207  $ 661,014          $ 11,166         $ (63,499)                $ 24,454,233  $ 605,627                 

2013-2014 $ 622,984             - - 21,485         (31,427)                274,818   338,224                 
2012-2013 356,172             - - 22,262         (6,322)                  122,818   249,294                 
2011-2012 280,252             - - 30,987         (5,680)                  119,905   185,654                 
2010-2011 145,468             - - 18,668         (1,459)                  62,443                  100,234                 
2009-2010 & Prior 120,529             - - 8,344           (3,236)                  19,274                  106,363                 

Total Prior 1,525,405          - - 101,746       (48,124)                599,258   979,769                 

Total $ 1,525,405          $ 25,773,207            $ 661,014          $ 112,912       $ (111,623)              $ 25,053,491           $ 1,585,396              

Multnomah County

2014-2015 $ 21,550,465  552,738          $ 9,723           $ (57,475)                $ 20,442,834  $ 507,141                 

2013-2014 $ 522,579             - - 17,212         (29,656)                222,407   287,728                 
2012-2013 300,605             - - 18,037         (6,062)                  98,949                  213,631                 
2011-2012 240,427             - - 25,467         (5,040)                  98,453                  162,401                 
2010-2011 122,631             - - 15,740         (1,147)                  52,693                  84,531 
2009-2010 & Prior 102,983             - - 6,048           (2,492)                  13,622                  92,917 

Total Prior 1,289,225          - - 82,504         (44,397)                486,124   841,208                 

Total $ 1,289,225          $ 21,550,465            $ 552,738          $ 92,227         $ (101,872)              $ 20,928,958           $ 1,348,349              

Clackamas County

2014-2015 $ 4,222,742              $ 108,276          $ 1,443           $ (6,024)                  $ 4,011,399             $ 98,486 

2013-2014 $ 100,405             - - 4,273           (1,771)                  52,411                  50,496 
2012-2013 55,567               - - 4,225           (260) 23,869                  35,663 
2011-2012 39,825               - - 5,520           (640) 21,452                  23,253 
2010-2011 22,837               - - 2,928           (312) 9,750 15,703 
2009-2010 & Prior 17,546               - - 2,296           (744) 5,652 13,446 

Total Prior 236,180             - - 19,242         (3,727)                  113,134   138,561                 

Total $ 236,180             $ 4,222,742              $ 108,276          $ 20,685         $ (9,751)                  $ 4,124,533             $ 237,047                 

Debt Service Fund:

Total Debt Service Levies

2014-2015 $ 5,996,922              $ 153,805          $ 2,597           $ (14,766)                $ 5,690,032             $ 140,916                 

2013-2014 $ 147,873             - - 5,098           (7,468)                  65,210                  80,293 
2012-2013 86,398               - - 5,408           (1,526)                  29,839                  60,441 
2011-2012 70,468               - - 7,898           (1,313)                  30,572                  46,481 
2010-2011 36,528               - - 4,736           (377) 15,809                  25,078 
2009-2010 & Prior 42,023               - - 2,784           (1,127)                  6,297 37,383 

Total Prior 383,290             - - 25,924         (11,811)                147,727   249,676                 

Total $ 383,290             $ 5,996,922              $ 153,805          $ 28,521         $ (26,577)                $ 5,837,759             $ 390,592                 

(Continued on next page)

66A



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT

SCHEDULE OF PROPERTY TAX TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Debt Service Fund (Continued):

TAXES ADD (DEDUCT) TAXES

UNCOLLECTED ADD LEVY AS DEDUCT CANCELLATION UNCOLLECTED

JUNE 30, EXTENDED BY DISCOUNTS ADD AND DEDUCT JUNE 30,

2014 ASSESSOR ALLOWED INTEREST ADJUSTMENTS COLLECTIONS 2015

Multnomah County

2014-2015 $ 5,006,895              $ 128,420           $ 2,259   $ (13,353)                 $ 4,749,555             $ 117,826                  

2013-2014 $ 124,262             - - 4,093            (7,052)                   52,885                  68,418 
2012-2013 72,461               - - 4,348            (1,461)                   23,852                  51,496 
2011-2012 57,274               - - 6,066            (1,200)                   23,453                  38,687 
2010-2011 29,143               - - 3,741            (273) 12,522                  20,089 
2009-2010 & Prior 28,489               1,866            (725) 4,112 25,518 

Total Prior 311,629             - - 20,114   (10,711)                 116,824   204,208                  

Total $ 311,629             $ 5,006,895              $ 128,420           $ 22,373   $ (24,064)                 $ 4,866,379             $ 322,034                  

Clackamas County

2014-2015 $ 990,027                 $ 25,385             $ 338               $ (1,413)                   $ 940,477                $ 23,090 

2013-2014 $ 23,611               - - 1,005            (416) 12,325                  11,875 
2012-2013 13,937               - - 1,060            (65) 5,987 8,945 
2011-2012 13,194               - - 1,832            (113) 7,119 7,794 
2010-2011 7,385                 - - 995               (104) 3,287 4,989 
2009-2010 & Prior 13,534               - - 918               (402) 2,185 11,865 

Total Prior 71,661               - - 5,810            (1,100)                   30,903                  45,468 

Total $ 71,661  $ 990,027                 $ 25,385             $ 6,148            $ (2,513)                   $ 971,380                $ 68,558 

Debt
General Service

Fund Fund

Total Property Taxes $ 25,053,491  $ 5,837,759               

Other taxes
County sales tax - - 
Tax offsets 13,088                  3,112 

Total other taxes 13,088                  3,112 

Total Taxes $ 25,066,579  $ 5,840,871               

66B



This page is intentionally left blank 



OTHER INFORMATION 



This page is intentionally left blank 



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT

COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF STUDENT ACTIVITY FUNDS BY SCHOOL

 June 30, 2015 and 2014

2015 2014
Gresham Union High School:
     Cash and investments $ 362,402 $ 335,393 

Sam Barlow High School:
     Cash and investments 481,271 495,399 

Springwater Trail High School
     Cash and investments 33,088 31,099 

Clear Creek Middle School:
     Cash and investments 53,265 56,067 

Damascus Middle School:
     Cash and investments 57,485 51,602 

Dexter McCarty Middle School:
     Cash and investments 49,086 39,811 

Gorden Russell Middle School:
     Cash and investments 67,445 72,768 

West Orient Middle School:
     Cash and investments 47,629 54,033 

Deep Creek Elementary School:
     Cash and investments - 7,419 

East Gresham Elementary School
  Cash and investments 3,946 2,885 

East Orient Grade School:
     Cash and investments 20,624 17,172 

Hall Elementary School:
     Cash and investments 10,693 14,229 

Highland Elementary School:
     Cash and investments 6,876 5,698 

Hogan Cedars Elementary School
     Cash and investments 36,265 26,180 

Hollydale Elementary School:
     Cash and investments 6,743 7,626 

Kelly Creek Elementary School:
     Cash and investments 18,364 13,779 

North Gresham Grade School:
     Cash and investments 4,551 7,091 

Powell Valley Grade School:
     Cash and investments 6,964 6,472 

West Gresham Grade School
     Cash and investments 7,127 9,263 

     Total $ 1,273,824 $ 1,253,986 

67



This page is intentionally left blank 



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION AS REQUIRED
BY THE OREGON STATE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

A. Energy bills for heating - all funds:

Please enter your expenditures for electricity Function 2540 $ 1,458,783
& heating fuel for these Functions & Objects. Function 2550 -

B. Replacement of equipment - General Fund:
Include all General Fund expenditures in Object 542, except for the following exclusions:
Exclude these functions:
1113, 1122 & 1132 Co-curricular activities Construction $ 367,358
1140 Pre-kindergarten Pupil transportation
1300 Continuing education Food service
1400 Summer school Community services

3100
3300

Objects 325 and 326

Amount

4150
2550

68



SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION AS REQUIRED

BY THE OREGON STATE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

REVENUES:
   REVENUES FROM LOCAL SOURCES:
     1110 Ad valorem taxes levied by distsrict $ 25,066,579     $ - $ 5,840,871      
     1190 Penalties and interest on taxes 601                 - 10                  
     1130 Construction excise tax - - - 
     1310 Tuition from individuals - 154,722         - 
     1330 Summer school tuition 17,375            12,840           - 
     1410 Transportation fees from individuals 74,645            392                - 
     1500 Earnings on investments 127,300          5,443             16,734           
     1600 Food service - 438,376         - 
     1700 Extracurricular activities 314,331          1,742,916      - 
     1800 Community services activities 51,511            - - 
     1910 Rentals 232,219          - - 
     1920 Contributions and donations 31,801            273,529         - 
     1940 Services provided to other LEA 273,157          36,140           - 
     1950 Textbook sales and rentals - 11,073           - 
     1960 Recovery of prior year's expenditures - - - 
     1970 Services provided other funds - - - 
     1980 Fees charged to grants 495,965          - - 
     1990 Miscellaneous 375,866          53,931           - 
        Total revenue from local sources 27,061,350     2,729,362      5,857,615      
   REVENUES FROM INTERMEDIATE SOURCES:
     2101 County school fund 1,993              - - 
     2102 General education service district funds 2,040,362       100,000         - 
     2190 Other revenue from intermediate sources - 181,846         - 
        Total revenue from intermediate sources 2,042,355       281,846         - 
   REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES:
     3101 State school fund 77,338,087     - - 
     3102 State school lunch match - 40,221           - 
     3103 Commom school fund 1,226,724       - - 
     3199 Other unrestricted state revenue 506,064          - - 
     3204 Driver education - - - 
     3299 Other restricted state revenue - 304,799         - 
        Total revenue from state sources 79,070,875     345,020         - 
   REVENUES FROM FEDERAL SOURCES:
     4500 Restricted revenue from federal government 

through the state - 10,300,245    - 
     4700 Restricted revenue from federal government

through the intermediate sources 50,425            - - 
     4801 Forest Fees 12,662            - - 
        Total revenue from federal sources 63,087            10,300,245    - 
   REVENUES FROM  OTHER SOURCES:
     5160 Lease purchase receipts 1,006,065       - - 
     5200 Transfers - 260,000         - 
     5300 Sale or compensation for loss of fixed assets - - - 
     5400 Resources - beginning fund balance 6,080,252       2,251,332      893,146         
        Total revenue from other sources 7,086,317       2,511,332      893,146         
TOTAL REVENUES $ 115,323,984  $ 16,167,805   $ 6,750,761      

GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Fund FundFund

69A

100 200 300



$ - $ -                  $ -                  $ -                  $ 30,907,450     
- -                  -                  -                  611                 

147,213        -                  -                  -                  147,213          
- -                  -                  -                  154,722          
- -                  -                  -                  30,215            
- -                  -                  -                  75,037            

19,473          -                  -                  5,848          174,798          
- -                  -                  -                  438,376          
- -                  -                  -                  2,057,247       
- -                  -                  -                  51,511            

12,161          -                  -                  -                  244,380          
500               -                  -                  -                  305,830          

- -                  -                  -                  309,297          
- -                  -                  -                  11,073            

315,738        -                  -                  -                  315,738          
- -                  -                  400,449      400,449          
- -                  -                  -                  495,965          
- -                  -                  -                  429,797          

495,085        -                  -                  406,297      36,549,709     

- -                  -                  -                  1,993              
- -                  -                  -                  2,140,362       

75,000          -                  -                  -                  256,846          
75,000          -                  -                  -                  2,399,201       

- -                  -                  -                  77,338,087     
- -                  -                  -                  40,221            
- -                  -                  -                  1,226,724       
- -                  -                  -                  506,064          
- -                  -                  -                  - 

218,452        -                  -                  -                  523,251          
218,452        -                  -                  -                  79,634,347     

- -                  -                  -                  10,300,245     

- -                  -                  -                  50,425            
- -                  -                  -                  12,662            
- -                  -                  -                  10,363,332     

- -                  -                  -                  1,006,065       
250,000        -                  -                  300,000      810,000          

- -                  -                  -                  - 
1,387,266     -                  -                  969,426      11,581,422     
1,637,266     -                  -                  1,269,426   13,397,487     

$ 2,425,803     $ -                  $ -                  $ 1,675,723   $ 142,344,076   

600
Fund FundFund Fund

69B

700 Total400 500



SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION AS REQUIRED

BY THE OREGON STATE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

EXPENDITURES:
   INSTRUCTION:
     1111 Primary programs K-5 $ - $ - $ - 
     1113 Elementary extracurricular - - 30,196           
     1121 Middle school programs - - - 
     1122 Middle school extracurricular 109,015         
     1131 High school programs 3,629            1,371             - 
     1132 High school extracurricular - - 402,873         
     1220 Restrictive programs for students with disabilities 60,736          43,729           45,613           
     1250 Resourse rooms 558,958        347,051         549                
     1271 Remediation 9,272            2,728             - 
     1272 Title I 1,683,875     976,376         610,091         
     1299 Other programs - - - 
     1400 Summer school programs 12,125          3,467             565                
        Total instruction 2,328,595     1,374,722      1,198,902      
   SUPPORT SERVICES:
     2110 Attendence and social work - - - 
     2120 Guidance services - - - 
     2130 Health services 191,816        106,518         - 
     2140 Psychological testing services 46,898          31,270           - 
     2150 Speech pathology and audiology 211,321        115,257         - 
     2190 Service direction - student support services 175,950        84,421           19,730           
     2210 Improvement of instruction services 66,220          32,068           12,690           
     2220 Educational media services - - - 
     2230 Assessment and testing 13,254          2,619             19                  
     2240 Instructional staff development 641,054        307,592         98,147           
     2320  Executive administration services - - 600                
     2410 Office of the principal - - - 
     2520 Fical services - - - 
     2550 Student transportation - - 33,391           
     2570 Internal services 82,822          25,799           14,596           
     2620 Planning and development services - - - 
     2660 Technology services - - - 
     2690 Other central support - - - 
        Total support services 1,429,335     705,544         179,173         
   COMMUNITY SERVICES:
     3100 Food services - - 3,404,127      
     3300 Community services 13,644          3,901             6,856             
        Total community services 13,644          3,901             3,410,983      
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 3,771,574    $ 2,084,167     $ 4,789,058      

GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT

SCHEDULE OF SPECIAL REVENUE FUND EXPENDITURES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

100 200 300

70A

Objects Objects Objects



$ 1,259            $ -                  $ -                  $ 1,259            
128,473        -                  54,141        212,810        

- -                  -                  - 
208,175        50,986        368,176        
52,316          -                  -                  57,316          

665,697        -                  401,654      1,470,224     
1,293            -                  -                  151,371        
2,046            -                  -                  908,604        

- -                  -                  12,000          
261,165        -                  38,713        3,570,220     

- -                  -                  - 
817               -                  -                  16,974          

1,321,241     -                  545,494      6,768,954     

- -                  -                  - 
- -                  -                  - 
- -                  -                  298,334        
- -                  697             78,865          
- -                  -                  326,578        

106               -                  241             280,448        
4,440            -                  323             115,741        

14,265          -                  -                  14,265          
- -                  -                  15,892          

20,704          -                  30,089        1,097,586     
600               

12,105          -                  -                  12,105          
- -                  238,678      238,678        
- -                  -                  33,391          

78,381          -                  -                  201,598        
- -                  -                  - 

199,175        4,715          -                  203,890        
- -                  -                  - 

329,176        4,715          270,028      2,917,971     

268,154        171,375      196,522      4,040,178     
9,900            -                  -                  34,301          

278,054        171,375      196,522      4,074,479     
$ 1,928,471     $ 176,090      $ 1,012,044   $ 13,761,404  

400 500 600
Total

70B

Objects Objects Objects



 

 

 
 

 
 

  
 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank 
 



 

 

STATISTICAL SECTION 
 
This part of Gresham-Barlow School District’s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed 
information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, 
and required supplementary information says about the government’s overall financial health. 
 
Contents          Page 
 
Financial Trends               71 
 These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the government’s 
  financial performance and well-being have changed over time. 
 
Revenue Capacity                75 
 These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the government’s most  
  significant local revenue sources, the property tax. 
 
Debt Capacity             79 
 These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the  
  government’s current levels of outstanding debt and the government’s ability to issue 
  additional debt in the future. 
 
Demographic and Economic Information          81 
 These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand 
  the environment within which the government’s financial activities take place. 
 
Operating Information            82 
 These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand 
  how the information in the government’s financial report relates to the services the government 

 provides and the activities it performs. 
 
 

Sources:  Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive annual 
 financial reports for the relevant year. 

 



 

 

 
 

 
 

  
 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank 
 



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT
NET POSITION BY COMPONENT
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(accrual basis of accounting)

2014-15 2013-14 2012-13 2011-12 2010-11 2009-10 2008-09 2007-08 2006-07 2005-06
  Governmental activities:
     Net investment in capital assets $ 40,316,151            $ 37,147,822      $ 34,124,378     $ 31,873,301     $ 29,983,256     $ 27,643,113           $ 25,985,197    $ 12,850,499    $ 8,324,531        $ 3,615,611       
     Restricted 3,299,710              3,692,994        4,216,323       4,100,076       3,897,351       2,323,424             4,991,939      7,588,096      10,259,006      12,559,787     
     Unrestricted (38,284,073)           840,433           4,704,560       11,151,934     18,091,441     23,717,800           20,329,271    23,107,608    23,841,655      25,592,314     

Total primary government net position $ 5,331,788              $ 41,681,249      $ 43,045,261     $ 47,125,311     $ 51,972,048     $ 53,684,337           $ 51,306,407    $ 43,546,203    $ 42,425,192      $ 41,767,712     

      Source:  Gresham-Barlow School District 10JT financial records.

71



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT

CHANGES IN NET POSITION, LAST TEN YEARS

(accrual basis of accounting)

2014-15 2013-14 2012-13 2011-12 2010-11 2009-10 2008-09 2007-08 2006-07 2005-06
Expenses
Governmental activities:
 Instruction:
  Regular programs $ 38,759,479      $ 45,136,409      $ 42,766,242      $ 46,001,030     $ 45,585,182      $ 45,897,151     $ 49,652,048      $ 49,823,751     $ 47,809,488     $ 47,352,268    
  Special programs 23,247,820      24,005,235      21,281,755      19,462,804     18,662,614      17,550,276     15,627,129      13,805,383     12,917,518     12,382,269    
  Adult/Continuing programs -                  -                  -                  -                 -                  -                 -                  -                 -                 -                
  Summer school programs 31,756             23,617             27,907             29,639           37,316             35,779           53,740             60,793           61,653           89,678           
     Total instruction 62,039,055      69,165,261      64,075,904      65,493,473     64,285,112      63,483,206     65,332,917      63,689,927     60,788,659     59,824,215    
 Support services:
   Student support services 5,559,793        6,610,669        6,224,778        6,291,417      5,970,489        5,928,050      6,789,371        6,745,334      6,241,911      6,316,366      
   Instructional staff support 4,065,219        3,604,080        3,757,790        4,046,447      4,615,721        4,799,441      4,050,962        4,195,903      4,041,777      3,576,011      
  General administration 873,881           1,078,227        1,016,157        600,724         1,096,149        860,098         868,546           665,759         693,776         643,711         
  School administration 5,870,308        7,088,709        6,816,155        6,762,586      6,163,757        6,361,477      7,074,493        7,057,092      6,710,075      6,497,445      
  Business support services 18,633,516      19,493,722      21,367,682      18,949,088     16,737,959      15,434,205     15,368,094      14,935,319     13,920,197     13,721,317    
  Central activities 3,568,485        5,125,256        4,993,580        3,163,133      4,924,378        4,621,373      6,392,442        6,276,653      5,948,619      5,742,203      
  Supplemental retirement program 300,000           300,000           300,000           300,000         300,000           300,000         300,000           300,000         300,000         369,550         
     Total support services 38,871,202      43,300,663      44,476,142      40,113,395     39,808,453      38,304,644     40,843,908      40,176,060     37,856,355     36,866,603    
 Enterprise and community services 4,083,154        3,972,990        3,943,914        3,756,939      3,656,939        3,836,382      3,751,276        3,664,382      3,420,469      3,227,090      
 Facilities and construction -                  146,963           -                  -                 -                  -                 -                  -                 -                 -                
 Interest on long-term debt 4,868,853        4,757,167        4,903,333        5,321,741      5,053,148        5,136,273      5,121,596        5,151,722      5,203,913      5,400,279      
     Total primary government expenses $ 109,862,264    $ 121,343,044    $ 117,399,293    $ 114,685,548   $ 112,803,652    $ 110,760,505   $ 115,049,697    $ 112,682,091   $ 107,269,396   $ 105,318,187  

Program Revenues
Governmental activities:
 Charges fro services:
   Regular programs $ 2,580,889        $ 2,258,215        $ 2,404,909        $ 2,591,406      $ 2,489,026        $ 2,490,473      $ 2,660,125        $ 2,859,102      $ 2,973,074      $ 3,416,613      
   Other instruction activities 84,280             175,515           173,701           171,181         175,652           166,175         100,568           181,743         290,368         366,445         
   Support services 927,334           865,374           514,453           448,729         789,508           897,504         603,320           752,460         769,184         970,084         
   Enterprise and community services 705,118           922,338           953,220           1,039,824      1,123,322        1,241,200      1,337,930        1,571,961      1,482,185      1,434,083      
 Operating grants and contributions 11,182,275      10,374,635      11,123,257      10,410,830     12,407,411      12,084,445     8,816,914        7,656,704      7,632,200      7,583,032      
 Capital grants and contributions 867,493           554,778           1,733,518        1,202,499      936,071           403,907         227,399           18,429           175,795         759,928         
     Total primary government program revenues $ 16,347,389      $ 15,150,855      $ 16,903,058      $ 15,864,469     $ 17,920,990      $ 17,283,704     $ 13,746,256      $ 13,040,399     $ 13,322,806     $ 14,530,185    

Net (Expense)/Revenue
Total primary government net expense $ (93,514,875)     $ (106,192,189)   $ (100,496,235)   $ (98,821,079)   $ (94,882,662)     $ (93,476,801)   $ (101,303,441)   $ (99,641,692)   $ (93,946,590)   $ (90,788,002)   

72A



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT

CHANGES IN NET POSITION, LAST TEN YEARS

(accrual basis of accounting)

2014-15 2013-14 2012-13 2011-12 2010-11 2008-09 2007-08 2006-07 2005-06 2004-05
General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Position
Governmental activities:
 Property taxes levied for general purposes $ 25,127,171      $ 23,524,401      $ 23,617,045      $ 23,114,803     $ 22,742,618      $ 22,241,298     $ 21,322,714      $ 20,494,301     $ 19,674,688     $ 18,900,462    
 Property taxes levied for debt service 5,848,183        5,585,613        5,731,001        5,865,392      5,770,673        5,937,248      6,081,408        8,865,489      9,482,930      8,233,935      
 State school fund - general support 77,338,087      72,089,563      65,044,223      60,784,257     58,771,970      62,535,975     61,607,549      64,716,534     60,237,660     57,064,850    
 State school fund - school improvement fund -                  -                  -                  -                 -                  -                 2,512,333        2,538,558      -                 -                
 Common school fund 1,226,724        1,168,802        1,219,378        1,098,776      1,195,304        1,230,366      998,554           1,300,412      1,145,972      1,075,954      
 Multnomah county income taxes -                  -                  -                  -                 85,995             59,254           -                  693,052         976,584         10,727,048    
 Unrestricted state and local sources 2,548,419        2,276,194        449,916           2,651,937      367,976           26,328           1,066,638        33,029           752,431         30,944           
 Federal forest fees 12,662             13,289             13,282             6,747             22,283             26,376           30,291             34,823           31,835           33,544           
 Other federal sources -                  -                  -                  35,578           3,734,680        3,229,489      2,337,828        -                 -                 -                
 Earnings on investments 168,950           170,315           198,678           241,170         237,566           304,554         1,031,904        1,970,692      2,193,201      1,530,462      
 Miscellaneous -                  -                  142,662           175,540         241,308           263,843         136,794           115,813         108,769         54,504           
 Proceeds from refunding bonds -                  -                  -                  142                -                  -                 -                  -                 -                 -                
Total primary government $ 112,270,196    $ 104,828,177    $ 96,416,185      $ 93,974,342     $ 93,170,373      $ 95,854,731     $ 97,126,013      $ 100,762,703   $ 94,604,070     $ 97,651,703    

Change in Net Position
Total primary government $ 18,755,321      $ (1,364,012)       $ (4,080,050)       $ (4,846,737)     $ (1,712,289)       $ 2,377,930      $ (4,177,428)       $ 1,121,011      $ 657,480         $ 6,863,701      

      Source:  Gresham-Barlow School District 10JT financial records.

72B



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT

FUND BALANCES, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(modified accrual basis of accounting)

2014-15(1) 2013-14(1) 2012-13(1) 2011-12(1) 2010-11(1) 2009-10 2008-09 2007-08 2006-07 2005-06

General Fund (1)
  Unassigned $ 6,866,451    $ 6,080,252    $ 6,530,804    $ 10,654,889  $ 12,714,159  
  Unreserved $ 13,557,462  $ 10,172,332 $ 13,085,912 $ 13,977,440 $ 15,698,518 
Total general fund $ 6,866,451    $ 6,080,252    $ 6,530,804    $ 10,654,889  $ 12,714,159  $ 13,557,462  $ 10,172,332 $ 13,085,912 $ 13,977,440 $ 15,698,518 

All Other Governmental Funds(1)
 Resticted for:
  Student activity groups $ 1,286,825    $ 1,271,120    $ 1,319,242    $ 1,365,098    $ 1,306,688    $ -               $ $ $ $
  Retirement of long-term debt 853,530       893,146       1,069,912    1,164,286    1,450,341    -               
  Food service 943,319       933,926       788,221       672,758       475,903       -               
  School construction 121,494       231,001       706,896       607,767       451,362       -               
  Planning activities 81,715         46,286         16,718         -               -               -               
  Other activities 94,542         -               -               -               -               -               
 Committed to:
  PERS litigation -               -               -               -               3,352,000    -               
 Assigned to:
  Capital expenditures(2) 1,113,052    1,156,265    1,573,340    720,371       782,383       -               
 Reserved for:
  Student activity groups -               1,263,121    1,195,670   1,086,687   1,175,052   1,204,096   
  Retirement of long-term debt -               1,770,506    1,863,037   1,812,245   1,736,011   1,295,451   
  Capital expenditures(2) -               948,887       941,317      1,327,472   2,069,306   3,272,288   
  PERS litigation -               3,336,190    3,312,047   3,244,703   3,095,725   2,940,634   
 Unreserved, reported in:
  Special revenue funds -               -               -               -               -               327,906       343,578      477,741      448,333      471,800      
Total all other governmental funds $ 4,494,477    $ 4,531,744    $ 5,474,329    $ 4,530,280    $ 7,818,677    $ 7,646,610    $ 7,655,649   $ 7,948,848   $ 8,524,427   $ 9,184,269   

(1)  GASB 54 implemented - requiring new fund balance categories.  Over time all fund balances will be reported under new GASB 54 fund balance categories.
(2) Assigned/Reserved for capital expenditures fluctuate from years when bonds are sold in anticipation of capital construction to years where capital expenditures are made.

73



 

GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
Last Ten Years
(modified accrual basis of accounting)

REVENUES: 2014-15 2013-14 2012-13 2011-12 2010-11 2009-10 2008-09 2007-08 2006-07 2005-06

Local sources:
Taxes(1) $ 31,371,012     $ 29,350,424     $ 29,546,553     $ 29,029,839       $ 28,761,869   $ 28,364,220   $ 27,275,876   $ 29,229,085   $ 29,159,013   $ 27,170,901   
Earnings on investments 168,950          170,315          199,253          241,170           237,566        304,554        1,031,904     1,970,692     2,193,201     1,530,462     
Other Local Sources 4,603,450       4,518,788       5,801,012       4,681,234         5,166,456     5,236,971     5,179,019     5,697,896     5,966,279     6,841,681     

Intermediate Sources(3) 2,399,201       2,299,495       1,248,936       657,635           514,209        528,565        458,145        1,223,071     2,129,012     11,063,290   
State Sources(2) 79,634,347     73,895,753     66,817,581     64,711,770       60,404,359   63,841,922   66,224,037   68,631,628   61,513,048   58,282,550   
Federal Sources 10,363,332     9,704,632       9,531,146       10,203,702       16,050,190   14,857,826   10,452,395   6,889,976     6,920,155     7,019,826     

Total Revenues 128,540,292   119,939,407   113,144,481   109,525,350     111,134,649 113,134,058 110,621,376 113,642,348 107,880,708 111,908,710 

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

Instruction 74,744,012     70,652,667     67,548,028     65,948,102       64,693,562   63,823,957   65,523,523   63,750,979   60,786,584   59,575,088   
Support Services 42,399,084     39,371,998     38,277,642     37,221,418       36,620,508   35,499,369   38,145,944   37,496,402   35,017,556   34,069,629   
Enterprise and Community Services 4,134,407       3,956,043       3,929,611       3,723,763         3,634,613     3,817,410     3,731,405     3,644,970     3,391,166     3,197,413     
Facilities Acquisition & Construction -                  148,444          102,336          47,369             -                154,673        1,500            1,164,900     1,671,342     1,408,422     
Other Capital Oulay 1,181,480       1,251,059       2,836,840       1,818,164         707,685        400,043        319,680        111,490        210,016        481,493        

Debt Service:
Principal 4,737,911       4,250,000       4,120,000       3,745,000         3,532,970     3,301,667     3,188,511     5,920,000     5,960,000     5,510,000     
Interest 1,600,531       1,718,968       1,892,070       2,371,556         2,620,786     2,799,602     2,917,837     3,020,764     3,264,637     3,520,901     

Total Expenditures 128,797,425   121,349,179   118,706,527   114,875,372     111,810,124 109,796,721 113,828,400 115,109,505 110,301,301 107,762,946 

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures (257,133)         (1,409,772)      (5,562,046)      (5,350,022)       (675,475)       3,337,337     (3,207,024)    (1,467,157)    (2,420,593)    4,145,764     

Other Financing Sources (uses):
General long-term debt issued -                  -                  2,185,000       11,915,000       
Premium/(discount) on debt issued -                  -                  191,174          (82,562)            
Payments to refunded bond escrow -                  -                  -                  (11,832,296)     
Proceeds from capital leases 1,006,065       -                  -                  -                   -                -                -                -                -                -                
Sale or loss of capital assets -                  16,635            5,836              2,213               4,239            38,754          245               50                 39,673          195,853        
Transfers in 510,000          250,000          250,000          3,616,205         220,000        
Transfers out (510,000)         (250,000)         (250,000)         (3,616,205)       (220,000)       

Total other financing sources (uses) 1,006,065       16,635            2,382,010       2,355               4,239            38,754          245               50                 39,673          195,853        

Net change in fund balances
$ 748,932          $ (1,393,137)      $ (3,180,036)      $ (5,347,667)       $ (671,236)       $ 3,376,091     $ (3,206,779)    $ (1,467,107)    $ (2,380,920)    $ 4,341,617     

Debt services as a percentage of noncapital expenditures 4.97% 4.98% 5.19% 5.41% 5.54% 5.59% 5.38% 7.85% 8.51% 8.53%

(1) Revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual.
(2) Includes state replacement/transportation reimbursement and basic school support.  
(3) Addition of PERS Litigation fund for 2003-04 to 2005-06.  

74



 GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT
ASSESSED VALUE AND ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY
Last Ten Fiscal Years

  
 

PUBLIC TOTAL PUBLIC
FISCAL    REAL PERSONAL UTILITY DIRECT    REAL PERSONAL UTILITY
YEAR PROPERTY PROPERTY PROPERTY TOTAL TAX RATE(2) PROPERTY PROPERTY PROPERTY TOTAL

2014-15 $ 5,471,345,826 $  89,714,891 $  238,220,500 $ 5,799,281,217 $ 5.56 $ 6,690,357,833      $ 93,359,109      $ 272,772,787    $ 7,056,489,729 82.2 %

2013-14 5,221,377,564  94,527,553  225,607,960 5,541,513,077 5.56 6,078,358,205      98,166,145      269,903,109    6,446,427,459 86.0

2012-13 5,086,731,228  96,150,587  219,078,200 5,401,960,015 5.61 5,998,838,242      99,719,516      259,509,321    6,358,067,079 85.0

2011-12 5,049,372,484  100,445,837  224,488,380 5,374,306,701 5.57 6,206,883,641      104,198,915    238,505,680     6,549,588,236 82.1

2010-11 4,951,908,278  107,992,177  186,293,200 5,246,193,655 5.59 6,767,365,771      111,713,129    186,878,336     7,065,957,236 74.2

2009-10 4,801,708,917  111,816,750  181,458,890 5,094,984,557 5.62 7,243,951,660      112,838,609    181,540,671     7,538,330,940 67.6

2008-09 4,648,285,952  121,218,173  125,844,240 4,895,348,365 5.69 7,814,487,254      122,051,905    126,358,154     8,062,897,313 60.7

2007-08 4,430,421,338  119,211,440  127,900,970 4,677,533,748 6.53 7,374,288,255      119,903,109    129,713,058     7,623,904,422 61.4

2006-07 4,258,201,774  103,338,804  116,175,520 4,477,716,098 6.75 6,468,452,934      103,975,373    116,835,689     6,689,263,996 66.9

2005-06 4,095,519,388  92,226,625  138,749,561 4,326,495,574 6.54 5,789,245,251  92,761,230  138,749,561  6,020,756,042 71.9

(1)  Multnomah County Tax Supervising and Conservation Commission, Multnomah and Clackamas Counties.

(2) per $1,000 of assessed value.

NA=not available

TRUE CASH VALUATION(1)
RATIO OF

ASSESSED 
VALUATION TO

TRUE CASH

75

PROPERTY VALUE
ASSESSED VALUATION(1)

VALUATION

PROPERTY VALUE



 GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT
LARGEST TAXPAYERS WITHIN DISTRICT
CURRENT AND NINE YEARS AGO

PERCENTAGE PERCENTAGE
OF TOTAL OF TOTAL

 DISTRICT'S DISTRICT'S
ASSESSED ASSESSED ASSESSED ASSESSED

PRIVATE ENTERPRISES VALUATION VALUATION VALUATION VALUATION

Microchip Technology Inc $ 138,423,340              2.39 % $ 112,137,890             2.59 %
Comcast Corporation 97,006,400               1.67
GE Capital 52,437,500                0.90
Semiconductor Components 33,083,650               0.57
Westlake Gresham Center LLC 28,643,140               0.49 21,816,000                0.50
Holly Ridge Associates 26,552,010               0.46 20,349,990               0.47
PKI Gresham Town Fair LLC 23,241,200               0.40
SHP IV Courtyard Fountains LLC 200,462,420             3.46 12,834,990               0.30
Fred Meyer Stores Inc 13,434,010               0.23 15,618,070               0.36
ROC II or Vista at 23 LLC 19,144,830               0.33
Columbia Trails Apartment 18,207,920               0.31 13,954,950               0.32
EQR Oregon LLC 14,672,970               0.34
LSI Logic Corporation 123,655,250             2.86
CT Retail Properties Finance 17,711,020               0.41
Pan Pacific LLC 13,336,620                0.31

PUBLIC UTILITIES   
  

Portland General Electric Co. 50,817,870                0.88 52,423,000                1.21
Frontier/Verizon Communications 34,059,000                0.59 46,906,200               1.08
Northwest Natural Gas 12,255,800               0.21 11,438,000                0.26

    SUB TOTAL 747,769,090             12.89 476,854,950             11.02
  

ALL OTHER TAXPAYERS 5,051,512,127          87.11 3,849,640,624          88.98
  

     TOTAL $ 5,799,281,217          100.00 % $ 4,326,495,574          100.00 %

Source:  Multnomah County Department of Assessment and Taxation 

2015 2006

76



 GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT
PROPERTY TAX RATES - DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS

Last Ten Years

Dollars per $1,000 True Cash Value

2014-15 2013-14 2012-13 2011-12 2010-11 2009-10 2008-09 2007-08 2006-07 2005-06

DIRECT:

Gresham-Barlow School District 10JT Permanent Rate 4.53$           4.53$        4.53$           4.53$           4.53$           4.53$           4.53$           4.53$           4.53$           4.53$        

Gresham-Barlow School District 10JT Bond 1.03 1.03 1.08 1.04 1.06 1.09 1.14 1.18 1.37 1.13
Gresham Grade School #4 Bond 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.02 0.82 0.85 0.88

  Weighted Average Direct (1) 5.56$           5.56$        5.61$           5.57$           5.59$           5.62$           5.69$           6.53$           6.75$           6.54$        

 Orient School district #6 Bond (2) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.34 0.53 0.55 0.59 0.61
 Damascus Union School District #26 Bond (2) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.72 0.73 0.77 0.73 0.75 0.75 0.76

Overlapping:

Tri-Met Service District 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.06 0.09 0.09 0.08 0.09 0.10 0.12
 Port of Portland 0.07 0.07 0.07 0.07 0.07 0.07 0.07 0.07 0.07 0.07
 Multnomah ESD 0.46 0.46 0.44 0.46 0.46 0.46 0.46 0.46 0.46 0.46
 Mt. Hood Community College 0.49 0.49 0.48 0.49 0.49 0.49 0.49 0.49 0.49 0.49
 Clackamas Community College 0.71 0.71 0.72 0.70 0.70 0.72 0.74 0.74 0.73 0.77
 City of Gresham 3.61 3.61 3.51 3.61 3.61 3.61 3.61 3.69 3.80 3.80

City of Damascus 2.80 3.10 3.10 3.30 3.30 3.30 3.30 3.30 3.30 3.30
 Metropolitan Service District 0.46 0.47 0.40 0.32 0.41 0.44 0.40 0.43 0.28 0.28
 Multnomah County 5.67 5.69 5.42 5.44 5.38 5.40 5.39 5.42 5.29 5.31

East Multnomah County Water & Soil 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.09 0.07 0.03 0.04
 Clackamas County Rural 3.22 3.22 3.22 3.22 2.86 2.86 2.79 2.86 2.87 2.40
 Boring Fire district 59 2.38 2.38 2.38 2.38 2.38 2.38 2.38 2.38 2.38 2.38
 Vector control 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.00 0.03
  

20.00 20.33 19.87 20.18 19.88 19.95 19.83 20.03 19.80 19.45

Totals* 25.56$         25.89$     25.48$         25.75$         25.47$         25.57$         25.52$         26.56$         26.55$         25.99$      

*Numbers in totals do not reflect the actual tax rate for any one property, but are the results of the potential combination of taxing units within District boundaries.

(1)  This is a weighted average rate as limited by ballot measure 5.  Actual rates may vary by tax codes and lots because of differing compression. 

(2)  Rates are presented for comparison only and are not included in the totals.  Debt levies were not consolidated upon merger.  Instead, the
       debt levies are assessed depending upon the former District's boundary lines.

N/A - Not Available

Source:  Multnomah and Clackamas Counties Departments of Assessment and Taxation.

  

77



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTION
Last Ten Years

 

FISCAL YEAR DEBT PERCENTAGE COLLECTIONS PERCENTAGE
ENDED GENERAL SERVICE OF IN SUBSEQUENT OF 
JUNE 30 FUND FUND TOTAL AMOUNT LEVY YEARS AMOUNT LEVY

2014-15 $ 25,773,207 $ 5,996,922 $ 31,770,129 $ 31,023,586 97.7 % $ -                    $ 31,023,586 97.7 %

2013-14 24,087,065 5,717,058 29,804,123 29,033,266 97.4 352,340            29,385,606 98.6 

2012-13 24,240,352 5,880,813 30,121,165 29,287,073 97.2 524,357            29,811,430 99.0 

2011-12 23,670,264 5,999,667 29,669,931 28,740,137 96.9 697,659            29,437,796 99.2 

78 2010-11 23,437,991 5,939,102 29,377,093 28,539,902 97.2 711,879 29,251,781 99.6 

2009-10 22,864,871 6,095,480 28,960,351 28,019,394 96.8 828,111 28,847,505 99.6 

2008-09 21,975,158 6,264,837 28,239,995 27,196,140 96.3 1,037,605 28,233,745 100.0 

2007-08 21,046,857 9,103,905 30,150,762 29,242,468 97.0 904,258 30,146,726 100.0  

2006-07 20,190,083 9,731,694 29,921,777 29,110,173 97.3 808,557 29,918,730 100.0  

2005-06  19,444,539 8,488,095 27,932,634 27,167,229 97.3   762,130  27,929,359 100.0  

Source:  Multnomah and Clackamas County Departments of Assessment and Taxation.

(1) Tax collections include discounts, interest and other adjustments.

TOTAL COLLECTIONS TO DATETOTAL TAX LEVY FOR FISCAL YEAR
COLLECTED WITHIN THE

FISCAL YEAR OF THE LEVY



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT
RATIOS OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING AND LEGAL DEBT MARGIN
Last Ten Fiscal Years

RATIO OF
NET GENERAL

GENERAL PENSION FULL FAITH & LESS DEBT NET GENERAL BONDED DEBT
FISCAL OBLIGATION OBLIGATION CREDIT OBLI- SERVICE BONDED TO ASSESSED
YEAR BONDS BONDS GATION BONDS TOTAL FUND DEBT VALUATION

2014-15 $ 31,132,749 $ 44,080,635 $              1,962,939 $ 77,176,323 $ 853,530                  $ 76,322,794 $ 1.32%
2013-14 35,724,040 44,113,855 2,095,685             81,933,580 893,146                  81,040,434 1.46%
2012-13 40,085,332 44,120,084 2,228,430             86,433,846 1,069,912               85,363,934 1.58%
2011-12 44,392,310 44,085,334 88,477,644 1,164,286               87,313,358 1.62%
2010-11 48,291,210 43,899,973 92,191,183 1,450,341               90,740,842 1.73%
2009-10 52,166,203 43,719,868 95,886,071 1,770,506               94,115,565 1.85%
2008-09 55,836,341 43,546,567 99,382,908 1,863,037               97,519,871 1.99%
2007-08 59,450,209 43,295,245 102,745,454 1,812,245               100,933,209 2.16%
2006-07 65,795,567 42,951,037 108,746,604 1,736,011               107,010,593 2.39%
2005-06 72,179,512 42,508,074 114,687,586 1,295,451               113,392,135 2.62%

Legal Debt Margin Calculation for Fiscal Year 2015:

Real Market Value $ 7,056,489,729
Debt Limit (7.95%)(1) 560,990,933
Amount of Debt Applicable to Debt Limit (76,322,794)
Legal Debt Margin $ 483,814,609

RATIO OF RATIO OF
NET GENERAL TOTAL GENERAL TOTAL GENERAL NET GENERAL RATIO OF
BONDED DEBT BONDED DEBT BONDED BONDED LEGAL LEGAL LEGAL DEBT

FISCAL TO TRUE TO PERSONAL DEBT PER DEBT PER DEBT DEBT MARGIN TO
YEAR CASH VALUE INCOME CAPITA CAPITA LIMIT(1) MARGIN(2) DEBT LIMIT

2014-15 1.08% N/A 1,001 $ 990 $ 560,990,933 $ 483,814,609 86.24%
2013-14 1.26% 2.45% 1,065 1,054 512,490,983 430,557,403 84.01%
2012-13 1.34% 2.62% 1,126 1,112 505,466,333 419,032,487 82.90%
2011-12 1.33% 2.79% 1,155 1,139 520,692,265 432,214,621 83.01%
2010-11 1.28% 3.06% 1,205 1,186 561,743,600 469,552,417 83.59%
2009-10 1.25% 3.09% 1,207 1,184 599,297,310 503,411,239 84.00%
2008-09 1.21% 3.09% 1,255 1,232 641,000,336 541,617,428 84.50%
2007-08 1.32% 3.31% 1,316 1,293 606,100,402 503,354,948 83.05%
2006-07 1.60% 3.63% 1,414 1,392 531,796,488 423,049,884 79.55%
2005-06 1.88% 4.16% 1,520 1,503 478,650,105 363,962,519 76.04%

Note:  Details regarding the District's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements
(1) ORS 328.245 establishes a parameter of bonded indebtedness for school districts.  Aggregates are governed by real market values of all taxable properties
within the District bases on the following:  (A) For each grade from kindergarten to eighth for which the District operates schools, fifty-five one-hundredths of one 
of one percent (.0055) of real market value.  (B) For each grade from ninth to twelfth for which the District operates schools, seventy-five one-hundredths of one
percent (.0075) of real market value.  Allowable percent of real market value:  (A) Kindergarten through eighth grade, 9 x .0055 = 4.95% 
(B) Ninth through twelfth grade, 4 x .0075 = 3.00% or 7.95% of real market value.  Real market value data can be found on page 75:

Assessed Value and Actual Value of Taxable Property.
(2) The legal debt margin is the District's available borrowing authority under ORS 328.245 and is calculated by subtracting the net debt applicable

to the legal debt limit from the legal debt limit.
(3) Demographic and Economic Statistics can be found on page 81 for personal income and population data.  Assessed Value and True Cash 

Value can be found on page 75.
Sources: Portland State University, Population Research Center and Multnomah and Clackamas Counties Departments of Assessment and Taxation.

GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING

79



 GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GROSS BONDED DEBT
June 30, 2015

2014-2015 OVERLAPPING
REAL MARKET GROSS (1) NET (2) PERCENT WITHIN GROSS (1) NET (2)

GOVERNMENTAL UNIT VALUATION BONDED DEBT DIRECT DEBT SCHOOL DISTRICT(3) BONDED DEBT DIRECT DEBT

DIRECT DEBT

Gresham-Barlow School District $ 7,056,489,729 $ 77,176,324                $ 77,176,324                 100.00% $ 77,176,324                $ 77,176,324             

OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENT

City of Troutdale  1,656,564,223 10,470,000                10,470,000                 2.45 256,243                     256,243                  

Clackamas County 53,076,860,113 100,180,000              98,780,000                 2.86 2,863,445                  2,823,429               

Clackamas Community College 38,741,861,484 94,161,012                66,116,012                 0.00 3,013                         2,116                      

Multnomah County 109,183,784,794 289,918,314              171,825,000               5.70 16,518,386                9,789,901               

Multnomah County RFPD 10 802,170,422 4,085,000                  4,085,000                   63.49 2,593,632                  2,593,632               

Metropolitan Service District 215,408,649,968 223,625,000              193,205,000               3.42 7,640,595                  6,601,235               

Multnomah ESD 110,954,595,647 31,355,000                -                             6.97 2,186,698                  -                          

Mt. Hood Community College 31,791,558,764 65,483,056                24,445,000                 24.34 15,935,891                5,948,911               

Port of Portland 234,450,071,682 65,302,566                -                             3.30 2,155,311                  -                          

Lusted Water Authority 201,309,451 795,000                     795,000                      100.00 795,000                     795,000                  

Rockwood Water PUD 4,570,424,949 5,670,000                  -                             14.63 829,566                     -                          

Pleasant Home Water District 168,475,147 1,720,000                  1,720,000                   94.13 1,619,062                  1,619,062               

City of Gresham 9,336,988,143 75,765,545                27,689,545                 60.74 46,018,098                16,817,937             

TOTAL OVERLAPPING 810,343,314,787                     968,530,493          599,130,557               99,414,940                47,247,466             

TOTAL $ 817,399,804,516 $ 1,045,706,817 $ 676,306,881  $ 176,591,264 $ 124,423,790

  

Source:  Municipal Debt Advisory Commission, State of Oregon.

(1)  Gross bonded debt includes all bonds backed by a general obligation pledge including self-supporting general obligation bonds and limited tax debt.
(2)  Net direct debt including all tax-supported bonds.  Self-supporting bonds are excluded.
(3)  The percentage of overlapping debt is estimated using taxable assessed property values.  Applicable percentages were estimated by determining the portion
      of the overlapping district's taxable assessed value that is within the school district's boundaries and dividing it by the overlapping district's total taxable assessed value.
      These percentages are calculated by the State of Oregon Municipal Debt Advisory Commission.
Note:  Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of the District.  This schedule estimates the portion of the 
outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that is borne by the residents and businesses of the District.  This process recognizes that, when considering the 
District's ability to issue and repay long-term debt, the entire debt burden borne by the residents and businesses should be taken into account.  However, this
does not imply that every taxpayer is a resident, and therefore responsible for repaying the debt of each everlapping government.

80



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS
Last Ten Fiscal Years

PERSONAL
POPULATION INCOME PER CAPITA

FISCAL (ESTIMATED) (thousands of dollars) PERSONAL UNEMPLOYMENT
YEAR (1) (ESTIMATED) (3) INCOME (2) RATE (2)

2014-2015 77,108 $ N/A $ N/A 4.8 %

2013-2014 76,909 3,350,464 43,564 6.2

2012-2013 76,757 3,301,549 43,013 7.5

2011-2012 76,631 3,166,393 41,320 8.2

2010-2011 76,485 3,008,232 39,331 9.0

2009-2010 79,462 3,103,071 39,051 10.9

2008-2009 79,179 3,211,659 40,562 11.7

2007-2008 78,054 3,101,554 39,736 5.5

2006-2007 76,900 2,994,947 38,946 5.1

2005-2006 75,448 2,757,247 36,545 5.6

(1) Population Research Center, Portland State University
a) 2010-11 from 2010 Census, 2011-12 estimated based on City of Gresham's projected population increases since the 2010 Census
b) Estimated based on City of Gresham's projected population increases since the 2000 Census (2002-2010)

(2) Employment Division, Research and Statistics, State of Oregon (For Multnomah County)

(3) Estimated using per capital information and estimated population.

81



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS
CURRENT AND NINE YEARS AGO

Percentage Percentage

of total of total

EMPLOYER Employees Rank employment(1) Employees Rank employment(1)

Mt. Hood Community College 1,283          1 2.52 % 1,267          1 2.81     %
Gresham-Barlow School District 1,042          2 2.05 1,073          2 2.38     
Legacy Mt. Hood Medical Center 601             3 1.18 450             5 1.00     
City of Gresham 537             4 1.05 534             4 1.18     
ON Semiconductor 504             5 0.99 -              0.00     
Microchip Technology 467             6 0.92 298             7 0.66     
Fred Meyer Inc 279             7 0.55 253             8 0.56     
Winco Foods 165             8 0.32 137             12 0.30     
First Student 137             9 0.27 135             13 0.30     
Fairlawn Health Center 131             10 0.26 110             14 0.24     
Kaiser Permanente 128             11 0.25 229             10 0.51     
Regency Gresham Nursing 116             12 0.23 
Tri-Met Rail Operations 325             6 0.72     
Scenic Fruit Company 233             9 0.52     
LSI Logic -              - 580             3 1.28     
Gresham Toyota -              165             11 0.37     

Total 5,390          10.59     % 5,789          12.82     %

Source:  City of Gresham, Community and Economic Development Department and United States Department of Labor,
Bureau of Labor and Statistics.

(1)The District does not have records on employers within its jurisdiction and was unable to find a resource for its jurisdiction.
The District used total employment for the City of Gresham as reported by the Bureau of Labor and Statistics.

The District took the City's top 25 list and was able to use this information to obtain those top ten within the District's jurisdiction.

2015 2006

82



 GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT
FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT DISTRICT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

2014-15 2013-14(1) 2012-13(1) 2011-12(1) 2010-11(2) 2009-10 2008-09 2007-08 2006-07 2005-06

 Instruction:
   Primary programs 201.3            199.3            202.8            199.1            149.9       152.6        171.0        174.6        170.9        169.7        
   Intermediate programs(4) -                -                -               -                78.6         75.8          87.4          86.9          94.9          91.9          
   Middle school programs 101.8            98.1              112.5            110.7            125.2       124.8        132.1        130.5        129.6        129.9        
   High school programs 120.5            117.7            136.2            132.5            149.4       148.7        159.9        163.6        162.1        160.8        
   Preschool programs 5.7                5.7                6.6                6.1                6.1           6.5            6.5            6.5            6.5            6.5            
   Talented and gifted programs 0.1                0.1                0.2                0.2                0.3           -            -            -            -            -            
   Restrictive programs 35.6              50.6              28.7              30.4              15.1         50.5          58.6          59.8          63.9          63.4          
   Resource rooms 113.5            103.2            104.2            107.0            118.9       82.4          67.7          68.8          70.0          66.7          
   Remediation -                -                -               -                -           -            1.2            1.2            0.8            -            
   Title I 38.4              33.5              25.8              29.0              46.8         39.0          39.5          27.9          29.4          30.3          
   Alternative education 0.8                2.2                2.2                3.1                3.8           5.4            6.0            6.5            5.4            6.5            
   Designated programs 44.6              39.8              39.4              39.5              40.4         39.5          44.0          42.6          40.4          37.0          
      
      Total instruction 662.3            650.3            658.6            657.6            734.5       725.2        773.9        768.9        773.9        762.7        

 Support services:
   Attendance and social work services 18.3              17.5              18.0              17.8              17.3         16.5          17.3          13.3          15.1          13.1          
   Guidance services 26.9              27.5              29.5              31.1              31.7         34.9          44.0          45.5          43.4          42.4          
   Health services 8.8                7.3                7.3                5.2                6.2           4.6            3.6            3.6            3.6            3.6            
   Psychological services 6.5                7.5                7.5                7.1                7.1           7.1            7.3            7.4            7.4            7.4            
   Speech pathology and audiology services 11.7              11.7              11.7              14.5              13.9         14.0          17.2          16.3          15.6          14.7          
   Service direction - student support services 5.7                3.8                4.3                4.2                4.2           4.2            4.2            4.2            4.2            4.2            
   Improvement of instruction services 5.8                5.8                5.6                9.3                7.6           7.4            10.3          8.1            8.6            8.0            
   Educational media services 18.5              18.9              18.9              19.5              20.7         19.8          21.7          22.5          25.8          25.7          
   Assessment and testing 2.4                2.4                2.4                1.9                2.5           2.2            3.0            3.0            3.0            2.8            
   Instructional staff development 7.9                8.3                8.0                7.5                16.1         1.3            2.3            2.3            2.2            2.4            
   Executive administration services 6.0                6.0                6.0                3.0                4.0           4.0            4.5            4.3            4.0            4.0            
   Office of the principal services 78.1              76.3              77.5              78.2              77.8         71.6          87.7          86.7          85.9          83.8          
   Fiscal services 8.6                8.8                8.9                9.9                8.9           8.8            9.9            9.9            9.9            10.0          
   Operations and maintenance of plant services 58.0              57.0              57.0              57.0              59.0         59.0          68.5          70.5          72.2          71.0          
   Student transportation services 0.9                0.9                0.9                0.9                0.9           4.0            0.5            0.5            0.5            0.5            
   Internal services 2.2                1.2                1.0                1.0                1.0           1.0            1.0            1.0            1.0            1.0            
   Planning and development services -                -                -               -                -           -            -            -            -            -            
   Information services 1.5                1.5                1.5                1.5                2.0           2.0            2.0            2.0            2.0            1.8            
   Staff services 6.0                6.0                6.0                6.0                7.0           7.0            7.0            7.0            7.0            6.0            
   Technology sevices 18.8              18.4              18.3              18.3              18.1         19.1          26.0          25.4          21.5          20.7          
   Other central support 1.0                1.0                1.0                1.0                1.0           1.0            1.0            1.0            1.0            1.0            

      Total support services 293.6            287.8            291.3            294.9            307.0       289.5        339.0        334.5        333.9        324.1        

  Community servies:
    Food preparation and dispensing 0.2                0.2                -               -                -           0.1            0.1            0.1            0.1            0.1            
   Community services 2.0                2.0                2.0                2.0                2.0           2.0            2.0            2.0            1.5            1.9            
   Civic services -                -                -               -                -           -            -            0.6            0.9            1.0            
   Other community services
    
      Total community services 2.2                2.2                2.0                2.0                2.0           2.1            2.1            2.7            2.5            3.0            

      Total FTE 958.1            940.3            951.9            954.5            1,043.5    1,016.8     1,115.0     1,106.1     1,110.3     1,089.8     

Source:  Gresham-Barlow School District Adopted Budget

(1) FTE (Full Time Equivalent) based on a reduction of 5 contracted working days.
(2) FTE (Full Time Equivalent) based on a reduction of 8 contracted working days.
(3) FTE based on a reduction of 10 contracted working days.
(4) Function eliminated in 2011-12

83



 GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT
LICENSED PROFESSIONAL SALARY PLAN
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

1 37,101 40,754 42,074 45,820
2 38,929 42,505 43,912 47,693
3 40,846 44,333 45,833 49,641
4 42,859 46,239 47,836 51,668
5 44,968 48,228 49,929 53,775
6 47,183 50,301 52,113 55,971
7 49,507 52,465 55,991 59,971
8 51,946 54,721 56,771 60,636
9 54,503 57,075 59,252 63,113

10 57,189 59,527 61,844 65,689
11 62,086 64,549 68,370
12 64,758 67,371 71,165
13 70,317 74,070

*Based on 187 day contract

LICENCED STAFF PER LEVEL AND EDUCATION IN FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT EMPLOYEES-JUNE 2015

TOTAL

1 10.16 1.67 9.83 4.52 26.18
2 5.10 1.00 10.50 7.33 23.93
3 1.00 0.00 5.00 1.00 7.00
4 2.17 1.00 11.70 3.00 17.87
5 0.00 1.00 4.67 6.67 12.34
6 1.00 0.00 2.00 6.00 9.00
7 0.00 0.83 13.15 7.50 21.48
8 0.00 0.00 13.90 7.00 20.90
9 1.00 0.00 10.00 9.93 20.93

10 13.17 2.00 11.10 9.70 35.97
11 0.00 15.50 24.00 39.50
12 17.50 13.00 16.00 46.50
13 61.96 212.81 274.77

33.60 25.00 182.31 315.46 556.37

Source:  Gresham-Barlow School District Budget Department

BACHELORS +75*
MASTERS*

BACHELORS +105*
MASTERS +23*

BACHELORS +75

LEVEL

LEVEL

BACHELORS* BACHELORS +45*

MASTERS +23
BACHELORS +105

Total

BACHELORS BACHELORS +45 MASTERS

84



 GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT
OPERATING STATISTICS
Last Ten Fiscal Years

AVERAGE PUPIL- GRESHAM BARLOW SPRING-
FISCAL STUDENT DAILY  TEACHING TEACHER HIGH HIGH WATER
YEAR ENROLLMENT(1) MEMBERSHIP(2) K-8 9-12 ALL STAFF (5) RATIO (4) SCHOOL SCHOOL TRAIL

2014-2015 11,120 11,647 $ 9,460 $ 8,757 $ 9,223 556.4 19.99 307 344 34
2013-2014 11,251 11,630 8,873 8,355 8,700 512.6 21.95 315 334 29
2012-2013 11,319 11,708 8,671 8,476 8,611 568.8 19.90 328 354 26
2011-2012 11,507 11,661 8,508 8,289 8,442 560.2 20.54 342 362 29
2010-2011 11,598 11,648 8,234 8,153 8,213 613.9 18.89 332 368 32
2009-2010 11,925 11,694 7,997 8,331 8,109 609.6 19.56 330 377 32
2008-2009 12,007 11,682 8,292 8,326 8,311 659.9 18.20 339 374 31
2007-2008 12,116 11,590 8,145 8,216 8,177 660.7 18.34 388 339 26
2006-2007 12,123 11,515 7,581 7,885 7,686 659.2 18.39 355 353 30
2005-2006 12,095 11,740 7,718 7,216 7,556 661.0 18.30 374 356 40

 

85 FISCAL REDUCED
YEAR PAID FREE PAID FREE PRICE

2014-2015 131,919 723,820 38,787      17,866 325,204 7,884
2013-2014 180,825 562,725 73,555      54,116 271,047 31,274
2012-2013 234,133 612,662 72,010      61,002 304,513 28,870
2011-2012 266,606 595,317 78,625      49,147 247,628 27,323
2010-2011 305,294 550,631 88,862      69,760 209,919 33,264
2009-2010 364,163 536,262 103,422    79,085 210,632 38,105
2008-2009 424,169 465,425 101,554    74,188 188,178 26,921
2007-2008 457,480 423,957 110,027    76,481 177,323 30,149
2006-2007 452,255 396,267 113,070    67,638 148,571 25,861
2005-2006 449,093 423,552 100,081    63,567 155,854 24,125

(1)  Enrollment in Grehsm-Barlow School District locations only.
(2)  Average Daily Membership (ADM) includes all resident students regardless of where they attend (including charter schools,
      schools outside the district, and schools for special needs students operated by other agencies and education service districts).
(3) Cost per pupil is calculated by the District using actual expenditures on the budgetary basis, excluding capital outlay and debt service
and offset by payments received for tuition (i.e., outdoor school, driver's education) and non-reimbursable transportation.
(4) Enrollment to Teacher Ratio
(5) Includes all licensed staff, not just classroom teachers, (i.e., counselors, special education, librarians).

N/A-Not  Available
Sources:  Gresham Barlow School District Human Resources Department, Food Service Department, High Schools,
      Enrollment and Attendance Records.

NUMBER OF STUDENTS GRADUATED(5)

COST PER PUPIL(3)

REDUCED
PRICE

NUMBER OF TYPE A LUNCES SERVED NUMBER OF BREAKFASTS SERVED



 GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 10JT
CAPITAL ASSET INFORMATION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

2015 2014 2013(1) 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006(1)
SCHOOLS

ELEMENTARY
BUILDINGS 11                11                11              11             11            11            11            11            11            11             
SQUARE FEET 633,084       633,084       633,084     651,268    651,268   649,635   649,667   649,667   647,867   642,267    
CAPACITY 5,611           5,611           5,611         5,838        5,838       5,353       5,353       5,353       5,293       5,293        
ENROLLMENT 4,914           4,914           4,914         4,925        4,925       5,081       5,132       5,240       5,270       5,261        

MIDDLE
BUILDINGS 5                  5                  5                5               5              5              5              5              5              5               
SQUARE FEET 460,285       460,285       460,285     472,199    472,199   470,257   470,257   470,257   470,257   470,257    
CAPACITY 3,328           3,328           3,328         3,280        3,280       2,943       2,943       2,943       2,943       2,943        
ENROLLMENT 2,741           2,741           2,741         2,887        2,887       2,946       2,950       2,989       2,923       2,912        

HIGH
BUILDINGS 3                  3                  3                3               3              3              3              3              3              3               
SQUARE FEET 561,876       561,876       561,876     537,134    537,134   537,134   537,134   537,134   537,134   537,134    
CAPACITY 3,630           3,630           3,630         3,627        3,627       3,170       3,170       3,170       3,170       3,170        
ENROLLMENT(2) 3,664           3,664           3,664         3,389        3,389       3,769       3,892       3,864       3,902       3,899        

ADMINISTRATIVE
BUILDINGS 1                  1                  1                1               1              1              1              1              1              1               
SQUARE FEET 13,094         13,094         13,094       13,094      13,094     12,000     12,000     12,000     12,000     12,000      

OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE
BUILDINGS 1                  1                  1                1               1              1              1              1              1              1               
SQUARE FEET 12,000         12,000         12,000       12,000      12,000     6,000       6,000       6,000       6,000       6,000        

OTHER
SQUARE FEET 44,000         44,000         44,000       44,000      44,000     44,000     44,000     44,000     44,000     44,000      

ATHLETICS
FOOTBALL FIELDS 3                  3                  3                3               3              3              3              3              3              3               
SOCCER FIELDS 4                  4                  4                4               4              4              4              4              4              4               
FOOTBALL/SOCCER FIELDS 2                  2                  2                2               2              2              2              2              2              2               
BASEBALL/SOFTBALL 20                20                20              20             20            20            20            20            20            20             
SWIMMING POOLS 2                  2                  2                2               2              2              2              2              2              2               
PLAYGROUNDS 16                16                16              16             16            16            16            16            16            16             

(1) Long-range planning for building capacity was conducted on a building by building and room by room basis  to develop optimal capacity information.
(2) Does not include Adult Living Program.
Source:  Gresham-Barlow School District Facilities Department

86



 

 

 
 

 
 

  
 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank 
 



 

 

AUDIT COMMENTS AND DISCLOSURES 
REQUIRED BY STATE REGULATIONS 

 
Oregon Administrative Rules 162-10-050 through 162-10-320 incorporated in the Minimum Standards for 
Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, prescribed by the Secretary of State in cooperation with the 
Oregon State Board of Accountancy, enumerate the financial statements, schedules, and comments and 
disclosures required in all audit reports.  The required statements and schedules are set forth in the 
preceding sections of this report.  Required comments and disclosures related to the audit of such 
statements and schedules are set forth in the following pages. 



 

 

 
 

 
 

  
 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank 
 



 

 

                                                                        PAULY, ROGERS, AND CO., P.C.   
             12700 SW 72nd Ave.  Tigard, OR  97223 

                                                                    (503) 620‐2632  (503) 684‐7523 FAX 
www.paulyrogersandcocpas.com 

 
 

 
 

Independent Auditors’ Report Required by Oregon State Regulations 
 

We have audited the basic financial statements of the Gresham-Barlow School District as of and for the year ended 
June 30, 2015, and have issued our report thereon dated October 12, 2015.  We conducted our audit in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Compliance 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we performed tests of compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants, 
including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statues as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules 162-10-000 
through 162-10-320 of the Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, noncompliance with 
which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statements amounts.  However, 
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do 
not express such an opinion. 
 
We performed procedures to the extent we considered necessary to address the required comments and 
disclosures which included, but were not limited to the following: 
 
 Deposit of public funds with financial institutions (ORS Chapter 295) 
 Indebtedness limitations, restrictions and repayment. 
 Budgets legally required (ORS Chapter 294). 
 Insurance and fidelity bonds in force or required by law. 
 Programs funded from outside sources. 
 Authorized investment of surplus funds (ORS Chapter 294). 
 Public contracts and purchasing (ORS Chapters 279A, 279B, 279C). 
 State school fund factors and calculation. 
 
In connection with our testing nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe the Gresham-Barlow School 
District was not in substantial compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants, 
including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules 162-10-000 
through 162-10-320 of the Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporation. 
 
OAR 162-10-0230 Internal Control 
 
In planning and performing our audit, we considered the internal controls over financial reporting as a basis for 
designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting.  
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal controls over financial reporting. 

87 
 



 

 

 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors and management and the 
Oregon Secretary of State and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these parties. 

 
 

        
Matthew Graves, CPA 
PAULY, ROGERS AND CO., P.C. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

88 



 

 

SINGLE AUDIT SECTION 



 

 

 
 

 
 

  
 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank 
 



Gresham-Barlow School District 10JT
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2015

Pass
Federal Through 
CFDA Entity Period

Program Title Number Number Covered
U.S. Department of Education

Passed through Oregon Department of Education:
Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.010 32591 07/01/14-09/30/15 $ 2,711,555          

84.010 32506 07/01/14-09/30/15 8,755                 
84.010 28362 07/01/13 - 09/30/14 5,978                 
84.010 28363 07/01/13 - 09/30/14 31,296               
84.010 30715 12/01/13 - 09/30/14 8,683                 
84.010 32775 07/01/14-09/30/15 45,970               
84.010 32776 07/01/14-09/30/15 20,496               
84.010 28135 07/01/13 - 09/30/15 297,529             

Title III - Language Instruction 84.365 32328 07/01/14 - 09/30/15 151,209             
84.365 30012 07/01/13 - 09/30/14 16,491               

Title IIA - Teacher Quality 84.367 32915 07/01/14 - 09/30/15 245,631             
84.367 28651 07/01/13 - 09/30/14 1,461                 

Special Education - Grants to States 84.027 33275 07/01/14 - 09/30/16 1,745,174          
84.027 32098 08/01/14- 06/30/15 5,191                 
84.027 33703 10/01/14 - 09/30/15 12,731               
84.027 31840 07/01/14 - 06/30/15 2,700                 
84.173 28958 07/01/13 - 09/30/15 15,007               
84.027 28448 07/14/13 - 09/30/15 340,506             

21st Century Community Learning 84.287 32271 07/01/14 - 06/30/15 457,439             
84.287 28302 07/01/12 - 09/30/15 49,331               

SPDG EBISS Breadth 84.323 29509 08/01/13 - 06/30/15 1,627                 
84.323 32737 09/01/14-06/20/15 4,000                 

SIG Cohort 84.377 31395 08/09/14-09/30/15 561,579             (1)
Total U.S. Department of Education 6,740,339          

U.S. Department of Health & Human Services
Passed through Oregon Employment Department

Child Care and Development Block Grant 93.575 ODE/OCC 14-036 07/01/13 - 06/30/15 50,425               

Total U.S. Department of Health & Human Services 50,425               

(1) Indicates major programs
(Continued on next page)

Gresham-Barlow School District 10JT

Expenditures

89



Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2015

Pass
Federal Through 
CFDA Entity Period

Program Title Number Number Covered
U.S. Department of Agriculture:

Passed through Oregon Department of Education:
Child Nutrition Cluster:

Donated Commodities 10.553/555 07/01/14 - 06/30/15 221,417             (1)
School Breakfast Program 10.553 07/01/14 - 06/30/15 677,816             (1)
National School Lunch Program 10.555 07/01/14 - 06/30/15 2,470,136          (1)
Summer Food 10.559 07/01/14 - 06/30/15 74,237               (1)

Total Child Nutrition Cluster 3,443,606          

NSLP Child Care Food 10.558 07/01/14 - 06/30/15 116,300             

Passed through Clackamas and Multnomah Counties Oregon
Federal Forest Fees 10.665 07/01/14 - 06/30/15 12,662               

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 3,572,568          

TOTAL FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE $ 10,363,332        

Expenditures

90



 

 
REPORTS ON LEGAL AND OTHER REGULATORY COMPLIANCE

 



 

 
 

 
 

  
 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank 
 

 



                                                                        PAULY, ROGERS, AND CO., P.C.   
             12700 SW 72nd Ave.  Tigard, OR  97223 

                                                                    (503) 620‐2632  (503) 684‐7523 FAX 
www.paulyrogersandcocpas.com 

 
 

 

October 12, 2015 
 

To the Board of Directors 
Gresham-Barlow School District 
Multnomah County, Oregon 

 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON 

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General 
of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate 
discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Gresham-
Barlow School District as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise the basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 12, 2015.     
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the internal control over financial 
reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose 
of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control. 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be 
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.   
 A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was 
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. 
Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be 
material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.  
 

 

 

 

 

91



 

 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement, 
we performed tests of compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, 
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. 
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, 
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters 
that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control or on compliance. This 
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the 
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 

 
        Matthew Graves, CPA 
        PAULY, ROGERS AND CO., P.C. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

92



                                                                        PAULY, ROGERS, AND CO., P.C.   
             12700 SW 72nd Ave.  Tigard, OR  97223 

                                                                    (503) 620‐2632  (503) 684‐7523 FAX 
www.paulyrogersandcocpas.com 

 
 

 

. 
October 12, 2015 

 
To the Board of Directors 
Gresham-Barlow School District 
Multnomah County, Oregon 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM  
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited Gresham-Barlow School District’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in 
the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the major 
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2015. The major federal programs are identified in the summary of 
auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 
Management’s Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable 
to its federal programs. 
Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the major federal programs based on our audit of 
the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB 
Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular 
A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with 
the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal 
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about compliance with those requirements 
and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. 
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of compliance. 
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, Gresham-Barlow School District, complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the 
year ended June 30, 2015. 
 

 

 

 

93



 

 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered internal 
control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major 
federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over 
compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of 
internal control over compliance. 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does 
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect 
and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material 
weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in 
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we 
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, 
this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 

 

        Matthew Graves, CPA 
        PAULY, ROGERS AND CO., P.C. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

94



 

 

GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 
MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON 

 
SCHEDULE FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS  

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SECTION I – SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS 
 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FEDERAL AWARDS 

 
IDENTIFICATION OF MAJOR PROGRAMS 

Type of auditors’ report issued Unmodified  
   
Internal control over financial reporting:   
   
     Material weakness(es) identified?   yes    no 
   
     Significant deficiency(s) identified that are not considered  
     to be material weaknesses?   yes  none reported 
   
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?   yes   no 
   
Any GAGAS audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in 
accordance with section 505(d)(2) of OMB Circular A-133? 

 
  yes 

 
  no 

   

Internal control over major programs:   
   
     Material weakness(es) identified?   yes    no 
   
     Significant deficiency(s) identified that are not considered  
     to be material weaknesses?   yes  none reported 
   
Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major programs: Unmodified  
   
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance 
with OMB Circular A-133, section 510(a)?   yes  no 

   
CFDA NUMBER NAME OF FEDERAL PROGRAM CLUSTER  

84.377 
10.553,10.555,10.559 

School Improvement Grants 
Child Nutrition Cluster 

 

 95  



 

 

GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 
MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON 

 
SCHEDULE FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS  

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL EXPENDITURES 
 
1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION 
 
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal expenditures includes federal grant activity and is presented on 
the modified accrual basis of accounting.  The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the 
requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.  Therefore, 
some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic 
financial statements. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

96 

   
   

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: $310,900  
   
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?   yes    no 
   



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 
1331 NW Eastman Parkway 
Gresham, OR  97030-3825 

 
 
 
 
 
 
TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Carla Piluso 
 
DATE: December 3, 2015 
 
RE:  No. 14 – OSBA Board of Directors and Legislative Policy Committee Members 
 
 
EXPLANATION: As reviewed at the November 5, 2015, board meeting, the Oregon 

School Boards Association (OSBA) has not referred any 
resolutions to its member school boards for consideration this 
year.  However, for the Multnomah County region, there are three 
board of directors positions open, and three legislative policy 
committee positions open, and member school boards are asked to 
vote on the candidates who have filed for those positions. 

 
 Following is a slate of candidates representing Multnomah 

County school districts: 
 
 OSBA Board of Directors, Position 17 
  Francisco Acosta, Multnomah ESD 
  Uncontested 
 
 OSBA Board of Directors, Position 18 
  Kris Howatt, Gresham-Barlow School District 
  Uncontested 
 
 OSBA Board of Directors, Position 19 
  Paul Anthony, Portland Public School District 
  Uncontested 
 
 OSBA Legislative Policy Committee (LPC), Position 17 
  James Trujillo, Parkrose School District 
  Uncontested 
 
 OSBA Legislative Policy Committee (LPC), Position 18 
  Amy Kohnstamm, Portland Public School District 
  Uncontested 
 
 OSBA Legislative Policy Committee (LPC), Position 19 
  Kent Zook, Gresham-Barlow School District 
  Uncontested 
 
 



Board of Directors 
Re:  No. 14 – OSBA Board of Directors and Legislative Policy Committee 
December 3, 2015 
Page 2 
 
 
 Under OSBA’s governance structure, member school boards are 

required to take official action on the proposed slate of candidates 
by casting one vote (meaning this is a board vote, not an 
individual vote).   

 
 The voting period opens in mid-November each year, following 

the fall regional dinner meeting.  The Gresham-Barlow school 
board traditionally delays its vote until early December, because it 
falls after the annual OSBA convention where more information 
about the candidates (and resolutions if there were any) can be 
acquired.   

 
 The ballot must be submitted online by your board secretary not 

later than December 18, 2015. 
 
 Director Howatt will be present at the board meeting to answer 

questions concerning the election process and slate of candidates. 
 
PRESENTERS: Carla Piluso 
 Kris Howatt 
 
SUPPLEMENTARY 1. Sample Ballot 
MATERIALS: 2. 2015 OSBA Elections Calendar 
 3. Board candidate information can be viewed at 

http://www.osba.org/About%20OSBA/Article/OSBA_Election
s-Board.aspx 

 4. LPC candidate information can be viewed at 
http://www.osba.org/About%20OSBA/Article/OSBA_Election
s-LPC.aspx 

 
RECOMMENDATION: The chair recommends that the board vote on the board director 

candidates, and the LPC candidates as presented for second 
reading. 

 
REQUESTED ACTION: 1. Move to elect ____________ to the OSBA Board of Directors, 

Position 17. 
 
 2. Move to elect ____________ to the OSBA Board of Directors, 

Position 18. 
 
 3 Move to elect ____________ to the OSBA Board of Directors, 

Position 19. 
 
 4. Move to elect ____________ to the OSBA Legislative Policy 

Committee, Position 17. 
 
 

 



Board of Directors 
Re:  No. 14 – OSBA Board of Directors and Legislative Policy Committee 
December 3, 2015 
Page 3 
 
 
 5. Move to elect ____________ to the OSBA Legislative Policy 

Committee, Position 18. 
 
 6 Move to elect ____________ to the OSBA Legislative Policy 

Committee, Position 19. 
 
:lc 



 



2015 OSBA Elections Calendar
Adopted by the OSBA Board of Directors on January 23, 2015

Nomination and election of regional members of the OSBA board of directors holding even-numbered positions 
and all LPC representatives

August 24, 2015 Notice of position vacancies, candidate information packets, and
official nomination forms shall be distributed to all incumbent directors,
LPC members and boards in eligible regions.

August 24, 2015
through
October 2, 2015

A school board nominating one or more of its regional board members
to an open position must do so by formal resolution of the board and
timely submission of the nomination forms to the office of the OSBA.
Nominations are closed after this date.

No later than
October 16, 2015

Official ballots are distributed to member boards in each region 30 days
prior to the date of the election, but no later than October 16.

November 16, 2015
through
December 18, 2015

Submission of votes to OSBA. Each member board in the appropriate
region shall have one vote in the regional elections for members of the
OSBA board of directors and the LPC. The person receiving a majority
of the votes cast for any position on the OSBA board of directors shall
be elected.

As soon as possible In cases where there are more than two candidates nominated for any
position, and none receives a majority of the votes cast, a second ballot
shall be required between the two candidates receiving the highest
number of votes. The one receiving a majority of the votes cast shall be
declared elected.

January 1, 2016 Newly elected officers, regional members of the OSBA board of
directors and LPC members officially take office.

OSBA Resolution Election

No later than
September 30, 2015

All resolutions to be submitted to the membership for a vote
must be received at the OSBA offices.

No later than
October 15, 2015

Resolution details, along with an official ballot, will be sent to the
membership.

November 16, 2015
through
December 18, 2015

Each member board in the state shall vote in the general election on
resolutions and constitutional amendments using the weighted voting
system outlined in the constitution.

OSBA Officer Election

September 10-11, 2015,
or no later than
September 30, 2015

The currently seated OSBA board of directors meets to elect officers.
Candidates receiving a majority of the votes cast for any officer
position on the OSBA board shall be elected.



GRESHAM-BARLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 
1331 NW Eastman Parkway 
Gresham, OR  97030-3825 

 
 
 
 
 
 
TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Carla Piluso 
 
DATE: December 3, 2015 
 
RE: No. 15 – OSBA Annual Convention Report 
 
 
EXPLANATION: The Oregon School Boards Association (OSBA) held its 69th Annual 

Convention at the Portland Marriott Downtown Waterfront on 
November 12-15, 2015.  The theme for this year’s convention was 
“Celebrate the Promise of Oregon:  Sharing Best Pactices.”  Guest 
presenters and keynote speakers included the following: 

 
 • John Michael Keys, founder of the “I Love You Guys” 

Foundation, and developer of a school safety program that is 
quickly becoming a standard around the country 

 • Salam Noor, Oregon Deputy Superintendent of Public 
Instruction 

 • Nicholas Kristof, a best-selling author and two-time Pulitzer 
Prize-winning Columnist at the New York Times, and 
celebrity face of the “Promise of Oregon” campaign 

 • Donna Hartley, an author and former Miss Hawaii; she 
survived a DC-10 plane crash, beat melanoma, and overcame 
heart surgery. 

 
 This evening, school board members who attended the convention 

will report on their experiences and summarize information they 
obtained.  

 
PRESENTER: Carla Piluso and School Board Members 
 
SUPPLEMENTARY 
MATERIALS: None 
 
RECOMMENDATION: This report is submitted for information only. 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: No action is required. 
 
:lc 


	00 00 Cover
	00 01 Agenda
	01 00 Minutes
	02 00 Financial Report
	02 01 Financial Report
	03 00 Personnel Changes
	04 00 Out-of-State Travel
	05 Hanna Jordan State Water Polo Tournament
	06 00 Yes Gresham-Barlow Education Foundation Report
	07 00 Mt. Hood Community College
	08 00 Principal for a Day 2015
	09 00 DAC Report
	09 01 DAC Report
	10 00 Bond Planning Committee
	10 01 Bond Planning Committee
	11 00 Acceptance of a Financial Donation East Hill Church
	12 00 Budget Committee Appointment
	12 01 Budget Committee Appointment
	13 00 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
	13 01 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
	Admin Org Chart 2013-14 page #.pdf
	Admin Org Chart 2012-13.vsd
	Page-1



	14 00 OSBA Board Directors and Legislative Policy Committee
	14 01 OSBA Board of Directors and Legislative Policy Committee Members
	14 02 OSBA Board of Directors and Legislative Policy Committee Members
	15 00 OSBA Annual Convention Report



